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Financial Highlights
£ mitlions {unless stated otherwisel 2007 2006™

Results from continuing underlying” operations:

Revenue 473.6 499.9
Underlying” Operating Profit 13.8 271
Underlying® Profit before Tax 3.0 12.6
Adjusted Earnings per Share ® 2.6p 5.1p

Results after restructuring and other non-recurring items:

Operating Loss from Continuing Operations (89.3) (35.3]
Basic Loss per share from Continuing Operations (76.3)p (35.3)p
Proposed Final Dividend 2.50p 3.95p
Net Debt 137.6 165.3

[1] 2006 restated to reflect Discontinued Operations
{2] Underlying prolit measures are befare restructuring charges and other non-recurring items, as set out in the Consolidated Income Statement
(3] Adjusted to exclude restructuring charges and other non-recurring items as described in note 6

Operational Highlights

« Turnaround programme continued throughout a challenging year, establishing sound
foundations for progress in 2008

« Underlying gross margin and operating margin recovery in the second half driven by
Industrial with Hygiene under pressure from raw materials

» Portfolio simplified - 2 Hygiene business disposals, 1 Industrial site closure

¢ Industrial growth maintained with revenue increase of 4.6% at constant currency.
Industrial now accounts for 42% of Group revenue, up from 32% in 2005

» Trade working capital as a percentage of sales reduced by 1.0% to 17.9%

« Debt reduction of £33.1 million at constant currency from disposals and working capital
reduction

+ impatrments and write downs of £95.0 million

CONTINUING REVENUE CONTINUING UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT
[constant currency) (constant currency)

2007 2006 2007 2004

cC

B INDUSTRIAL @ HYGIENE @ INDUSTRIAL @ HYGIENE

Note; profit share is stated after allacating central
tosts equally between Industrial & Hygiene



Fiberweb is one of the world's largest and leading suppliers of speciality
nonwoven fabrics. Nonwoven materials developed, manufactured and marketed
by Fiberweb are used in a wide variety of everyday products such as filters, baby
diapers, construction products and feminine care. With vast experience in its field
and a strong international presence, Fiberweb has long been regarded as a
technological innovator with a strong portfolio of intellectual property and as a
preferred partner for customers focused on high quality and reliable supply.

Our Operations at a Glance

Industrial

Fiberweb manufactures a diverse range of nonwoven  Tekton™ and Terram products are used in_hods
products for the highly fragmented industrial market.  roofing and geotextlle applications. Flberweb

We are one of the leading suppliers globally for pool & spa  to provide superior quality products for more tec n]cally
filtration under the well known Reemay™ brand. In the  demanding and niche areas in fabric softener sheets and

construction industry, our strong and established Typar™/  graphic arts.

Housewrap Geosynthetics

For residential and commercial s Specialist manufacturer of :
appllcanons nothing is proven to , . : . geotextiles under leading brands
-.nﬁ perform better than Fiberweb’s such as Terram™ and Bidim™ used in

- well known Typar™ Weather ‘ IRy A variety of applications including
‘:,-mfr* * Protection Systems WY drainage, filtration, separation -

ey i MW and other industrial uses

Filtration industnalwmes

Fiberweb manufactures advanced s «~ Fiberweb makesa mulmude o
’ filtration media under the established . -~ top quality, high-performance”
ooy Reemay™ brand for a variety of s products for graphic arisénd
» 2, applications in fittration, separation v . general wipes appllcaﬁ'ﬁ“ﬁ”
~ - and absorption ~ 3

L

Roofing Landscape

Typar™ roofwrap30 and Tekton™ are light e a Long term guaranteed B|obarner
;  weight, water resistani, polymeric roof ) ' products are made of durable
====="——s= underlayments that provide superior % i3 geotextile fabric with permanently
e prolection. Blowitex specialises in N s : % attached nodules containing
laminates and composites for ' : . trifluralin that prevent root tip
niche applications - © cell division

Fabrlc softener sheets Industrial specialities

,/ North American consumers tend to use | / p Fiberweb produces a diverse range

/// impregnated fabric softener sheets fV of other products in packaging,

i " in a tumble drier. Fiberweb is ') shoes and home furnishing

i a leading supplier for this \ *7 V== r applications. We also manufacture
i

‘67 technically demanding application - \\* \ . Keeta™ - high-visibility clothing
4 .




Research
and
Development

Fiberweb's global Research and

Leading market
positions
and technologies

Long-term
customer
relationships

Fiberweb's emphasis on innaovation,

Fiberweb's scale, global reach, range of

technology ard strong market positions

in a broad range of specialised areas sets
it apart from many of its competitors.
Fiberweb continuatly improves and
expands the attributes of its products to
increase their performance for its
customers and ultimately the end user.

Hygiene

Fiberweb is a global leader in tailored nonwoven fabric
solutions for baby and adull care, feminine hygiene,
medical and protective apparel segments.

 We offer a wide range of nonwoven technelogies tailored

to meet the ‘specific needs of each and every customer.
Today, we are helping our customers develop products

Baby diapers

Fiberweb produces top sheet,
back sheet, barrier leg cuff and
core cover

Differentiated technology to make
acquisition distribution layer for
feminine hygiene preducts

quality and service has helped
develop a strong fong-standing
relationship with custemers wheo,
themselves are leaders in their field.

Development ["R&D"] centre is located
in Germany. Highly experienced
scientists and technicians benefit from
a number of pilot lines and
sophisticated analytical laboratories.

which are lighter, better fitting, more comfeortabte, more
aesthetic and have superior absorbent properties.

Each family of products is engineered to offer a unique set
of properties such as softness, strength, extensibility,
absorbency or repellency which provides function, feel
and fit.

Medlcal products

Fiberweb offers nonwoven iabncs
for conversion into medical products.
t Our line of fabrics is engineered to
* deliver benefits such as protection
" and stability to sterilisation ‘

Adult incontinence
/_ﬁ— \ New generation products llke
i ez Softspan™, with its exceptional
. softness and elongation properties,
make it ideatly suited for adult
incontinence applications

FIBERWEB LEADS THE ADVANCEMENT OF HYGIENE NONWOVENS TECHNOLOGIES
USING OUR GLOBAL NETWORK AND INNOVATIVE RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
CAPABILITIES TO PROVIDE OUR CUSTOMERS WITH STATE-OF-THE-ART FABRICS THAT

ULTIMATELY FULFILL THE NEEDS OF THE END USER.




Our Global Reach

Nonwoven markets tend to be regionally orientated because the
bulk export of nonwoven materials over long distances is generally
not viable. Fiberweb has a presence in all major regions, concentrated
primarily in North America and Europe. The directors believe that
Fiberweb’s global presence gives it a competitive advantage as
major customers expand into higher-growth markets.

USA - New polyester ltaly - €40 million Sweden - New spunbond China - New airlaid line at
recycling plant fully investment in a speciality line installed at the Tianjin facility due to be
commissioned at spunbond line is expected Sweden plant now fully fully commissioned in first
0ld Hickory to deliver benefits in the operational quarter of 2008

second half of 2009

@ Global HQ Marwtacturing
/ @ Manutacturing facil md.nw centre
TS, - & xint vertures ® Regional He




We operate in 11 countries around
the world. Fiberweb’s global
presence gives it a competitive
advantage as major customers
expand into high growth emerging
markets, ‘

Brands

We support and promote important
brands through targeted marketing
and product development.

Growth

We seek to invest respurces to
maintain and grow our market
positions.




Chairman’s Statement

2007 was a difficult year for
the newly independent
Fiberweb. Despite initial
success in delivering a
number of the objectives laid
out at the demerger of the
Company from BBA Group in
November 2006, the business
struggled to meet several
major challenges, both
internal and external. We did
not meet our objective of
creating shareholder value or
of delivering a sustainable
turnaround through the year.
Your Board is determined

to implement plans to
improve this performance

in the year to come.

During the year, Fiberweb continued to
implement the turnaround sirategy laid
out at the time of demerger. The portfolic
was further simplified with the successful
sale of the international Hygiene Wipes
business and the small cotten bleaching
busingss based in Griswoldville,
Massachusetts. The rationalisation of
uncompetitive assets continued with the
closure of the polyester fabric production
site at Gray Court, Scuth Carolina, and
further reductions in headcount
amounting to around 6% of the workferce
excluding divestments.

The restructuring undertaken from the
end of March following the announcement
of the Hygiene Wipes sale exposed
problems in the Industrial business in the
US. These cencerned primarily margin
rmanagement and manufacturing
performance, and had a material impact
on performance during the rest of the
year, offeetting continuing progress in
Fiberweb's Industrial businesses cutside
the US. Changes in management were
swiftly introduced and, towards the end
of the year, steady margin recovery

was achieved.

In general, the Hygiene businesses
suffered during 2007 from a continuation
of the difficult trading environment that
has prevailed for several years, with high
and increasing raw material prices, and
additional competitive pressures,
especially in Europe. Fiberweb responded
to these challenges with the investment

programme outlined at the time of the
demerger, efficiency improvements, and
through a continued focus on its higher
margin speciality products. The on-time
and on-budget commissioning of a major
new spunbond line in Sweden was the
highlight of this pregramme, and this plant
promises to deliver strong sales and profit
growth in 2008. The new airlsid line in
Italy, however, proved more problematic,
with late delivery and significant
commissioning issues, which are expected
to be resolved early in 2008. The major
new spunbond contract signed with
Fiberweb's largest customer, Procter &
Gambtle, at the end of 2004, was
imptemented during the year. Despite this,
unexpected volume shortfalls in several
areas undermined plans to optimise asset
utilisation, and negatively impacted
margins. The rapid increase in oil prices
during the second half of 2007 began to
feed through to Fiberweb’s polymer raw
materials and energy costs later in the
year, also adding to margin pressures.

Despite these setbacks, the actions

put in place during 2006 and 2007 are
expected to lead to an improvement in
Fiberweb's competitive position in the long
term and we have sought to strengthen
management at all levels to deliver on the
promise to turnaround the recent history
of declining margins and profitability.

The percentage improvement in margins
seen in the second half compared to the
first half is an indication that progress is
being made.



FIBERWER'S BEST PROSPECTS LIE IN EXPLOITING ITS STRONG BRAND AND
MARKET POSITIONS IN IMPORTANT SEGMENTS OF THE LARGE AND EXPANDING
MARKET FOR INDUSTRIAL NONWQVEN FABRICS, PARTICULARLY IN FILTRATION
AND SPECIALITY CONSTRUCTION SEGMENTS.

Financial Results

The financial results for 2007 overall are
disappointing. Continuing sales [excluding
sales from businesses divested during the
year| decreased by £24.3 million [5.3%] to
£473.6 million and continuing underlying
operating profit reduced by £13.3 million
[4%.1%) te £13.8 million. Net cashflow
from operating activities was positive at
£36.9 million [2006: £44.0 million), before
significant capital investment of £32.6
mitlion [2006: £48.4 millioal. The low
return on invested capital of 2.9% (2006:
4.7%) remains significantly below
Fiberweb's cost of capital and indicates
the scale of the task ahead. Debt was
reduced by £27.7 million to £137.6 million
at the end of the year [2006: £165.3
million), through the impact of disposals
and tight control of working capital.

In constant currency terms, debt would
have been £132.9 million at the end of the
year, a reduction of £32.4 million.

Dividends

Subject to approval by shareholders at

the Annual General Meeting to be held on
2 May 2008, the directors recommend a
final dividend of 2.50 pence per share (2006:
3.95 pencel. If approved, the dividend will
be payable an 27 May 2008 to shareholders
on the register at 25 April 2008.

The Board and Management

The Board has remained unchanged
during the year and has addressed the
issues facing the Company with
determination and commitment.

The departure of Simon Bowles as Chief
Financial Officer was announced in early
December and he was replaced on

1 February 2008 by Daniel Abrams, who
brings a broad range of operational,
financial and public company expertise to
your Board. Fiberweb now has in ptace a
strong executive tearn with considerable
experience in the nonwovens sector and
international manufacturing.

Possible Offer by Avgol

On 21 Janvuary 2008 the Company
announced that it was in discussions with
Avgol Industries 1953 Limited ["Avgol’)
regarding a possible offer for Fiberweb.
The proposed offer price is 100p per
Fiberweb share in cash, plus the right to
receive and retain a further dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2007 of 2.50
pence per share, Depending on the timing
of any Avgol offer, a 2.50 pence per share
dividend will either be recommended by
the directors as a final dividend for 2007
as mentioned above or will be paid as a
further dividend for 2007 as part of any
offer, in which case no final dividend should
be expected. Due diligence is proceeding
and we witl keep shareholders informed
as to the progress of any possible offer.
For the avoidance of doubt, there can be
no certainty that any offer will be made
for the Company.

Prospects

Percentage sales and profit growth in the
Industrial businesses outside the US is
encouraging, Recovering the margin

position in the large US industrial
business remains a key priority and
progress is being made.

Your Board continues to believe that
Fiberweb's best prospects lie in exploiting
its strong brand and market positions in
important segments of the large and
expanding market for industrial nonwoven
fabrics, particularly in filtration and
speciality construction segments.

There are also attractive segments within
the hygiene market, where scale,
manufacturing excellence and innovation
can produce competitive advantage,

in particular in spunbond fabrics for baby
diaper and feminine care applications.
The Group’s investment programme
focuses on delivering competitive,
differentiated products to serve these
segments.

Your Board believes that the successful
implermentation of the turnaround and the
strategy outlined above is the right one for
the business and it has taken decisive
initiat action, The rmargin improvement in
the second half of 2007 is an important
and encouraging first step.

iy &

Malcolm Coster
Chairman

26 February 2008




Chief Executive’'s Review

2007 was a year of highs and lows.
Following successes in delivering a
major P&G contract shortly after
demerger, the sale of Hygiene Wipes
and encouraging sales and profit
growth in our non-US Industrial
businesses, the emergence of
significant shortcomings in the large
Americas Industrial business was a
major disappointment. These issues
combined with volume shartfalls in
certain Hygiene plants and further
raw rnaterial cost increases, led us
to make two profit warnings during
the year in April and September.

We responded by strengthening
management and processes,
increasing efficiency and productivity
and reducing headcount and costs
within the Group, including head
office. 2007's poor margins led to a
reduction in expectations of future
performance, which have led to a
£95.0 mitlion charge for impairments
and asset write downs.

Financial Performance

2007 full year operating profits from
continuing operations before restructuring
costs and non-recurring items at £13.8
million represent anather significant
decline. However, a particularty weak first
half was followed by a degree of recovery
in the second half as restructuring and
investment actions started to demonstrate
an impact. Operating margins improved in
the second half compared ta the first half
by 0.4 percentage points, despite steadily
increasing raw material costs during the
second half.

The successful sale of the Hygiene Wipes
and cotton bleaching businesses further
shifted Fiberweb’s portfolio towards the
more differentiated Industrial segments,
which now form 42.5% of our total sales
and 51.7% aof our operating profit before
central costs. It is pleasing to note the

strong performance from the non-US
Industrial businesses, notably Terram™

in the UK, Bidim™ in Brazil and the
European roofing businesses, which
together grew sales by 16% and operating
profit by 55% [at constant currency), and
achieved an operating profit margin of
7.5%. The poor perfermance of Americas
Industrial was a surprise and
disappointment, with full year operating
margins of only 4.0% (2006: 8.2%].

Poor first quarter trading led to a detailed
investigation which exposed poor
management information, weak stock
and margin management practices, and a
decline in manufacturing performance.
Corrective actions were initiated, which
though taking longer than originally
expected to produce an impact, did lead to
an improvement in margins in the second
half to 5.9% from 2.2% in the first half.

The Hygiene businesses sufiered from
increasing polypropylene raw material
prices and the failure of certain large
customers to deliver promised volumes.
Underlying operating margins of 4.3% in
the first hatf declined further to 3.1% in
the second half. Cost reductions in
overhead and manufacturing areas were
actively pursued to partially mitigate the
effects of the adverse pricing and cast
environment.

Debt was cut during the year by £27.7
million to £137.6 million. Trading cash
flow of £43.8 million [2006: £51.5 million]
before non-recurring cash costs of £6.9
million £2006: £7.5 million] and divestment
proceeds of £42.0 million [2006: £5.4
rillion} funded capital investment of £32.6
million {2006: 48.4 million), net interest
payments of £10.4 million [£7.6 millien]
and dividends of £7.0 million [2006: £5.5
million - paid to BBA Group entities).
Tight control of working capital was
maintained, with a net inflow of £2.4
million [2006: cutflow of £3.1 millien].

2007 Overview

Industrial

In North America Industrial, the continuing
downturn in the residential construction

market created a negative backdroep for
the censtruction materials business,
especially landscape fabrics.
Notwithstanding this, sales volumes of
Typar™, our leading housewrap brand,
grew and revenues remained strong
thanks to continued market share gain
and a buoyant business in Canada, which
benefits from continued steady demand
and a strong Canadian Dollar enabling
more robust pricing than in the US.

We continue to accelerate our drive to
expand our geographic presence in this
market and to broaden our product range
and further differentiate our offering.
During the year, we launched MetroWrap,
a new product tailored to the needs of
commercial buildings and StormWrap, a
product for use in hurricane-prone areas.
Both of these products have received
positive customer feedback.

Sales of filtration media under the
Reemay™ brand for pool and spa
applications were strong in general,
though the weakness in housing markets
began to impact the pool and spa market
towards the end of the year. Other filtration
areas also demonstrated some growth,
and successful product development
during 2007 in pool and spa, and in air
filtration applications are expected to
support further growth.

Other important areas of the Americas
Industrial business performed well, with
sales of fabric softener sheet remaining
strong and the recovery in sales of graphic
arts products continuing with improved
sales focus.

The poor margins we saw in this
business were partly due to price erosion
and a failure to react sufficiently quickly
to raw material cost increases. Margin
contrel was found to be poor and a
programme of re-costing and reviewing
the pricing of all products was initiated.
This took significantly longer to complete
than originally expected, but finally price
increases were implemented on many of
the American Industrial products during
the fourth quarter.



WHILST WE ARE STILL IMPLEMENTING OUR TURNARQUNDG PROGRAMME AND
DESPITE A DIFFICULT MACRO-ECONOMIC QUTLOOK, THE ACTIONS TAKEN
DURING 2007 HAVE CREATED A SOLID FOUNDATION FOR PROGRESS IN 2008.

On the manufacturing side of this
business, the successful cormmissioning of
the polyester recycling plant at our largest
site at Old Hickory, Tennessee was the
highlight. This facility enables us to recycle
almost 100% of our polyester fabric waste,
reducing both the financial and
environmental costs of our operations.
Despite lower than expected margins
during the year, due to delays in obtaining
customer qualifications for products
containing recycled polymer, qualifications
had been obtained by the end of October,
allowing the recycling plant to cperate at
full throughput.

Yields were poor at the start of the year
at Old Hickory, due to a lack of focus on
manufacturing excellence and to a change
in the production planning methodology.
The unintended consequences of these
changes included significantly higher
scrap and lost production time on limited
capacity machines. As we corrected these
practices following the management
changes in April, margins began te
recover.

In Europe, sales grew in roofing as the
2006 acquisition of Blowitex continued to
be successful and we saw limited growth
in speciality polyethylene-based
nonwoven products from our Berlin
facility. New product development in
roofing, seeking to improve the resistance
of under-tile products to UV radiation,
was successful, with new polyethylene-
based products expected te be launched
during 2008.

In Brazil, Bidim™ continued to develop its
premier position, but the strength of the
Brazilian Real against the US doltar
reduced shoe production volumes, making
competitive products from China more
attractive and also stimulating increased
imports of European roofing materials.
Commercial initiatives to strengthen
customer relationships, plus technical
support to reduce the cost of various
products, enabled Bidim™ to grow both
sales by 15%, and profit by 3%, for another
successful year overatl.

Hygiene

2007 was a disappointing year in Hygiene.
In North America, the impact of heavy
restructuring in 2006 was apparent, with
an improvement in margin from lower
sales, while in Europe, increased
competitive pressure hit both volumes
and margins. In both regions, higher raw
material prices impacted margins in the
second half, as did the impact of price
concessions made as part of securing the
large spunbond agreement with Procter
& Gamble announced in December 2006.
Having been a strong performer for
several years, airlaid was a weaker
performer in 2007 due almost entirely to a
loss of market share by a large customer
in Asia, with a knock on impact on our
plant utilisation at Tianjin, China,

The major investments made in 2006 in
Hygiene enjoyed mixed fortunes. The
large spunbond line in Sweden was

completed and commissioned as planned.

It wilt be a major contributer during 2008.
The airlaid line in Italy was completed
almaost nine months late by the prime
contractor and is still not operating to
specification. It remains a priority
ohjective to bring the plant to full scale
operation as early as possible in 2008.

Our Business Review on pages 12 to 25
sets out in more detail how we have
performed in 2007.

Our People

We seek to motivate every employee at
Fiberweb to give of their best and we
value their contribution. During a period

_when we have been reducing headcount

and increasing productivity, it demands
a great deal of commitment and loyalty
from our employees to focus on serving
customers and optimising performance.
We continue to introduce meaningful
assessment, development and

incentive programmes tailored to the
needs of our people and businesses.

We are a very international business and
enjoy and benefit from a wide variety of
cultures, backgrounds, skills and
experiences.

Appreciation

I would like to express thanks to all of
Fiberweb’s customers and suppliers for
their continued support. | would especially
like to thank all Fiberweb employees for
their commitrment, loyalty and unstinting
efforts to serve customers better as we
have gone through a highly volatile and
challenging year.

Outlook

We expect Industrial to benefit from
continued recavery in the Americas,
building on the stronger second half of
2007, and expect our non-US businesses
to continue to benefit from new products
and enhanced capacity. Hygiene remains
subject to a highly competitive market and
to raw material price pressures. However,
the continued focus on profitable product
lines, combined with a continuing
reduction in our cost base, should ensure
a steady improvement in competitiveness.

Cash flow and debt reduction remain a
priority for management. We will continue
to review our portfolio of businesses to
ensure we can maximise their value for
shareholders.

Whilst we are still implementing our
turnaround programme and despite a
difficult macro-economic outlook, the
actions taken during 2007 have created a
solid foundation for progress in 2008.

Daniel Dayan
Chief Executive

26 February 2008
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B USIneSS REVIEW continued

Review of Results

Revenue from continuing operations fell
by 5.3% to £473.6 mitlion {2006: £499.9
million). The reduction is largely in the
Hygiene business, and results from the
full year effect of the significant
restructuring we carried out in 2006, and
further changes in 2007 such as the
disposal of the cotton bleaching husiness.
This restructuring was aimed at
improving the competitive position of the
Hygiene business, primarily in the US.
The continuing sales numbers exclude
Hygiene Wipes, which represented

£31.5 million of sales in 2007 (2006:
£84.8 million].

Undertying operating profit on a continuing
basis fell significantly from £27.1 million
to £13.8 million, an operating margin of
2.9% 12006: 5.4%). £5.4 miltion of the fall
was due to a full year of central/PLC costs
post-demerger. Other key factors
contributing to the decline include
increased raw material costs across the
Fiberweb businesses, and reduced
profitability in the non-US Hygiene
businesses and in the US Industrial
business, which faced significant internal
and market issues in 2007. The US
Hygiene business showed improved
performance compared with 2006. In the
second half of the year, underlying
operating margins rase in the Industrial
businesses, both in the US and elsewhere,
and also in the US Hygiene business.

After net finance costs of £10.8 million
[2006: £14.5 million), Fiberweb produced
underlying profit before tax from
continuing operations of £3.0 million
(2006: £12.6 miltion). Adjusted earnings
per share on continuing operations were
2.6 pence (2006: 5.1 pence) after excluding

restructuring costs and non-recurring items.

Despite a significant fall in the US Dollar
exchange rate from an average of 1.83 in
2006 to 2.00 in 2007, the adverse effect of
this on the Group's reported underlying
operating profit from continuing
operations was limited to £0.4 million.
The Euro’s average value against Sterling
was largely unchanged at 1.46.

Restructuring costs and non-recurring
items on continuing operations of

£103.1 million before tax included asset
impatrments of £43.5 million, goodwill
impairments of £46.7 million, inventory
write-downs of £5.8 million and other
restructuring costs of £7.4 million,

offset by a gain on sale of an associate

of £0.3 million. 2006 non-recurring items
of £52.4 million comprised £49.0 million
of asset write-downs and impairment,
£11.8 miltion of other restructuring costs
and a £1.6 million loss on the disposal of
associate, CNC. These resulted in operating
losses from cantinuing operations of
£89.3 million (2006: £35.3 mitlion].

Fixed assel additions of £32.9 million
were substantially reduced from the
previous year {2006: £53.7 million), when
new lines in Germany, Brazil and Mexico
were largely completed. The reduction alse
reftects careful management of capital
expenditure, and the timing of payments,
in light of our reduced profitability. We
announced in August an investment of
around Eurp 40 million in a new spunbond
line in ltaly, which is now underway.

We disposed of the Hygiene Wipes
business in May, for gross proceeds of
Eurc 65 million. At the end of June, we
sold the small cotton bleaching business
based in Griswoldville, Massachusetts.
We recognised losses on disposal of
Hygiene Wipes and the cotton bleaching

sale of £20.9 million and £0.8 mitlion
respectively. Both disposals contribute to
the simplification of Fiberweb’s business
in tine with our published strategy.

Vision and Strategy

Fiberweb is the fourth largest nonwoven
fabric producer in the world and the
largest third-party producer of hygiene
products, enjoying a global presence, with
facilities in most major regions. Nonwoven
materials developed, manufactured and
marketed by Fiberweh are used in a wide
variety of products. With vast experience
in its field, Fiberweb is regarded as a
technalogical innovator with a strang
porifolio of intellectual property, a
preferred partner for customers focused
on high guality and reliable supply, and as
a consistent investor in a global network
of competitive manufacturing assets.

Our vision is to become the leading global
scurce of speciality nonwoven fabric
solutions, and in partnership with our
customers, suppliers and other
associates, to create and implement
products and solutions that offer
outstanding value.

Our strategy is to exploit and develop our
strengths in nonwoven fabrics, whilst at
the same time to address our
weaknesses aggressively, thereby
creating and sustaining value for
shareholders.

We intend to continue to drive forward the
strategy to turn around the disappointing
financial performance of recent years by:

+ Cleosing or divesting weak businesses
that cannot earn sustainable returns or
defining a rapid programme for profit
improvements;
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Business Review wntinued

Investing in strong businesses with the
potential for sustainable differentiation
and good growth prospects; and

Focusing resources on fewer areas to
ensure that development of the
retained business can be accelerated.

We seek to drive profitable growth and
enhance our competitive position by:

Focusing on new product and process
innovation that will drive value for
customers;

Improving cost competitiveness and
operational efficiency on a global scale;

Investing in new production technology
that is cost leading and performance
orientated; and

Working with our suppliers to manage
cost and risk in the supply base.

Historically, Fiberweb focused primarily
on developing its Hygiene business and
did not grow its Industrial business
significantly. Our belief is that Fiberweb’s
best prospects lie in exploiting its strong
technical, brand and market share
pasitions in important segments of the
large and growing market for industrial
nonwaoven fabrics, particularly in filtration
and speciality construction segments that
reward technical differentiation, close
customer contact, branding and innovation.

There are further industrial segments that
offer good profit potential but enjoy lower
growth or geographically-limited markets,
such as fabric softener sheets in North
America, that are also attractive and will
be developed within the market constraints.

There are also attractive segments for
Fiberweb within the hygiene market,

where scale, manufacturing excellence
and innovation can produce competitive
advantage. In particular, Fiberweb has
traditional strength in spunbend fabrics
for baby diaper and feminine care
applications, a key market area where
reasonable returns are available to the
best competitors. Fiberwebh has been a
teader in cost and innovation, but over
the last few years has lost momentum.
The carrective steps taken in 2006 and
2007, and the {talian spunbond
investment now underway, are rebuilding
Fiberweb’s competitive position in this
important area.

Adrlaid is a much newer business area

for Fiberweb and the one area in which we

enjoy a premier position in Asia, with the

largest production line in the region at our

site in Tianjin, China. We are expanding
this position through investment in a
second line in Tianjin to improve our
economies of scale. We have also recently
entered this business area in Europe.

Qur Markets and
External Environment
The nonwovens market is diverse with

a wide range of end applications. Regional

penetration, competition and potential
growth can vary widely dependent on
different product areas. The nonwovens
industry has grown steadily over the last
three decades as these materials are
increasingly used as a substitute for
textiles. Technolegical advancements
allow nonwovens to be used in new

applications by improvements in properties

such as comfort, strength, flexibility,
durability and permeability,

Fiberweb operates in two main markets;
hygiene and industrial. Hygiene markets

continued to exhibit the overall stahle
growth we have seen in the past.

The trend to lower basis weights lie
lighter fabrics) in response to rising raw
material costs continued.

The Industrial markets served by
Fiberweb are varied, and in most cases
development was as expected. The
most difficult was undoubtedly the US
residential construction market, whose
issues have been well publicised. As a
result of significant falls in new housing
starts, market pressures have been
considerable in housewrap and in
construction-related areas of landscape
fabrics and pool filtration. While
measurement is difficult, it is notable that
we experienced much lower volume
dectines than the fall in overall market
demand as represented by new housing
starts. A similar demand trend was
observed also in European housing
markets, notably Germany.

External factors

The trend of increasing oil prices, and
the knock an effect on polypropylene,
did not ease during 2007 from the high
levels of 2006. Indeed we saw record oil
prices by the end of the year, despite the
absence of significant hurricane activity
which has affected pricing in previous
years. These increases feed through
over time to our oil-derived polymeric
raw materials such as polypropylene.
Underlying factors driving these
increases are not absolutely clear,

but global econemic growth, political
uncertainty and US Dollar weakness are
contributing. Longer term additions to
polypropylene production capacity are
proceeding and this should be helpful to
consumers in future years.



Competitive environment

The competitive environment of the
nonwovens industry is constantly changing,
with technological innovations and the
development of new markets and
applications. Although Fiberweb is unique
with its broad product portfolio and

global presence, it faces competition at
various levels depending on the
application.

The hygiene market is characterised by a
concentrated and sophisticated customer
base. Large multinational customers
maintain very high standards of product
quality and performance and expect
nothing less from their suppliers. Fiberweb

Definition/Description

Financial KPIs

supports this philosophy and strives to
innovate and manufacture world class
nonwoven products and deliver world
¢lass levels of value and service. The
industrial market is not only fragmented
but the level of technical expertise and
competition varies depending on the
application. Key to success in the Industrial
business is the ability to respond rapidly
and effectively to customer needs for
improving value and performance, often at
short notice.

Key Performance Indicators

We measure the achievement of our
objectives through the use of qualitative
assessments and through the monitoring

Purpose

of quantitative indicators, termed Key
Performance Indicators ["KPIs"}. The six
KPIs listed below represent factors by
reference to which the devetopment,
perfarmance or position of the business
can be measured effectively.

We focus primarily on financial KPIs to
measure progress in achieving the
financial turnaround. Qur performance
in 2007 is reported in the Financial
Review on page 23.

Further discussion of our non-financial
KPlis included in the Corporate Social
Responsibitity sectian of this review on
page 27.

2007 Performance 2006 Performance

Operating margins Undertying ocperating Measure progress in 2.9% 4. 7%
profit from continuing improving returns in an
businesses + sales from underperforming
centinuing businesses business
Earnings grawth Increase in underlying Measure success in improving  (49%] (72%)
ladjusted EPS) earnings shareholder returns
Return on invested Underlying operating profit Measure success in impreving  2.9% 4.7%
capital % from centinuing operations returns on our assets
+ total net assets prior to
impairment, excluding cash and
non interest-bearing liabilities
Revenue growth Third party sales growth Measure growth in strategicalty 1.2%* 5%
in Industrial in Industrial important business
Operating cash flow  Net cash flows from operating  Generating cash available for £36.9 miltion £44.0 million
activities, before investing and  reinvestment or distribution
financing activities
Non-financial KP
Recordable Number of recordable Measure our success in 1.8 1.3

injury raies {RIR]
worked x 200,000

*4.6% at constant currency

injuries + number of hours

ensuring a safe working
environment
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Operations
INDUSTRIAL

Description of Business
In North America, Fiberweb operates
in a number of areas in construction,
filtration, landscape, furniture and
bedding, and specialities, with
manufacturing sites located in the US
at Old Hickory and Simpsonvilte, and in
Brazil. In construction, our major
products are in housewrap, landscape
and geotextile markets. In Brazil, we
=produce Bidim™ branded fabric, which
is used in roofing, shoe components
and geatextiles in South America.

We are the market teader in pool and
spa filtration under our strong brand ~
Reemay™. We also operate in the air
filtration market focusing on cabin air

and clean room air filtration. In the fabric
softener sheet market we have market
leading technology and we also
manufacture high performance products
for use in the graphic arts industry,
such as nil-scratch wipes and
dampener covers.

We continue to invest resources to

maintain and grow our position in this -

business. In the construction industry,
Fiberweb’s Typar™ is a strong and well
established brand for housewrap in
North America with market leading
performance. However, there are a
growing number of competitors.

Reemay™ is recognised by many as an
industry standard in filtration markets,
especially for pool and spa filtration, ~
and Fiberweb continues to work and

improve the performance of these

products to stay ahead of competition.
Reemay™ is also used to make fabric

softener sheets for the North American .
consurmer market, an atiractive niche

area of application.

Our Industrial business in Europe is
less develogped than in North America.
It falls into three main segments:
construction, filtration and agriculture, .
In Europe, we focus on roofing and
speciality polyethylene-based fabrics.
In the UK, our Terram™ business
located in Scuth Wales produces
branded geotextiles which have a
strong market position in the UK, as
well as speciality geosyntheticsand .
constructions for a variety of
applications, including into the rail
and defence industries.
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In Asia, the Group mainly sells small
volumes of specialist Reemay™

filtration fabrics and Typar™ for

various construction applications,
particutarly in China, There are intentions
to expand the Industrial business in
China.

Performance in 2007
In North America, the Industrial business
had a tempestuous year against a

backdrop of challenging external markets,

notably the Americas residential
construction market where we saw a
marked reduction in new house starts
compared with 2006, and significant
increases in raw material costs which
could not all be passed on to custamers.

Despite this, housewrap volumes grew
and revenues remained strong, which is a
significant and gratifying achievernent for
the Group. Housewrap and residential
landscape fabrics represent around 8% of
Fiberweb’s sales, so it is a meaningful (if
not major] market for Fiberweb. Filtration
continued to perform well. However, the
Americas Industrial business started the
year with challenging profit growth
targets which it failed to meet. Reported
continuing revenues of £123.2 million in

North America Industrial declined by 8.6%
year on year, although in constant
currency terms, sales were in line with
2006 at £134.2 million. Continuing
underlying operating margins declined
significantly.

This underperformance is due to a range
of factors in addition to the external
environment, including a lack of

visibility [and poor forecasting) of sales
and margin for the year, inadeguate
inventory costing and margin
management, and a failure to achieve
new production capability at the Gray
Court plant. As a result, this plant was
closed in December, and the related
production rehoused within the Old Hickory
site, where we have managed to create
additional capacity through improved
manufacturing practices. Following the
disposal of the Hygiene Wipes business,
we also rehoused the Graphic Arts wipes
business in Otd Hickory where it is now
running satisfactorily,

The AQF line, housed in Simpsonville and
producing for the cabin air and clean
room markets, also had a disappainting
year, suffering from its exposure to the US
automotive industry.

We made significant progress in reducing
overall SG&A costs in the Americas in
respanse to the disposal of Hygiene
Wipes and the Industrial business
underperformance. At the sarme time,
we are dedicating considerable effort to
improving the business management
and controt structure in the US Industrial
business, We believe notable progress
has been achieved, but recognise

there is more work to be done to
improve the level of business
understanding and commercial actions
required to realise the full potential of
the business.

In Brazil, Bidim™ continued to make
progress in filling its new line and
improved revenue and profitability,

albeit not at the level originally expected
as Bidim's customers in the export
sector [notably shoe manufacture] were
held back by the strong Real. The roofing
segment was also difficult during the
year due to competition from imports.

Terram™, our UK geotextiles and
geosynthetics business, progressed well
foltowing significant restructuring last
year, which closed one line. Revenue
and profitability improved and it has
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We are working with our
customers to develop products
that are lighter, better fitting,
more comfortable, more
aesthetic and have superior
absorbent properties.

Spunbond Airlaid

We continue to target Fiberweb has invested
investment to support future substantially to provide
growlh!in our spunbond additional capacity at its plants
business, with our new line in at Korma, taly and Tianjin,
Sweden now successfully China,

commissioned and approval of
a new line in northern ltaly.

R&D

We have research centres in the
US and Europe, where highly
experienced scientists and

technicians benefit from a number

of pilot lines and sophisticated
analytical laboratories.
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made progress in commercialising
innovative products in the defence and
rail sectors.

HYGIENE

Description of Business

Fiberweb's Hygiene business provides
nonwaoven fabrics to major consumer
goods companies around the world for
applications in diapers and feminine
hygiene. These are produced using two
principal methods: spunbond and airlaid.

in North America, Fiberweb produces
carded thermal bond material which is
used principally for extensible
applications such as ears and side panels
in baby diapers, and spunbond and
spunmelt materials as components for
diapers and feminine care products.

Our manufacturing sites are located in
the US in Simpsonville, Washougal and
Green Bay, and in Mexico.

In Europe, we hold a market leading
position as a result of continuous
investment across manufacturing sites

in France, Germany, ltaly and Sweden.
Qur proprietary S-Tex™ spunbond
technology is also used for certain hygiene
as well as industrial applications. We have
installed a new airlaid line at our Korma
site in ltaly, although this installation is
not yet performing to specification.

20

At our Chinese facility based in Tianjin,
we preduce advanced airlaid material for
absorption and/or distribution of liquid for
use in the manufacture of disposable
feminine hygiene products. In Asia,
Fiberweb is the largest airlaid roll goods
producer, supplying most of the leading
feminine care producers in the region as
well as the European market.

Performance in 2007

The Hygiene business has suffered
several years af declining performance.
In response, management has restructured
the business substantially during 2006
and early 2007, focused mainly on the US
business where several lines have been
closed, and the cotton bleaching business
was divested. As a result, despite rising
raw material costs, the US Hygiene
business improved its operating margins
and operating profit from continuing
operations, on reduced sates levels.

Overall, continuing Hygiene revenue fell
8.3% from £297.2 million in 2006 to £272.4
million in 2007, largely as a result of the
restructuring and with a £6.7 millian
reduction due to the translation impact of
the weaker US Dollar. Underlying
operating profit fram continuing activities
fell to £10.1 million [2006: £14.0 million)
as a result of increased raw material and
power costs, the reduced profitability of

our German spunbond and ltalian
spectatity carded activities, lower volumes
from a major custorner in our Chinese
airlaid business, and the decreased
laminates production at the Korma site as
the new airlaid line was completed.

Spunbond

In North America, the Hygiene business
returned to profitabitity as we started to
see the benefit of previous restructuring
actions, and underperforming assets at
Simpsanville, Washougal and Griswoldville
(the cotton bleaching business) were
closed down or divested. Revenues
declined significantly, as expected, and
margins were also affected by higher raw
material costs and price concessions. In
Mexico, volumes from a major customer
lagged behind the agreed levels, and our
expectations for the full year were nat met.
Nonetheless, operating margins improved
as a result of the prior year closure of the
poorly performing sites and the significant
overhead reductions achieved.

In Europe, revenue from continuing
operations benefited from the successful
start up of the new Reicofil IV production
line in Sweden, compensating for softer
business on older assets in other
factories. A good performance has been
recorded in the French plant, growing
hygiene and agriculture volumes from




last year. To astablish the appropriate cost
base to compete in the volume hygiene
market, restructuring programmes have
been initiated in Germany, Italy and
Sweden. We expect to see the benefits of
these programmes in our 2008
performance. In addition, we are
evaluating ways to control the rising cost
of raw material and energy, which over
time follows the increasing trend of oil
prices. This is best done by continuous
focus on production performance and
yields. We also continue to invest to
support future growth in our spunbend
business, and announced in August 2007
that we are investing around Euro 40
million in a large speciality spunbond
line in northern ltaly. This Reicofil IV

5.2 metre wide line will be dedicated to
the hygiene and agriculture business and
is expected te deliver benefits in the
second half of 2009.

Airlaid

In Asia, revenue fell as the Tianjin plant
shut down for a productivity project in the
first quarter of 2007, and demand from a
major customer was helow forecast in the
first half of the year. We also suffered
from increasing materials costs and
reduced VAT refunds on exports sales as a
result of a change in local government
policy. Despite this, performance in the
second half of the year was rmuch improved

and productivity achieved a record high
of 86.4% in October.

Construction of the second line in Tianjin
is nearing completion and will commence
commercial operation in the second
quarter of 2008 as planned. This will
provide additional annual capacity of
10,000 tonnes. The new line is a Chinese
designed and built machine and will
target hygiene customers in Asia by
producing competitive products for the
mid-tier markets.

In Europe, the commissioning of a new
airlaid line at the Korrna site has been
delayed due to technical problems
which are in the course of resolution.
The qualification phase with the major
customer [Procter & Gamble] started in
the last quarter of the year and the
business is expected to turn into the
commercial phase within the second
quarter of 2008. Dedicated to feminine
hygiene products, a significant proportion
of Karma output is contracted. It is
expected that the investment in the
Korma line will provide around 10,000
tonnes of airlaid capacity per annum for
supplies to leading hygiene customers.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Fiberweh has its main Research and
Development ["R&D"| centre at Peine in

Germany and smaller groups at
Simpsonville and Old Hickory in the US,
where highly experienced scientists and
technicians benefit from a number of
pilot lines and sophisticated analytical
laboratories.

The main objective of R&D is to provide
innovation to our customers by
optimising the performance of

existing products and processes, or
developing new, more cost efficient
solutions. The division has a global
approach, and is pursuing important
projects in our major business fields of
hygiene, filtration and construction.

Whereas R&D focuses on upstream
product and process development, and
important new ptatform technologies,
Technical Services ["TS”) provides
technical support to our customers
locally. Being close to customers and
their needs enables us to anticipate new
market trends and is a key element of
this function. The R&D and TS divisions
work closely together and responsibility
for these aspects of product and process
development is co-ordinated between
the respective R&D and TS departments
in Europe, the US and Asia.

Fiberweb continues to invest in these
areas to maintain its leading market
pasitions.
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OPERATING PROFITABILITY IMPROVED IN THE SECOND HALF AS PREVIOUS
RESTRUCTURING AND INVESTMENT BEGAN TO GENERATE RETURNS,

Business Review continved

Financial Review

Unallocated
Hygiene Industrial Corporate Continuing  Discontinued Total
2007 £'m £m €m £m £€m £'m
External sales by origin 272.4 201.2 - 473.6 318 505.1
Underlying operating profit 101 10.8 (7.1 13.8 0.3 14.1
Restructuring costs and other
non-recurring items 158.7) (43.4) (1.01 (103.1) - {103.1)
Segment result 148.6) (32.8) (8.1) (89.31 0.3 (89.0)
Underlying operating profit margin 3.7% 5.4% - 2.9% 1.0% 2.8%
Capital additions [cash outlay) 24.2 7.7 0.2 321 0.5 32.6
Depreciation & amaortisation 23.8 7.9 0.1 31.8 1.7 33.5
2006
External sales by origin 297.2 202.7 - 499.9 B4.8 584.7
Underlying operating profit 14,0 14.8 .7 274 0.5 27.6
Restructuring costs and other
non-recurring items (48.4) {14.00 - (62.4]) {34.7) (97.1)
Segment result (34.4) 0.8 (1.7 (35.3) [34.2) (69.5]
Underlying operating profit margin 4. 7% 7.3% - 5.4% 0.5% L7%
Capital additions {cash outlay) 28.8 16.0 0.4 45.2 3.2 48.4
Depreciation & amortisation 241 9.4 - 335 4.9 38.4
Overview of Performance second half as previous restructuring ané  on disposal of the Hygiene Wipes business
The trend of falling profitability which investiment began to generate returns. to Ahtstrom in May 2007 of £20.9 million.
has been a feature of Fiberweb continued ~ We continued to restructure Fiberweb,
in the first half of 2007 and for the year resulting in non-recurring charges an Our underlying profit from continuing
overall. This was exacerbated by delaysin  continuing operations of £103.1 million operations before non-recurring items
profit growth within the US Industrial [2006: £62.4 million) including cash and restructuring costs fell from £27.1
business. Howaver, continuing underlying  costs of £6.3 million (2006: £7.5 million]. million to £13.8 million. Taking into

operating profitability improved in the In addition, the Group recognised a loss account the non-recurring charges,
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the Group reported a total operating loss
on continuing operations of £89.3 million
(2006: £35.3 million}.

Review of Financial KPIs

Continuing underlying operating margins
fell significantly, from 5.4% last year to
2.9%. A full year of standalone PLC costs
in 2007 accounts for £5.4 million of the
year on year drop in underlying operating
profit. Excluding this, operating margins
in 2007 were 4.1% against 5.4% last year.
Continuing operating margins rose from
2.7% 10 3.1% in the second half of the year
as the Industrial business recovery more
than compensated for the challenges
facing the Hygiene business, most notably
in the form of rising raw material prices
and the delayed airlaid line in Korma.

Earnings growth was negative as a resutt
of the margin decline, with continuing
adjusted EPS of 2.6 pence [2006: 5.1 pence
per share].

Similarly, Return on Invested Capital
(ROIC] declined from 4.7% to 2.9%. This is
due to increased capital from recent
investments where returns are only being
generated now or in 2008, and to
disappointing profitability this year.

After allowing for currency movements,
we achieved revenue growth in Industrial
of £8.8 million [4.6%).

However, overall operating cashflow, a
critical measure, fell, from €£44.0 million
to £346.2 million, due to lower profits.
We managed to offset much of the
reduction through disposals and
management of capital expenditure sc
that net debt fell in the year from
£165.3 million to £137.6 million.

Interest Charge and Borrowings

Net finance costs of £10.8 million

were significantly reduced from the
£14.5 million charge in 2006, reflecting
the debt reduction mentiened above and
the full year effect of Fiberweb’s new
capitat structure after demerger.

The Group’s borrowings are mainly under
the Revolving Credit Facility [RCF) provided
by nine relationship banks. As a result of
our reduced profit expectation for 2007
following the previously announced
issues in the US Industrial business, our
bankers agreed the relaxation of the
Group’s original covenants. Fiberweb
continues to comply with these covenants
and monitors actual and forecast
compliance carefutly. Refer to note 22 for
a more detailed explanation of these
covenanis.

Taxation

The reported underlying taxation credit
of £0.1 million [2006: tax charge of

£6.3 million] benefited from significant
credits of £1.1 million due to over
provision of taxes in respect of prior
years, most notably in Germany. After
adjusting for this credit, the underlying
tax charge of £1.0 million is at an
effective rate of 33.3%, which is in line
with our previous expectations. This rate
is a blend of different rates of taxation in
the countries in which Fiberweb
operates. The Group’s rate of taxation

is highest in the US and Germany,

while it benefits from low rates of
taxation in China. The prior year effective
tax rate of close to 50% was high due to
certain deferred tax assets not having
been recognised because their ultimate
recoverability was not sufficiently
assured.

2005 | 2006

.| GROUP

Cash Flow, Net Debt and Liquidity

As noted above, the loss from continuing
operations of £89.3 million was
considerably larger than last year's lass of
£35.3 million. Net cash from operating
activities of £36.9 million [2006: £44.0
millionl is after a cash outflow in respect
of non-recurring restructuring costs of
£6.9 million [2006: £7.5 mitlion). The net
cash outflow in the year was £27.5 million
[2006: an inflow of £10.5 million), after
£32.6 million of capital expenditure [2004:
£48.4 million], £10.4 million of net interest
payments (2006: £7.6 million] and
shareholder dividends of £7.0 million
{2006: dividends paid to former parent
company £5.5 million). The net cash
inflow on the sate of businesses was
£42.0 million [2006: £3.1 million].

Cash frem operating activities benefited
from an inftow of £2.4 million in respect
of reduced warking capital {2006: an
outflow of £3.1 miltion).

During the year we set up cash pooling
and cash management processes which
allowed us to reduce cash and cash
equivatents at year end to £8.2 mitlion,
compared with £35.2 million last year,
shortly after demerger. This was done
without imposing unnecessary constraints
on business operating liquidity.

Balance Sheet Evolution

Capital investment of £32.9 millien was
significantly lower than last year (2006
£53.7 million]. Major elements of the 2007
investment plan were the Korma airlaid
line in Italy, completion of the Sweden
spunbond line and the second airlaid line
in China, the Old Hickory polyester
recycling facility and the first stage
payments in respect of the new spunbond
investment in ltaly.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE VS DEPRECIATION
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Business Review continved

Fixed assets fell substantially from £330.6
million to £266.4 million as a result of the
disposal of the Hygiene Wipes business
[£29.6 million], and the impairment of
assets as set out in note 6. Goodwill also
reduced significantly from £93.0 millien to
£28.0 million; £18.9 million of the decrease
is attributed to the Hygiene Wipes sale,
with the balance having been impaired.
The Group has recognised significant non-
current asset impairments during 2007.
Much of the impairment has been driven
by a careful review of future profit forecasts
and the use of higher discount rates to
reflect an increased execution risk in the
light of the delayed turnaround. The Group's
net asset carrying value now stands at
£185.3 mitlion (2004: £297.0 million).

Inventories were significantly reduced at
£62.7 million, in large part due to the
Hygiene Wipes disposal which accounted
for a reduction of £10.2 million, and the
£5.8 million of non-recurring write-downs
in our US Industrial businesses, but also
due to improved manufacturing and
demand management practices in our US
Industrial business. The cash inflow in
respect of inventary reduction in the
ordinary course of business was £4.3
million. Trade and other receivables were
alsa reduced.

After allowing for the Hygiene Wipes
disposal, trade working capital improved
during the period to 17.9% of sales (2006é:
18.9%], despite the adverse effect of
foreign exchange from the strengthening
of the Euro relative to Sterling which
increased the reported year end value of
working capital.

Foreign Currency Risk

Fiberweb operates globally, with the
bulk of its profits earned outside the UK.
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The Group has significant investments
around the world, with the largest
proportion in the United States. As a result
the Group is subject to translation risk
due to movements between various
currencies {mainiy the US Dotlar and the
Euro] and its reporting currency, Sterling.
In order to mitigate the effect of foreign
exchange movements on its reported
earnings, the Group borrows in the
currencies of its operations, thus creating
a natural hedge for a proportion of its
balance sheet.

The Group can consider hedging a
proportion of the translation risk relating
to earnings when this appears to be
advantageous. There is limited
transactional exposure as there is little
trading across currency borders.

The bulk of raw material sourcing and
other procurements is in the currency of
operation, and the total volume of
Fiberweb's business which is affected by
currencies is less than 10% of its
turnover. It is the Group's policy to hedge
those exposures which are material for a
period of up to 12 months, using a
specified range of financial instruments.
Refer to note 23 of the consclidated
financial statements for more
information on the Group's fareign
currency risk.

Table of Exchange Rates

2007 2006

uso Average 2.00 1.83
Year end 1.99 1.9

Euro Average 1.46 1.47
Year end 1.36 1.48

Credit Risk

The Group has a history of limited

bad debts and it is believed its major
customers are of good credit quality.
Credit insurance is used in most markets.
Refer to note 18 of the consotidated
financial statements for further infarmation
in respect of the Group's credit risk.

Shareholder Fund Movements
Shareholder funds were created upon
demerger from BBA. Fiberweb plc has
equity of £174.3 million (2006: £179.9
million). Of these reserves, £83.1 million
are distributable reserves.

Retirement Benefits

The major retirerment benefits or pension
schemes are now defined contribution
schemes, with the two most notable
exceptions described more fully in

note 25. The Simpsonville, North Carolina
scheme is now closed to new entrants
and benefits are frozen to current
members; the Washougal, Washington
scheme is a relatively small defined
benefit scheme, which remains open.

The net pension liability is calculated by
Fiberweb's actuaries, and is based an the
fair value of the schemes’ assets and the
present value of the schemes’ liabilities.
This net liability decreased by £1.4 million
during the year to £21.8 million.

Principal Risks & Uncertainties
The following are the most significant risks
identified by the Board and management:

1. Raw material costs

Raw materials represent the single most
important input for Fiberweb’s production,
representing approximately 50% of sales.
Although there are a variety of raw
materials used by Fiberweb, the key raw
materials are polypropylene and polyester.




The prices of polypropylene and polyester

are a function of, among other things, the

price of crude oil and monormer and polymer
manufacturing capacity and demand.

Fiberweb's business has been affected

by significant increases in raw material
prices over the last three years and the
high prices of raw materials, especially
polypropylene, have put pressure on
Fiberweh's margins. While Fiberweb has
been able to pass on the majority of
polypropylene price increases to its
customers, albeit with a time lag, there is
still a material exposure to movements in
raw rmaterial prices. Significant increases
in raw materisl prices that cannot be
passed an to custemers could have a
material adverse effect cn Fiberweb's
results and financial condition.

Fiberweb can mitigate some of this risk
through pass-through arrangements
with some customers for polyprepylene
cost changes, selective hedging of
polypropylene purchases and strategic
alliances with polypropylene producers.

2. Customer dependency

Across certain markets in which Fiberweb
operates, there is a high degree of
dependency on maintaining good
relationships with a relatively small number
of key customers. The failure of Fiberweb
and its key customers to renew contracts
could result in a significant reduction in
the demand for its products. This is
particularly the case for Procter & Gamble
which, through a large number of different
contracts and purchasing arrangements
of varying durations, accounted for
approximately 20% of sales in 2007.

Fiberweb has procedures in place to
monitor and mitigate this risk and,

historically, has been generally successful
in agreeing new contracts with key
customers or extending existing contracts.
Fiberweb continues to manage the Procter
& Gamble relationship very closely.

3. Economics, market and trading conditions
Fiberweb’s sales, expenses and
operating results could vary significantly
from period to period as a result of a
variety of factors, some of which are
outside its control. These factors include
general economic conditions, conditions
specific to the market and conditions
specific to Fiberweb. A negative change in
economic conditions in Fiberweb’s
customer markets [including, for
example, a downturn in the US housing
market, deterioration in consumer
confidence or new materials entering
Fiberweb's market placel could adversely
impact Fiberweb’s business,

In addition, significant increases in energy
costs, the cost of transport and distribution
and employment costs in the locations
where Fiberweb’s manufacturing sites are
based could adversely impact the
profitability of Fiberweb.

Furthermore, Fiberweb also operates from
sites based in Asia and Latin America
which may be affected by political
canditions in such regions.

The Group is undergoing a strategic change
process aimed at positioning it in markets
that offer growth, strang margins,
differentiated products and defensible
positions, to offer some protection against
these endemic industry features.

4. Financial covenants
Fiberweb has financial covenants relating
to its main source of long-term funding as

set out in note 22 of the consolidated
financial statements. Fiberweb expects to
comply with these covenants. In the event
that forecast profitability is not achieved,
there is a risk that Fiberweb's long-term
funding would need to be renegotiated.

Fiberweb manages compliance with these
covenants through careful monitoring of
operating performance and cash flows,
regular forecasts of future performance
and tight management of capital
expenditure.

5. Competition

Fiberweb faces competition from global
competitors that provide similar products
to those offered by Fiberweb. Competition
in the industry is based upon: range and
quality of products offered; the ability to
deliver new products; geographical reach;
reputation; price; and client relationships.
The hygiene market is characterised by
large customers and some production
over-capacity. In particular, competition in
the wipes market has been particularly
difficult, with significant over-capacity
and a loss of market share to private
labels leading to decreased profitability.
While these risks have not changed in
nature aver recent periods, prices and
demand in Fiberweb’s markets could be
negatively affected if supply increases
significantly or if important customers
reduce demand or request significantly
reduced prices. In response to a changing
competitive environment, Fiberweb may
elect from time to time to rmake certain
pricing, service or marketing decisions
that could have an adverse effect on its
sales, results of operations and financial
condition.

This risk is mitigated by the actions
described at 3 above.
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Business Review cntinved

Corporate Social
Responsibility
(“CSR”)

Fiberweb endeavours to act in a socially
responsible manner at all times. Qur
businesses adopt procedures appropriate
to and compliant with local laws and
operating conditions. In all our activities,
we give a high priority to employee safety,
and seek to protect the environment,
public and occupational health, and the
community within which we operate,
while promoting profitability and
business growth. Qur training and
development opportunities and initiatives
provide employees with the skills,
resources and knowledge they need to
improve our business performance in
this key area.

We have established policies and
procedures at Group level which provide a
guiding framework for local practices.
These include policies on ethical business
practices, competition and anti-trust,
equal opportunities and anti-harassment

guidelines, and disability, amongst others.

Our Market Abuse and Inside Information
Policies govern behaviour in respect of
share dealing, market abuse and
dissemination of information to the
market.

The nature of our industry, which involves
large and complex manufacturing
equipment, means that the safety and
wellbeing of our people is paramount.
This has been a key area of focus, and
matters relating to health and safety are
discussed at each Board meeting.

2%

As discussed below, we measure and
track our employee safety record.

Our businesses support the local
cemmunities in which they operate.
Examples of some of the initiatives our
people have been involved in during the
year are discussed in more detail below.

Employees

One of our most important resources is
our people. Their exiensive experience
and expertise is matched by their drive for
innovation and excellence and their
passion to improve our performance.

Fiberweb’s policy is to provide equal
opportunities far employment regardless
of gender, race, colour, national origin,
religion, age, marital status, sexual
orientation or disability. The Company
complies with anti-discriminaticn
requirements in retevant jurisdictions.
Disabled people are given full and fair
consideration for employment, training,
career development and promotion,
based on their skills and abilities.

Fiberweb believes in open communication
channels acress its businesses and
employees are regularly provided with
information concerning the performance
and prospects of their tocal business unit
and the global business. Regular global
communications and local language
newsletters are used ta provide a range
of information, and employee councils
and other local forums enable employees’
views to be heard and taken into account.
In 2007, Fiberweb held a Management
Conference to communicate and discuss
the progress, challenges and future

plans of the business. The content was
disseminated to all employees worldwide
via a variety of media and events.

Health and Safety

The organisational changes and
business restructuring which followed
the demerger posed significant
chatlenges to the health and safety
culture within Fiberweb during 2007.
However, we have maintained our
commitment continually to improve our
health and safety performance, and
established streamlined systems and
initiatives which are designed to deliver a
successful health and safety programme.
As a business, we have become more
focused and effective, and the total
commitment of all our employees to
Fiberweb's safety principles remains
visible throughout the organisation, with
accountability being demonstrated at
every functional level.

Qur health and safety programme
includes the following key elements.

1. Safety performance metrics

The health and safety of all Fiberweb
employees remains a high priority and a
core business value. We continue to
commit significant resources at every
Fiberweb facility to promote a safe and
healthy working environment for all
employees. We have instituted initiatives,
poticies and procedures designed to
prevent the occurrence of incidents and
injuries, and to foster a positive safety
awareness culture, and accelerate
performance improvement. We conduct
thorough investigations to identify the root
cause of injuries, and deveiop follow up
plans to eliminate unsafe acts and
conditions, and reduce the potential for
recurrence.

We closely track and evaluate our
facilities’ Recordable Injury Rate ["RIR")
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trends and set targets to menitor and
drive improvement. Fiberweb uses RIR,
which measures the number of
recordable injuries for every 200,000
hours worked, as the primary health and
safety performance metric to create
consisiency globally. Fiberweb employs a
more stringent criteria for defining a
recordable incident than that used by the
US Occupational Safety and Health
Administration ["OSHA"] and the UK
Health and Safety Executive including
injuries where more than one wark day is
lost, as well as incidents that require
certain types of medical treatment,

even if no work days are lost.

Although Fiberweb's RIR performance
slipped during 2007 to 1.8, compared to
1.3 in 2006, our 2007 RIR shows a 50%
improvement over the period since 2001,
It also outperformed the representative
nonwaven industry average of 4.8 by 63%.

Furthermore, seven Fiberweb facilities
globally completed the whole of 2007
without a single recordable injury.
Several facilities have completed more
than three years without a recordable
injury, and longer periods without a lost
work day injury, with the Green Bay
facility surpassing ten years without a
tost work day injury. Indeed, Green Bay
has been recognised at both the national
and state levels for safety and excellence.

Another key metric that we track and
evaluate is the severity of each injury, and
the potential severity of each incident.
During 2007 the number of lost work days
at continuing operations improved slightly
over 2006. However, the general severity
of recordable injuries during 2007, as well
as the potential severity of the types of
injuriesfincidents, improved significantly
over 2006. This trend is especially
encouraging and indicative of an

underlying overall improvement in safety
processes and programmes.

2. “Back to Basics™ {"B2B"} safety initiative
In response to the slippage of safety
perfarmance during the second quarter of
2007, a focused, intensive safety initiative
was developed and implernented to
address the key root causes of injuries,
as well as areas where potentially high
severity injuries/incidents might occur.
These included improving Lock Out/Tag
Out procedures, procedures to reduce
exposure to cutting blades, increasing
Proximity and Surroundings awareness,
and faster incident investigations and
follow up.

The initial impact from the B2B initiative
during the second half year was very
positive. A further initiative that will build
upon the B2B platform will be
implemented during 2008.

3. Behavioural based safety

We have had significant success
developing and implementing behavioural
based safety ("BBS”] systems at a
number of our facilities in the Americas.
We are continuing to enhance and expand
these systems, and are focused on
assisting facilities with implementing BBS
systems that operate within their various
facility-specific cultures.

4. Incident investigation

The incident investigation process was
streamlined during 2007 and focused on
identifying the root cause of incidents.
This was uniformly and successfully
implemented across the Group, resutting
in greater consistency of evaluation and
quicker and more effective remedial
actions.
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B USi ness ReVieW continued

5. Early injury intervention process
Fiberweb expanded its Early Injury
Intervention {"EII"] process to several
additienal facilities during 2007. The EH
process involves partnerships between
the facilities and external accupationat
therapists and physicians to allow medical
personnel to become involved at the
earliest stages of potential injuries, both
waork and non-work related. This often
prevents injuries developing, or reduces
their severity. The process has been very
well received by employees, significantly
improving the safety culture, and in many
cases, the interaction with and morale of
the workfarce. Since its introduction in
2005, it is estimated that the Ell process
has resulted in cost avoidance and cost
savings of more than £750,000.

&. Process safety and management

of change

Whilst Fiberweb facilities are not
regulated under OSHA's process safety
standard, our manufacturing facilities
apply process safety principles and
training to aid understanding and control
of process safety risks and to provide a
working knowledge of process safety
concepts, principles, and tools to those
employees who design, operate, review,
and maintain hazardous systems.
Additionally, a standardised, formal
Process Safety Review/HAZOP process is
used uniformly throughout the
businesses. A number of process safety
reviews and HAZOPS were conducted
during 2007.

7. Health and safely lead team meetings

Fiberweb conducts Health and Safety
Lead Team meetings to ensure the
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continued development of our people, and
to further increase the Group-wide focus
on integrating health and safety issues
into the broader CSR context. These
forums provide the oppartunity to discuss
topics that are directly impacting our
facilities. During 2007, participation in
these meetings was broadened, and the
scope and content {focused more directly
on topics that were immediately critical to
the business, resulting in improved output
from the meetings.

The Environment

Fiberweb is committed to developing and
promoting products and processes that
reduce waste and negative environmental
impacts. This includes both the efficient
use of materiats and energy in design and
product devetopment, and an awareness of
the effect on the environment of
manufacturing processes.

Fiberweb encourages each of its facilities
to develop its own environmental
programmes and to work towards
reducing our enviranmental footprint,

For a number of years, we have focused
on identifying and improving performance
on key areas of environmental impact,
which include waste reduction, energy
consumption, water consumption, the use
of recycled and biodegradable materials,
and packaging.

Although businesses are encouraged to
report all environmental impacts, key
performance infermation is collected twice
a year through the Environmental index,
an electronic data collection system,

and reported annually, Data on the global
business environmental impacts for

2007 will be available during the secand
half of 2008.

Sustainability and the Supply Chain
Fiberweb continues to work actively with
suppliers and customers to design and
develop products that promote sustainable
development principles and do not
adversely impact the environment, health,
or safety of our broader communities,
This is achieved through centralised
procurement or, where this is impractical,
local sourcing. Additionally, Fiberweb is
actively marketing and developing a
number of products utilizing renewable
and recycled materials. The most notable
of these is the NatureWaorks® tngeo®
fibres manufactured from polylactic acid.
These fibres are derived from corn, an
annually renewable and biodegradable
raw material. The fibres are compostable
in standard compaosting facilities. In
additien, the nonwoven material
manufactured from these fibres reduces
fossil fuel consumption and generates
less carbon dioxide [greenhouse gases)
than the alternatives.

During 2007, Fiberweb made a substantial
investment in a new polyester recycling
plant at Old Hickory. The plant has the
capacity to recycle approximately 14
million pounds of polyester per year, thus
saving roughly 21% of the plant's overall
polyester requirement. The reduction
brought about by this major recycling
initiative will have a significant impact in
terms of energy, environment, cost and
sustainabitity.

At Bidim™, our plant in Brazil, 60% of all
preduction uses recycled bottle flakes




from soft drink bottles to produce
polyester nonwovens for use in our
products. The amount of flakes used is
equivalent tc 60 million 2 litre bottles,
which would otherwise go into landfill.

EU REACH Regulation

During 2007, Fiberweb created an internal
taskforce to lead its efforts in developing
an approach for ensuring compliance with
the EU Chemicals Registration, Evaluation
and Authorization of Chemicals [REACH)
Regutation EC1907/2005. Virtually all
Fiberweb's products are defined as
“articles” under REACH, and are therefore
exermnpt from registration. However,
Fiberweb's REACH taskforce will identify
all raw materials, packaging materials and
process auxiliaries used in the manufacture
of its products that are sold, imported,
distributed or otherwise marketed into
Europe that meet the REACH registration
thresholds, and will contact the
manufacturers and suppliers of these
substances to confirm that they intend

to register those materials. The taskforce
is on track to have contacted all

suppliers by early 2008 and to determine
registration status by the Novermmber 2008
deadline.

The Community

Our businesses are committed to
supporting their communities across a
range of organisations and charities.
Some examples of initiatives in 2007 are:

North America

* United Way. Our North American
businesses supported United Way,
a nationally recognised, community-
based organisation that provides local

Fiberweb has a
small volume
business based on
biopolymers from
renewable sources,
which is growing
rapidly.

Using renewable and
biodegradable resources

funding to local non-profit organisations
across the US. This support is provided
through employee donations.

Habitat for Humanity. Qur support for
Habitat for Humanity comes through
the supply of volunteers and materials
to build low cost affordable housing.
We have sponsored five houses over
the past five years, providing more
than 100 volunteers for each house.
Qur Typar™ housewrap was used in the
construction process.

Special Olympics. We provide
contributions and volunteers for the
Special Olympics, an event to build
self-esteem, confidence, courage and
social skills for mentally and physically
disabled people.

We have also supported a range of
national charities in the field of cancer

research, various veterans groups and
many different community organisations.

South America

¢ Bidim, in Brazil, supports a number of
local projects to promote the arts and
culture in remote or poor areas.

Europe

* Through the Alessi Foundation, a non-
profit organisation recognised by the
Italian Government, our businesses in
ltaly have “adopted™ 15 boys in India.

+ Fiberweb Sweden sponsors a children’s
cancer charity and supports work
projects and other activities in local
schaools.

China

¢ Fiberweb China participated in various
activities to promote the arts, sport
and youth in 2007.
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Board of Directors

THE BOARD CONSISTS OF THE CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND THREE INDEPENDENT NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS.

1. Malcolm Coster (63

Non executive Chairman,
Chairman, Nomination Committee

He joined Fiberweb as Chairman-
designate in June 2006, was appointed
to the Board on 30 August 2006 and was
appointed Chairman with effect from

the demerger. He is Chairman of

MTL Instruments Group Plc and

DMW Group and a non executive director
of Universe Group plc. He is also a
member of the International Advisory
Board of Mocre, Clayton & Co.,

an international financial advisory group.
He was formerty a non executive director
of the Performing Right Society and
British Technology Group. An engineer
by training, he was President of Europe,
Middle East and Africa for UNISYS
Corporation between 1994 and 1997

and Chairman of UNISYS Limited and a
member of the board, and an executive
partner, at Coopers & Lybrand between
1986 and 1994.

2. Daniel Dayan (44)
Chief Executive Officer

He joined Fiberweb in June 2005 as its
Chief Executive Officer and was appointed
to the Board on 21 July 2006. Between
1994 and 2005 he was employed by Novar
plc, in a variety of general management
and functional positions, including Head
of Corporate Development and Chief
Executive Officer of Novar's largest division,
Intelligent Building Systems. He was a
director of Novar plc from January 2004
until its acquisition by Honeywell in March
2005. Earlier in his career, he worked in
manufacturing management with ICI plc
and as a management consultant for
Arthur D_ Little. He is a chartered
mechanical engineer.

30

3. Daniel Abrams [52)
Chief Financial Officer

He joined Fiberweb in February 2008

as Director and Chief Financial Officer.
Prior to jeining Fiberweb he was most
recently Chief Financial Officer of
Cambridge Display Technology Inc

until July 2006 and was Finance Director
of Xenova Group plc between 1997 and
2005. He has also held senior finance
roles with Diageo plc and PepsiCo Inc.
He holds an MA in law from Cambridge
and qualified as a chartered accountant
with Arthur Andersen & Co. He has been
a member of the Financial Reporting
Review Panel since January 2007.

4. Peter Hickman (44}

Non executive director
Chairman, Audit Committee

He was appointed to the Board on

31 August 2006 and is Chairman of the
Audit Committee. He is the Group Risk
Director for HBOS ple and was previously
responsible for the group’s financial
reporting, strategic planning and tax
affairs. Prior to joining HBOS ple, he was
a partner at Ernst & Young having worked
there since 1985. He is a qualified
Chartered Accountant, a member of the
Chartered Institute of Bankers in
Scotland, and has an MA in engineering.

5. Richard Stillwell (58]

Non executive director,
Senior Independent Director
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

He was appointed to the Board on

30 August 2006 and is the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and the
Senior Independent Director. A practising
barnister, he was a non executive director
of BBA Group plc from 1998 until 2006
and Chairman of its Remuneration
Committee. He is also a non executive
director of St lves plc and Penna
Consulting Ple. Until August 2000, he was
Executive Vice-President Industrial
Specialities at Imperial Chemical
Industries plc, where he had held various
posts since 1974,

6. Brian Taylorson (52}
Non executive director

He was appointed to the Board on

25 September 2004. He is currently
Finance Director of Elementis plc, a global
speciality chemicals company, a position
he has held since April 2003. Prior to
jeining Elementis in 2002, he was Head of
European Chemicals M&A at KPMG
Corporate Finance. From 1983 to 2000 he
held a number of finance positions at
Bow Chemical Company. He is a qualified
Chartered Accountant and a member of
the Association of Corporate Treasurers.




A Strong Board - Complementary mix of skills and experience
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Directors’ Report

N

The directors present their annual report together with the financial
statements and auditor’s report for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Principal Activities and Business Review

Fiberweb is an international group of businesses dedicated to the
development, manufacturing and supply of specialist nonwoven
fabrics. It operates principally in Europe, North and Seuth America, and
Asia/China, and has a strong portfolio of products and brands, and
market leading positions in several countries.

Fiberweb plc is the Group holding company. The subsidiary and
associated undertakings principally affecting the profits or net assets
of the Group in the year are listed on page 92.

The Company is required to set out in this report a fair review of the
business of the Group during the financial year ended 31 December
2007, including an analysis of the position of the Group at the end of the
financial year and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group [known as a ‘Business Review’). The information that
fulfits the requirements of the Business Review can be found in the
pages listed below, which are incorperated in this report by reference.

Pages
Review of Results 12
Key Performance Indicators 15
Operations 17to 21
Financial Review 22to 25
Risks and Uncertainties 24 and 25
Corporate Social Responsibility (including employee,
envirgnmental, social and community matters) 2610 29

The Business Review also includes a description of the vision and
strategy of the Group, and its markets and external environment, an
pages 12 to 15, and is supplemented by the Chairman’s and Chief
Executive’s Statements,

Results and Dividends

The continuing underlying profit before taxation of the Group was
£3.0 millian [2006: £12.6 million]. The full results for the year, which
were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2008, are set
out in the accompanying financial statements and the notes thereto on
pages 46 to 87.

An interim dividend of 1.70 pence per ordinary share was paid on
9 Novernber 2007. The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend for 2007 of 2.50 pence per share {2006: 3.95 pence), making
a totat for the year of 4.20 pence [2006: 3.95 pencel. Subject to
sharehalder approval, the dividend will be payable on 27 May 2008 to
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 25 April 2008.

A dividend reinvestment plan ["DRIP"} is in place that allows
shareholders to purchase additional shares in the Company using
their cash dividend. Further information regarding the plan, including
participation in respect of the 2007 final dividend, is set out in
Shareholder Information on page 96.

Disposals

On 25 May 2007 the Group disposed of its Hygiene Wipes business
comprising operations in the US, Spain and Italy manufacturing
wipes for baby care, personal care and household applications, for a
consideration of Euro 45 million.

On 29 June 2007, the Group disposed of its cotton bleaching
facility at Griswoldville, Massachusetts for a consideration of
US$3.6 millian.

Capital Structure

Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company,
in¢luding movements during the year and the number of shares in
issue at the end of the year, are shown in note 28 on page 82. The
Company has one class of ordinary share which carries no right to
fixed income, and each share carries the right to one vote at general
meetings of the Company. The rights attaching to the ordinary shares
are defined in the Company’s Articles of Association. All issued shares
are fully paid.

There are no specific restrictions on the transfer of shares, or on the
size of a holding, or on voting rights, which are all matters governed
by the Articles of Association. The directors are not aware of any
agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that may result
in restrictioens on the transfer of securities or on voling rights,
Na persen has any special rights of control over the Company’s share
capital, so far as the directors are aware.

Details of the significant holdings of ordinary shares are shown in the
table of Substantial Shareholdings below. The shares held by the
Fiberweb Employee Benefit Trust have no special rights with regard to
cantrol of the Company.

The rules for the appointment and replacement of directors are
centained in the Company's Articles of Assaciation, the Combined
Code, the Companies Acts and related legislation. The Articles
themselves may be amended by special resolution of the
shareholders.

The powers of the Company's directors, including any powers
in relation to the issuing or buying back by the Company of its shares,
are described in the Company's Articles of Association, the
Combined Code, the Companies Acts and related legislation, and in the
Schedule of Powers Reserved for the Board which is on the Company’s
website. ‘

The Company has various agreements that take effect, alter or
terminate upon a change of control of the Company, such as
commercial contracts, bank facility agreements [including the $439.5
million multi-currency revelving credit facilityl, property lease
arrangements and employee share plans. The directors are not aware
of any agreements between the Company and its directors or
employees that provide for compensation for loss of office or
employment that occurs because of a takeover bid.

Authority to Purchase Own Shares

At the Annual General Meeting held on 2 May 2007, shareholders
approved a resolution authorising the Company to make market
purchases of up to approximatety 10 per cent of its existing ordinary
share capital. The authority will expire at the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting to be held on 2 May 2008 unless renewed.
Accordingly, a special resolution to renew this autharity will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, details of which
are set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting enclosed with
this report.

The Company did not purchase any of its issued ordinary shares during
the year under the authority mentioned above.
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Substantial Shareholdings and Yoting Rights

At the close of business on 24 February 2008, the Company has been |

notified of the following interests in voting rights attached to shares
under Disclosure and Transparency Rule 5.

Nuember of % of

voting rights  total voting

Name of Holder [shares) rights
Franklin Rescurces, Inc. 18,583,298 15.18%
F&C Asset Management plc 14,154,019 11.56%
Schroder Investment Management Lid 12,226,824 9.99%
The Gotdman Sachs Group, inc. 9,436,063 7.71%
J.P. Morgan Asset Management UK} Ltd 6,428,472 5.25%
Sterling Strategic Value Limited 6,201,119 5.06%
Investec Asset Management Limited 6,140,704 5.02%
Aviva plc and its subsidiaries 5,887,787 4.81%
Standard Life Investments 5,257,928 4.29%
Barclays Bank Plc 4,857,103 3.97%
Fidelity International Limited 4,055,496 331%
One East Partners Master, LLP 3,876,725 317%

Property Values

The directors are of the opinion that the market values of the Group’s
properties are not substantially different from the values included in
the Group's financial staternents.

Going Concern

After making enquiries, the directors have formed a judgement, at the
time of approving the financial statements, that there is a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason the
directors continue to adopt the gaing concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

Charitable and Political Donations
The Company made no political donations during the year. Group
donations to charities worldwide were £88,000 (2006: £75,000), with UK
charities receiving £nil (2006: £nil).

Supplier Payment Policy

It is the Company’s and Group's policy to settle terms of payment with
suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction, to ensure that
suppliers are aware of the terms of payment and to abide by terms of
payment. Trade creditors of the Group at 31 December 2007 were
equivalent to 47 days’ purchases [2004: 43 days] based on the average
daily amount invoiced by suppliers during the year.

Board of Directors

The names of the directors of the Company as at the date of this report,
tagether with their dates of appointment, their biographical details
and details of their skills and experience, are shown on pages 30
and 31.

Simon Bowles resigned as a director on 31 January 2008. Daniel
Abrams was appointed a directer on 1 February 2008 and offers
himself for etection by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in
accordance with the Articles of Association, Richard Stillwell will retire
by rotation under the Articles and offers himself far re-election by
sharehalders. Mr Stillwell does not have a service contract with the
Company. The Board continues to believe that Mr Stillwell, as a non
executive director, makes an effective and valuable contribution to the
Board and has demonstrated commitment to the role.

34

Directors’ Interests

Details of the directors’ service contracts, remuneration and interests
in the shares of the Company are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 3% to 43, Other than their service
contracts, no director had any material interest in any contract of
significance with any Group company at any time during the year.

Directors’ Indemnities

The Company entered into a Deed of Indemnity with each of the
directors of the Company on 19 October 2006 and each Deed of
Indemnity remains in force at the date of this report. The terms of each
of these deeds are identical and reflect the statutory provisions on
indemnities introduced by the Companies [Audit, Investigations and
Community Enterprise] Act 2004. Under the terms of each deed,
the Company undertakes to indemnify the relevant director, to the
fullest extent permitted by law, against any and all liability, howsoever
caused lincluding by that director’s own negligence), sutfered or
incurred by that director in the course of acting as a director or
employee of the Company or any member of the Group. The Company
entered inte a Deed of Indemnity with Daniel Abrams on identical terms
on 1 February 2008,

Similarly, the Company entered into a Deed Poll of Indemnity in favour
of the Company Secretary and other persons discharging managerial
responsibility on 3¢ October 2004, The terms of the deed poll are sirnilar
to the terms of the Deed of Indemnity entered into with the directors.

The Deeds of Indemnity, Deed Poll of Indemnity and the Company's
Articles of Association are available for inspection during normal
business hours at the Company's registered office and will also be
available far inspection at the Annual General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting

The Company's second Annual General Meeting will be held at Baker
& McKenzie LLP, 100 New Bridge Street, London EC4V 6JA on Friday,
2 May 2008 at 11.30am. Enclosed with this report is the Notice of
Annual General Meeting, which sets out the resolutions to be considered
and approved at the meeting. These are explained in a letter from the
Chairman, which accampanies the Notice.

Disclosure of Information to Auditors
Each of the persens who is a director at the date of the approval of
this annual report confirms that: :

e S0 far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

e-  The director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken
as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditors are
aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of Section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985 [as
amended].

Auditors
A resolutien to re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

This repart was approved by the Board on 24 February 2008 and is
signed on its behalf by:

Tony Holland
Company Secretary

Registered Office:

1 Victoria Villas
Richmond on Thames
London

TW? 26W
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Fiberweb plc is committed to complying with the best practice
principles of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance adopted by
the Financial Reporting Council in June 2006 | "the Cade"). During the
year ended 31 December 2007, the Company has complied in full with
the provisions set out in Section 1 of the Code, except in respect of
Code provision A.6.1, where a Board Performance Evaluation was
started, but not completed, during the year. This is expected to be
completed in the first quarter of 2008,

The Role of the Board

The Board as a whole has responsibility for the success of the
Company. The Board meets regularly to determine the strategic
direction of the Group and to review operating, financial and risk
performance. Specific responsibilities are delegated to Board
Committees as described later in this report.

There is a formal schedule of matters reserved to the Board that
includes approval of the following:

e the Group’s long term objectives and strategy;

®  acqguisitions, disposals and capital expenditure projects above
certain thresholds;

e all gquarantees and treasury related transactions above certain
thresholds;

o thefinancial staterments and assessment of financial performance;
e  the Company's dividend policy;

e  transactions involving the issue or purchase of Company shares;
e the Group's risk management strategy;

e legal actions brought by or against the Group above certain
thresholds;

e  appointments to the Board and the appointment of the Campany
Secretary; and

e Group poticies and the scope of delegations to Baard Committees
and executive management of the Group.

The full schedule of matters reserved for Board approval can be viewed
on the Company’s website at www.fiberweb.com. The schedule of
matters is reviewed on an annual basis. Matters autside the scope of
the formal schedule of matters are decided by management in

accordance with the delegated authority limits within the Group
Authority Limits Policy.

In arder to ensure that all matters are given due consideration, the
Board has adopted an annual schedule of agenda items, which is
reviewed yearly.

These in¢lude:

* annual strategy review;

¢ divisional updates and business plans;
& annual budget setting and approval;

s review of Group palicies; and

*  patent portfolio review.

At each meeting, the Board receives information from the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on the performance and
results of the Group and individual operating businesses, the Group's
current financial position and updates on any ather significant matters.
The Divisional Presidents and Global Head of Research and
Development present to the Board at least once a year. In addition,
other senior managers such as the Head of Treasury, Head of HR and
Change and Head of Legal update the Board on developments in their
area of responsibility.

The directors are generally provided with detailed and comprehensive
papers in advance of each Board meeting. The agenda is set by the
Chairman in conjunction with the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for the timeliness
and quality of information and is responsible for advising the Beard on
corporate governance matters and Board procedures. All directors
have access to the advice and the services of the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary acts as secretary to all Board Committees.

The directors may take independent professional advice at the
Company's expense in relation to their responsibilities as directors.
None of the directors obtained independent professional advice in this
regard in the period under review.

The number of Board and Board Committee meetings held during the
year and individual attendance by directors at those meetings are set
out in the table below.

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Full B Committee Committee
i ek T e ]

Attendance:

Malcolm Coster Chairman 12 5 4 t

Daniel Dlayan CEO 12 5 4 1

Simon Bowles CFO 12 5 3 -

Peter Hickman Non executive director 12 5 4 1

Richard Stillwell Non executive director 12 5 4 1

Brian Taylorson Non executive director 12 5 4 -

Note:

Malcolm Coster, Daniel Dayan and Simon Bowles all attended meetings of the Audit Committee and Rermuneration Committee at the invitation of the

Chairmer: of those Committees.
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| Corporate Governance continued

The Board, Board Balance and Independence

The Board comprises two executive directors and four non executive
directors who contribute a wide range of complementary skills and
experience. Details of each director’s skills and experience are set out
on pages 30 to 31.

The Chairman of the Board is Malcolm Coster. The Chairman’s other
significant commitments are set out on page 30. Since the last report,
the Chairman has resigned as a non executive director of the
Performing Right Society and been appointed a non executive director
of Universe Group PLC.

The Chief Executive Officer is Daniel Dayan. Richard Stillwell is the
Senior Independent Director. He is available to shareholders if they
have concerns that the normal channels of contact with the Chairman
or Chief Executive Officer would not resalve.

The Board believes that there is an appropriate balance of executive
and non executive directors on the Board, without one individual or
group dominating the Board's deciston-making process.

The Board has determined all its non executive directors to be
independent in character and judgement. The non executive Chairman,
Malcolm Coster, was considered independent in character and
judgement on appointment. Whilst the assessment of independence
is not required for a serving Chairman under the Code, the Board
considers its Chairman to be independent, notwithstanding his fee
structure, which allows for the payment of his fees in cash and shares.
Further details of the Chairman’s fee arrangement are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 43.

The Board will assess the independence of its non executive directors
on a continuous basis.

Role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and
there is a clear division of responsibilities between these roles. In
accordance with the Code, the Board has adopted a formal written
staterment of the division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Dfficer.

The Chairman leads the Board and ensures the effective engagement
and contribution of all non executive and executive directors. In
conjunction with the Company Secretary, he is responsible for ensuring
that directors receive information in an accurate, clear and timely
manner, and for promoting effective decision making. He is also
responsible for ensuring that directors continually update their skills
and knowledge. The Chairman has active contact and involvernent with
the executive directors and the affairs of the Company. This serves to
keep him abreast of current business issues but also provides the
executive directors with access to an independent opinion on day to day
business decisions.

The Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for the day to day
management of the Group's businesses and acts in accordance with the
authority delegated by the Board. He is responsible for developing and
proposing a strategy for consideration and adoption by the Board and
for implementing the Board's strategies, decisions and policies. He is
also responsible for ensuring that the business strategy and activities
are effectively communicated and promoted within and outside the
business, building positive relationships with the Company's
stakeholders and for creating and developing the Company's culture.

Board Appointments

Primary responsibility for planned and progressive refreshing of the
Board lies with the Board. The Board, through the wark of the
Nomination Committee, ensures that there is a formal, rigorous and
transparent procedure for the appointment of new directors. Further
details of the work of the Nomination Committee are set out below.
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Appointments of nan executive directors are made by the Board for
an initial term of three years, which is subject to the usual regulatory
provisions and continued satisfactory performance of their duties. Re-
appointment for a further term is not automatic but may be made by
mutual agreement,

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, all directors
are subject to re-election by shareholders at least every three years.

On appointment, all non executive direciors are advised of the time
commitment expected of them to fulfil their duties.

Letters of appeintment for the non executive directors are availabte for
inspection on request.

Board Induction and Professional Development

The Board has adopted a formal written programme for the induction
of new directors to familiarise themselves with the Group’s businesses,
understand the goals, objectives and mission of the Company and
develop an awareness and understanding of the views of the
Company’s major shareholders. The programme is also structured to
enable the new director to gain an understanding of his or her own
specific duties and responsibilities. The programme, developed in
accordance with the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators guidelines on Board induction, is made up of a
combination of selected written corporate information, meetings with
key senior management and site visits, and can be tailored to meet
each new director’s specific needs, skills and experience. Where a non
executive director is also being appointed a member of one of the
Board Committees, his or her induction will cover matters such as the
role of and terms of reference of the relevant Committee.

In order to maintain, develop and update directors’ knowledge and
capabilities, the Board and its Committees are briefed on corporate
governance and regulatory developments as they arise. The Audit
Committee is briefed on technical and accaunting matters as a matter
of routine at each meeting by senior management and the external
auditors. The directors receive comprehensive training in respect of
their statutory duties, the disclosure obligations under the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules, and the Listing Rules. A continuous
programme of development will occur as needs require.

The Board regards performance evaluation as an important part of
monitoring and improving its effectiveness, and a formal internal
appraisal of the Board and individual directars {but not the Board
Committees) was started during the year. This is expected to be
completed in the first quarter of 2008.

Board Committees

The terms of reference of the principat Committees of the Board, the
Remuneration, Audit and Nomination Committees, are available on
the Company’s website at www.fiberweb.com

Remuneration Committee
The details of the Remuneration Committee are given in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 39 to 43.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non executive
directors and is chaired by Peter Hickman. Its ather members are
Richard Stillwell and Brian Taylorson.

Both Peter Hickman and Brian Taylorson are qualified Chartered
Accountants and currently hold seniar finance roles in major UK
listed public companies.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include all matters
listed in Code provision C.3.2. The terms of reference are reviewed
annually by the Audit Committee and referred to the Board for formal
approval and adoption.




The Audit Ccmmittee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of external auditors and their
remuneration. The Committee reviews the external auditors’
independence, and considers the nature, scope and results of the
auditors” work and the provision of non-audit services by them.
The Committee focuses particularly on compliance with legal and
other regulatory requirements, accounting standards and ensuring
that an effective system of internal controls is maintained. The
Committee may consider any financial matter that may have an impact
on the Company. The ultimate respensibility for reviewing and
approving the annual and interim financial statements and biannuat
trading statements remains with the Board.

The Committee normally meets not less than three times a year at
dates to coincide with the financial reporting cycle. The Committee
also meets privately with the external auditors at least twice 3 year
and with the Head of Internal Audit once. The Chairman may call a
meeting at the request of the executive directors or that of the external
auditors.

In addition to Committee members, the Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Group Financial Controller,
Head of Internal Audit and the external auditors normally attend
meetings at the invitation of the Chairman.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Audit Committee
considered the {oltowing matters and took the following actions in the
discharge of its duties:

e reviewed and advised the Board on the financial statements in
the 2007 report and accounts;

s reviewed the cantrol and mitigation of the Group’s financial and
business risks;

e discussed and agreed the nature and the scope of work to be
performed by the external auditors;

e reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control systems
established by management and reviewed the Board's sign-off
procedure on the system of internal controls, which are set out in
more detail below;

e reviewed the scope of the work of the internal audit function and
the manner in which internal audit services will be provided in 2008;

s received and reviewed reports from the internal audit function
on the work undertaken during the year;

e reviewed the annual schedule of agenda items to coincide with the
Group's financial calendar;

e reviewed the policy on the provision of non-audit services by the
external auditors and assessed the independence of the auditors;

& reviewed the management procedures to enable the directors to
provide the confirmation regarding audit information required
under Section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985; and

e reviewed the arrangements by which concerns can be raised by
staff in respect of possible matters of financial impropriety or
other matters. :

Auditor independence and Effectiveness

One of the key responsibilities of the Committee is to ensure that the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors is safeguarded.
The Committee has adopted a policy on the provision of non-audit
services that is in line with the Accounting Practice Board's Ethical
Standards. This policy is reviewed annually. It prohibits the external
auditors from providing certain additional services to the Group such
as bookkeeping, internal audit, valuations, actuarial services and

financial systems design and implementation. The external auditors
are, however, permitted to provide assurance services such as
reporting accountant work and tax services.

As a matter of principle, the Group’s policy is not to use the external
auditors for acquisition and due diligence work. However, where the
Group considers it appropriate ar conflicts arise, suppliers other than
the preferred supplier may be asked to tender and this may include the
external auditors.

In accordance with the policy, the Chairman of the Committee, or, in
his absence, another designated member of the Committee is required
to pre-approve certain permitted services that exceed the financial
limits set out in the policy, A summary of the overall level of non-audit
fees paid to the external auditors is presented at each Audit Cammittee
meeting.

Details of the amounts paid to the external auditors, Deloitte & Touche
LLP, for non-audit services provided during the year are given in note
5 on page 5%. The Audit Committee is satisfied that neither the non-
audit services provided by, nor the level of fees paid to, Deloitte &
Touche LLP in respect of those services impairs their objectivity or
independence.

Internal Audit

During the year the decision was taken to outsource the
provision of the Group's internal audit function to a professional
services firm. A comprehensive review process was undertaken
resulling in the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to
fulfit this function commencing on 1 July 2007. Previously, the Group's
internal audit activity was undertaken by the BBA Group Internal Audit
department.

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of internal
control and risk management, and reviews its effectiveness on an
annual basis.

The implementation and maintenance of risk management is the
responsibility of the executive directors and other senier management
and a system has been established to identify, evaluate and manage
the significant risks that the Group faces. The system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The main elernents of the Group’s internal control system are as follows:

1. The Board - The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
system of internal control. As mentioned above in this report, the
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters reserved
for its approval and the Board Committees operate within
delegated terms of reference. This structure includes the Audit
Committee which, with the Chief Financial Officer, reviews the
effectiveness of the internal financial and operating control
environment of the Group. All acquisitions and disposals of
companies or businesses are approved by the Board.

2. Strategic and Business Planning - The Group and each business
unit produce and agree a business plan each year against which
the performance of the business is regularly monitored.

3. Monthly Management Accounts - Detailed monthly management
accounts are submitted to management that measure actual
perfarmance against budget. A manthly report is provided to the
Board, highlighting key issues and summarising the detailed
financial information provided by the operating units. Forecasts
of sales, profits and aperating cash are reviewed quarterly and
presented to the Board.
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4. Internal Audit - Undertakes a programme of reviews aligned to
the business risks. The Audit Committee receives a report from
internal audit at each meeting that includes opinions on the
adequacy and effectiveness of cantrols by site, a summary of key
issues, work issues and follow up actions. The Head of Internal
Audit has direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the internal
audit activities, including the scope of work, authority and
resources of the internal audit function.

5. System of Control Procedures and Delegated Authorities -
There are clearly defined guidelines and approval limits for capital
operating expenditure and other key business transactions and
decisions that have been approved by the Board. A detailed matrix
defines the levels of authority for the Group’s senior management
and their direct reports in relation to acquisitions, capital
expenditure, commercial and employee contracts and treasury
matters.

6. Treasury Policies and Procedures — Detailed procedures exist
for the investments, currency and commodity hedging, granting of
guarantees and the use of Treasury products. .

7. Risk Identification, Monitoring and Management Procedures -
A process is in place to collate schedules of risks for each key site,
which are then reviewed by the Divisional Presidents and
consolidated into a schedule of the significant divisional level risks.
Simitarly, key functional heads produce risk schedules for their
own areas. Risks identified cover business, financial, compliance,
operational as well as environmental, social and governance risks.
These risk schedules, which include an assessment of their
likelihood and impact, are presented at a minimum of two
Fiberweb Executive Team meetings each year for review. The
Fiberweb Executive Team is responsible for confirming that the
plans to mitigate those risks are satisfactory and for improving
internal controls and processes. The Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for reporting the work of the Fiberweb Executive Team
on risk management to the Board.

8. Organisatienal Structure - Structures are in place at Head Office
and divisional level that clearly define responsibilities for
operational, accounting, taxation, treasury, legal, company
secretarial and inserance functions,

9. Group Finance Manual - The Group has adopted the policies that
were appropriate to it that were previously utilised under the BBA
Group. As such, it has a full set of accounting policies and
procedures in force.

10. Group Policies - A new Group Policy Manual was adopted in 2007
and communicated to all businesses. A biannual review of
campliance with these policies by Group companies has been
introduced and the results will be communicated to the Fiberweb
Executive Team and the Board.

11. Health, Safety and Environmental Manual (HS&E) - A Group
Health, Safety and Environmental Manual details policies,
standards and procedures that are applicable throughout the
Group. Further information is included in the Business Review
on pages 26 to 29. A monthly report is prepared and circulated to
the Fiberweb Executive Team on environmental and safety
matters and the Board receives a report on HS&E matters at each
Board meeting.

The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group and
that it has been in place for the period under review up to the date of
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approval of the annual report and accounts. The Group's system is
reviewed regularly by the Baard and accords with the Turnbull guidance.
Any significant faitings or weaknesses that come to management’s and
the Board's attention are addressed. The restructuring undertaken from
the end of March following the announcement of the Hygiene Wipes
dispesal exposed probtems in the Americas industrial business, where
poor control of costs and margins contributed to the non-recurring write
down of inventory of £4.7 million at our largest site in Old Hickory. In
response, management was strengthened and a thorough review of
inventory controls and processes was undertaken. The Board confirms
that the control weaknesses identified have now been substantially
addressed. Steps are being taken to embed internal control and risk
management further into the operations of the business

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Malcolm Coster and its other
members are Daniel Dayan, Richard Stillwell and Peter Hickman.

The Committee has responsibility for identifying and nominating
candidates for Board vacancies and making recommendations to the
Board in relation to the appointment of the Company's executive and
non executive directors.

Before making an appointment, the Committee will evaluate the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and, in light
of this evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities
required for a particular appointment. Use will be made of external
recruitment consultants and the final decision regarding appointment
rests with the Board.

The Chairman will not participate in any discussion relating to the
appointment of his successor.

One Nomination Committee meeting occurred during the year to set
the criteria and capabilities required for the appointment of a new
Chief Financial Officer to replace Simon Bowles. The selection involved
an appropriate external recruitment consultant,

Shareholder Relations

The Board as a whole is kept up to date on the views of Fiberweb's
major shareholders. This is achieved through reqular meetings during
the year between the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer
and major shareholders to discuss matters of mutual interest that are
reported to the Board. Broker reports are routinely circulated to the
Board.

The Chairman and Senior Independent Director met with major
shareholders during the year and the other non executive directors
were available for these meetings. The Board considers that its Senior
independent Director has an understanding and awareness of the
issues and concerns of major shareholders.

Both institutianal and private shareholders are welcome at the
Annual General Meeting. The meeting pravides an opportunity for
shareholders to discuss with executive and non executive directors
any issues concerning the Company and its activities, The Chairman
of the Board and the Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and
MNomination Committees are available to answer questions at the
meeting.

The Company counts all proxy votes cast in respect of the Annual
General Meeting and makes available the proxy voting figures on each
resolution. The voting results where resolutions are passed on a show
of hands and details of all proxy votes cast prior to the meeting are
available on the Company’s website. The results of the meeting are
announced to the market via a Regulatory Information Service.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

This Repaort to shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2007
has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 7A to the Companies
Act 1985 and the applicable Listing Rukes. A resolution to approve the
Report will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
at which the financial statements will also be appraved. The vote will
have an advisory status in respect of the remuneration policy and
overall remuneration packages and will not be specific to individual
levels of remuneration.

Certain parts of the Directors’ Remuneration Report are audited.
Information that is audited is stated as such in the relevant section.

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists entirely of independent nan
executive directors and is chaired by Richard Stitlwell. Its other
members are Peter Hickman and Brian Taylorson.

The Committee normally meets no less than three times a year and
has delegated responsibility for determining and agreeing with the
Board the framework or broad policy for the remuneration of all
executive directors and other senior executives, and for determining,
within the agreed terms of reference, specific remuneration packages
for each of the executive directors including pension rights, any
compensation payments and the implementation of executive incentive
schemes. No director is invalved in decisions relating to his own
remuneration. During the period under review, the Remuneration
Committee met on four occasions.

The Committee's full terms of reference, which are available on the
Company’s website at www.fiberweb.com, are reviewed annually by the
Committee and referred to the Board for formal approval and adoption.

FThe Committee is responsible for:

s making recommendations to the Board on remuneration policy as
applied io the Company’s executive directors and other senior
manageiment;

e determining total remuneration packages for the executive
directors and other designated members of the executive
management including base pay. performance-related bonus
schernes, long-term incentives and other share awards;

e overseeing major changes in employee benefit structures
throughout the Group;

& reviewing the design and operation of all share incentive ptans for
Board and sharehalder approval, including approving granis of
share awards to directors and senior managers; and

s reporting to the Board and external stakeholders on matters
within its responsibilities.

The Committee has appointed New Bridge Street Consultants LLP,
an independent remuneration consultancy, as external advisors. New
Bridge Street Consultants has provided the Committee with advice in
respect of certain aspects of main board and senior executive
remuneration. New Bridge Street Consultants has pravided no other
services to the Company during the year.

The Committee also consults with the Chairman, who is not a member
of the Remuneration Cormmittee, the Chief Executive Officer and the
Head of HR and Change, save in respect of matters directly relating to
their own remuneration.

Remuneration Policy

Fiberweb’s remuneration policy is that the remuneration of the
Company's executive directors and other senior management should
be designed to attract and retain executives of high calibre so that the
Company can be managed effectively to the benefit of its stakeholders.
Remuneration levels for senior executives are set taking into account
the remuneration practices found in other UK listed companies of
similar size, geographical spread and complexity, the econamic
realities of the Company’s own specific circumstances [in particular the

current stage of the Company's development and the international
nature of its business operationsl, together with pay and conditions
elsewhere in the Group. The Committee is conscious of the need to
remain ¢ompetitive in the different geographic areas in which the
Company operates. In determining its remuneration policy, the
Committee also takes account of UK corporate governance best
practice and market practice.

The policy is to pay base salaries and total remuneration around the
median level for ‘on-plan’ performance, and to provide the oppartunity,
via bonuses and long-term incentive plans, for executives to be
rewarded at the upper quartile for the delivery of outstanding levels of
performance.

The Committee has discretion to consider corporate performance on
environmental, social and governance matters when setting the
rermuneration of executive directors but has chosen not to take these
into account in setting performance targets for 2008 in the belief that
the structures in place neither encourage nor reward inappropriate
behaviour in this regard.

The Cammittee considers that the executive directors’ remuneration
packages contain a suitable balance of fixed and variable performance
related pay, and that the targets set for performance related pay are
appropriate and demanding in the context of market practice, the
Group’s trading environment and the current challenges that it faces.

The main elements of the remuneration package for the executive
directors and senior management are as follows:

e Base salary;

e Benefits in kind;

e  Short-term cash based annual incentive plan;
¢ Long-term share based incentives; and

¢ Pension arrangements.

The various companents of executive remuneration are discussed in
further detail below.

Base Salary

Base salaries are reviewed in relation to median market data for
comparable companies in terms of size, market seclor, complexity
and geographic spread. Reviews occur annually feffective from
1 January each year] and are based on performance, assessment of
personal objectives and any changes in responsibilities.

Daniel Dayan's current base salaryis £360,000 per annum and Simon
Bowles' base salary during the year was £225,000 per annum, both
effective from 1 January 2007. The total salaries received by Daniel
Dayan and Simon Bowles for the year under review are shown in
Table 1 below. At its meeting on 22 February 2008, the Remuneration
Committee decided not to review the Chief Executive’s salary.

Service Contracts

Daniel Dayan's service contract (dated 27 October 2006) terminates
automatically upon his reaching age 65, and provides for 12 months’
notice by either party. The service contract for Simon Bowles, which
was terminated on 31 January 2008, included identical termination
and notice provisions.

In the event of early termnination by the Company other than for cause,
the Company may elect either to make a single payment in lieu of
notice (which will include base salary, assessment of lost banus
opportunity and benefits, and to the extent prescribed by the relevant
plan rules, share award entitlements] or to make that payment in three
instalments. If the payment is made in instalments, the first instalment
is payable on termination and will comprise six months’ payment in lieu
of notice [calculated to include the remuneratien elements described
above). The second and third payments will comprise three months’
natice each. The second payment will be made six months after
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termination, with the third payment due nine months after termination
and will be reduced to take into account the remuneration paid
pursuant to any alternative employment obtained by the executive
director prior to such payments becoming due.

On 6 December 2007, the Company announced that Simon Bowles
would teave the business and he resigned as a director on 31 January
2008. Under the terms of his service contract he was entitled to receive
a maximum payment representing one year's salary and benefits,
phased in three instalments as described above. Accordingly, he
recejved the first instalment comprising six months’ payment in liew
of notice, together with an additional payment eof £32,490, principally
representing cutplacement assistance and transition costs, plus a
contribution towards legal costs of up to £7,750. He waived any bonus
entitlement earned under any of the Company's schemes. The
performance period for his awards under the Company's Long Term
Incentive Plan was, pursuant to the rule of that Plan, extended for six
months from his termination date, at the expiry of which the relevant
performance conditions will be measured te determine the extent [if
at all) the awards vest.

Daniel Abrams was appointed a director [and Chief Financial Officer)
in his place on 1 February 2008. His service contract, which is dated
1 February 2008, will terminate autornatically upon his reaching age
65, and provides for 12 months’ notice by either party.

Policy on External Directorships

The Board believes that the experience gained by executive directors
through their invelvernent with other companies could be of benefit to
the individual director and the Company. Executive directors are, with
the Board’s permission, allowed to accept one such appointment, as
long as there is no conflict of interest and the time commitment
involved does not undermine the performance of their duties at the
Company. The executive director may keep the fees from his external
appointment. Neither of the executive directors has any such external
directorship at present.

Benefits in Kind

Benefits in kind for the executive directors include private medical
insurance, personal accident insurance, permanent health insurance
and life assurance. The executive directors are not provided with
company cars and do not receive a car allowance.

2008 Senior Management Bonus Scheme

The executive directors are eligible to participate in the Senior
Management Benus Scheme under which payments may be made
based on the achievement of stretching financial targets. Appropriate
financial targets are set by the Remuneration Committee at the
beginning of the financial year for which the bonus is payable.

For 2008, the Bonus Scheme will provide an incentive opportunity of
up to 100% of base salary for executive directors. The structure of the
schemne will follow that put in place in 2007. 70% of the bonus
oppertunity is measured against the achievement of Group operating
profit targets, with 30% based on Group working capital as a
percentage of sales targets. A bonus of 50% of salary will be payable
for achievement of budgeted perfermance under both metrics [which,
of themselves, constitute challenging targets). In order not to reward
underachievement, there will be no payout for achievement of below
budget performance. In 2007, the operating profit and working capitat
metrics were totally separate. The Remuneration Committee has
decided that for 2008 there should be no consideratien of the working
capital portion of the bonus until 75% of the budgeted operating profit
has been achieved.

In 2008, bonus payments will be made on a biannual basis. Up to 40%
of bonus opportunity is based on performance in the first half of the
year, with the remaining 60% based on performance in the second half
of the year [this also followed the pattern established in 2007 which
the Remuneration Committee found to be an effective motivator]. To the
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extent that the performance measures are met, paymenits will be made
following the publication of the half and full year results. The Committee
is satisfied that this approach to bonus payments is appropriate in the
Company’s particular circumstances and that there is no likelihood of
this approach resulting in the aggregate size of bonuses payable in any
year not reflecting overall Group performance for that year

Individual personal objectives will not be used to determine bonus
payments in 2008 in order to focus attention on the Board's strategic
objective to achieve a financial turnaround. Instead, as mentioned
above, the achievement of pre-determined personal objectives in 2008
will be used to assess and determine appropriate base salary reviews
for the following year.

2007 Bonuses

For 2007, the Bonus Scheme was broadly as described above, Fiberweb
did not meet the Group operating profit targets for 2007 so no bonuses
were earned under that metric. Bonuses were, however, earned by the
two executive directors in respect of the Group working capital targets
for the first half year and the second half year, representing 10.56%
and 18% of salary respectively. Daniel Dayan waived his entitlement to
the first half year bonus. In the second half, his bonus totalled £44,800.
Under the terms of his termination arrangement, Simon Bowles will not
be entitled to the second half year bonus. As set put above, in 2008
there will be an operating profit trigger before consideration of the
working capital portion of the bonus. If operating profit achievement is
below 75% of the budget for the period then the working capital portion
of the bonus witl not be paid even if targets have been met.

Executive Long-Term Incentives

Deferred Share Matching Plan {"DSMP")

Shareholders approved the DSMP in November 2006 at the time of
the demerger of the Company from the BBA Group. Under the plan, a
maximum of 50% of an executive's net bonus may be voluntarily
deferred into shares for three years. The deferred shares wilt then be
matched at a rate of one to one {on a gross basis}. The matching
awards will vest three years after grant if and to the extent that the
performance targets attached to the awards are satisfied. The detailed
targets witl be discussed and communicated to shareholders in
advance of such awards being made.

MNo matching awards have so far been made under the DSMP.

Long-Term Incentive Plan [“LTIP")

Shareholders also approved the LTIP in November 20056. tn summary,
under the LTIP, annual awards over shares with a face value of up to
100% of salary per annum [200% in exceptional circumstances] can be
made to executives each year. Awards may take the form of a
conditional award, a restricted award or a phantomn award.

Following the demerger, “normal” LTIP awards with a market value of
up to 80% of salary were made to certain senior executives, including
the executive directors. In additien, to reflect the fact that no long-term
incentive award had been made to Fiberweb executives in 2006 under
the former parent company's share incentive plans due to the demerger
process, a one-off “demerger” award was made to the same selected
Fiberweb executives who received normal LTIP awards, plus an
additional group of around 70 senior managers. These additional
demerger awards ranged from between 40% ta 80% of salary.

Normal awards will vest no earlier than three years after grant, subject
to the achievernent of the performance conditions described below.
The demerger awards will vest following the announcement of
Fiberweb’s results for the year ending 31 December 2008, subject to
the achievement of the performance conditions described below.

Normal and demerger awands are subject to Total Shareholder Return
("TSR”) and earnings per share ("EPS”] targets, More particularly,
one half of each award will be based on Fiberweb’s TSR performance
against the constituents of the FTSE SmallCap Index [excluding




investment trusts). The FTSE SmatlCap was chosen for the TSR
element of the awards in the absence of a suificient number of listed
companies that are direct business competitors to Fiberweb.
The remaining half of each award is subject to a sliding scale of real
EPS growth targets. The EPS targets for both awards will measure
EPS for the financial year ended 31 December 2006 against EPS for the
year ending 31 December 2008 or 2009 as appropriate. The base EPS
for 2006, which has been adjusted to reflect ongoing capital, debt,
taxatian and listed company structure as if Fiberweb had existed as an
independent group since 1 January 2006, is 4.47 pence. The primary
purpose of the adjustments to the base EPS is to give comparability
aver the perfermance perind,

These performance conditions were chesen to provide a balanced long-
term incentive for senior executives to generate both above market
returns to shareholders and strong levels of earnings per share growth.

These awards will vest as per the table below.

Sliding scale straight line vesting will occur for performance between
the relevant threshold and maximum targets.

Neither awards [nor DSMP awards) will have a ‘re-testing’ facility. If the
performance conditions are not met at the end of the relevant
performance period, the awards will lapse.

The relevant TSR calculations will be undertaken by independent
advisors. The Company's external auditors will verify the Committee’s
calculation of the extent to which the EPS targets have been met.

The Committee’s current intention is that any LTIP awards made in the
future will be subject to a combination of TSR and EPS based performance
conditions structured in a similar manner as described above.

The Committee will regularly review the operation of the Cornpany’s
share based incentive arrangements in light of (i) the circumstances
and prospects of the Company as they develop and (il emerging trends
in market and best practice.

Details of awards made te Executive Directors under the LTIP are set out
in Table 3. No further awards have been made under the LTIP in 2007.

Fiberweb Executive Share Option Plan ("ESOP”)

The Company established the ESOP following shareholder approval
in November 200é. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
administering the ESOP and the grant of options under its terms.

Proportion of award
subject to retevant
performance condition

Performance condition

Total Shareholder Return 50%

Under the ESOP, the normal maximum grant limit will be 150% of
salary per annum (200% in exceptianal circumstancesl.

Options will vest after three years, subject to the achievement of
performance conditions that are deemed appropriate at the time of
grant and that will be communicated to shareholders before grants are
made. It is not currently intended that grants will be made under the
ESOP and no grants were made during the year.

Performance Graph

The fallowing graph shows the Company’s performance, measured by
Total Sharehotder Return from the date of listing until 31 December
2007, compared with the equivalent infermation for the FTSE SmallCap
Index (excluding investment trusts).

This index has been selected because it is a broad-based equity market
index of which the Company has been a constituent for the majority of
the relevant period.

Total shareholder return

Value [€}
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This graph shows the vatue, by 31 December 2007, of £100 invested in Fiberweb ptc
on 17 November 2004 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE Small
Cap Index [exctuding investment trustsl. The other points plotted are the values at
intervening linancial year-ends.

How award vests

LLTIP Award

30% of this portion of the award vests at the median versus the FTSE SmallCap

Index lexcluding investment trusts) over a three year perfarmance period commencing
on the date of grant®, with full vesting at upper quartile.

Earnings Per Share 50%

A IS

Total Shareholder Return 50%

LTLIP Award

30% of this portion of the award vests for annual average adjusted EPS growth over
athree year perfermance peried of RPI plus 25%, with full vesting for RPI plus 35% T.

s o T+

30% of this portion of the award vests at the median versus the FTSE SmallCap

Index lexcluding investment trusts) over a two year performance period commencing
on the date of grant*, with full vesting at the upper quartile.

Earnings Per Share 50%

30% of this portion of the award vests for annual average adjusted EPS growth over

the two year performance period of RP! plus 30%, with full vesting for RPI plus 50%
(thereby reflecting the more pronounced EPS growth that is expected in the first
two years post-demerger] 1.

* Fiberweb’s "base” TSR will be calculated over the first 30 days post-demerger.
1 “base year” EPS for these purposes is Fiberweb's adjusted EPS for the financial year ended 31 December 2006 as described above.
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Pensions

The Company makes a pension contribution at a rate of 25% of salary
to Mr Dayan which is invested in a defined contribution scheme
nominated by him. Mr Bowles also received a pension contribution at
a rate of 20% of salary which was invested in a defined contribution
scheme nominated by him. These contributions are within a competitive

Table 1 Emoluments and fees [audited)
For the year ended 31 December 2007

range and are set by reference to the relevant market practice for
each role. In additicn, both directors fulfilled a contractual obligation
to contribute at least 7.5% of their salary to the Company defined
contribution scheme. Details of Company pension contributions made
in respect of the directors during the year under review are set out in
Table 1.

Base salary Benelits Pension Annuai Total Total

and fees in kind Contributions Bonus 2007 2006

£'000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £'000

Note 1 Note 2 Note 3

M Coster 10 49 - - 159 57

D Dayan 360 2 20 45 517 1,077

S Bowles 225 2 48 24 299 233

R Stillwell 38 - - - 38 38

P Hickman 38 - - - 38 i3

B Taylorson 32 - - - 32 9

Total 803 53 138 89 1,083 1,427
Notes:

1. Benefits in kind for Malcolm Coster comprise the value of shares received under his fee enhancement. Those fer Daniel Dayan and Simoen Bowtes include
private medical insurance, permanent health insurance and life assurance,

2. The pension contributions for Simon Bowles include an amount of £3,313 paid during the year in respect of his 2006 entitlement.

3. Emoluments and fees for 2006 are for the full year and include amounts related to service with the Fiberweb business prior to the demerger.

4, Compensation for loss of office to which Simen Bowles is entitled in 2008 is set out on page 40.

Directors’ shareholdings

The interests [beneficial and family interests) of the directors in office at 31 December 2007 in the ordinary share capital of the Cornpany were as follows:

Table 2

Director

M Coster

D Dayan

S Bowles

R Stillwell
P Hickman
B Taylerson

Notes:

Ordinary 5p shares
At 31 December 2007 1 January 2007

336,078 132,285
200,421 78,941
33,198 28,198
27,500 6,000
4,000 -

1. There were no changes in directors’ interests in the share capital between 31 December 2007 ang 25 February 2008,
2. The shareholding of Malcalm Coster at 31 Decemnber 2007 includes 26,015 shares paid to him during the year under his fee enhancement.

3. The shareholdings of Daniel Dayan and Sirnon Bowles at 31 December 2007 include 72,961 and 28,198 shares respectively allocated under the BBA 2006
annual bonus scheme and transferred to them from the Fiberweb Employee Benefit Trust during 2007. The number of Fiberweb ordinary shares held in
the Fiberweb Employee Benefit Trust as at 3t Decemnber 2007 is 1,217 shares.
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Awards tnder Long-Term Incentive Plan ["LTIP"} - [audited)

Table 3
Awards at the Award Exercise Release 31 December
start of the year Date Price Date 2007
D Dayan Demerger Award 155,634 27.11.06 Nil-cost After the publication of results for 155,634
the year ending 31 December 2008
Normal Award 155,634 27.11.06 Nil-cost After the publication of results for 155,634
) the year ending 31 December 200%
311,268 311,248
S Bowles Demerger Award 86,463 27.11.06 Nil-cost After the publication of results for 856,461
the year ending 31 December 2008
Normal Award 86,463 27.11.06 Nil-cost After the publication of results for 86,463
the year ending 31 December 2009
172,926 172,924
Motes:

1. No awards were made during the year under the LTIP.

2. The mid-market price of a Fiberweb plc ordinary 5p share on 31 December 2007 was 37p. In the period frem 2 January 2007 to 31 December 2007 the highest

and lowest prices for Fiberweb shares were 226.75p and 32.5p respectively.

Non Executive Directors” Remuneration

The appointment of each of the non executive directors is for a fixed
term of three years. The current letters of appointment for all the non
executive directors, dated 19 October 2006 and effective from the date
of the dernerger, are available for inspection on request. The non
executive directors do not participate in any Company pension
arrangements or incentive plans. Appointrnents can be terminated by
either party an three months’ notice or compensation, and six months’
notice or compensaticn in the case of the Chairman.

The level of fees for the non executive directors is determined by the
Board as a whole on the recommendation of the Chairman and the
executive directors. The Chairman’s fees are determined by the Board
on the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer. Fees are in line
with current market practice of comparable organisations and are set
taking account of the time commitment and responsthility of each non
executive director, The base annual fee is £32,000. The Chairmen of the
Audit and Remuneration Committees each receive an annual
supplement of £6,000 in recognition of the increased commitment placed
upon thern in performing their roles. Richard Stillwell dees not receive
an additionat supplement for his role as Senior Independent Director.

The Chairman’s base cash fee is £110,000 per annum. At appeintment,
and as described in the shareholder documentation produced in
connection with the demerger, he agreed to invest up to £250,000 in the
acquisition of the Company’s shares on the open market within 30 days
of the date of the demerger. His fee structure allows him to receive a
fee enhancement in the form of ordinary shares equal to one sixth of
the shares he acquired. The fee enhancement is paid to him at each six

month anniversary of his appaintment until Novernber 2009, provided
he continues to hold the office as Chairman and retains his original
investrment and any additional shares awarded to him {apart from those
sold to fund any tax or national insurance liabilities arising on the
awanrdl. Mr Coster acquired 132,285 shares in December 2004. His first
two fee enhancements, each of 22,047 shares, were paid to him in May
and November 2007. The gross values of these [based on the current
market value of Fiberweb shares] were £39,905 and £9,039 respectively.
After deduction of sufficient shares to fund tax and national insurance
liabilities, he received 13,008 shares under each award.

The Committee believes that this structure is entirely appropriate and
takes full account of the Chairman’s expected time commitment,
responsibility and importance to the Company in this important stage
in the Company's development.

Non executive directors’ fees will be reviewed every two years.

Details of non executive directers’ fees for 2007 are set out in Table 1
above,

This report was approved by the Board on 26 February 2008 and is
signed on its behalf by:

Richard Stillwell
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report, directors’
remuneration report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial year. The directors are required by the IAS Regulation
to prepare the Group financial statements under International
Financial Reporting Standards ["IFRSs"] as adopted by the European
Unian, The Group financial statements are also required by law to be
properly prepared in accordance with the Campanies Act 1985 and
Article 4 of the |AS Regutation.

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that IFRS financial
statements present fairly for each financial year the company's
financial pesition, financial performance and cash flows. This requires
the faithfut representation of the eftects of transactions, other events
and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition
criteria for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the
International Accounting Standards Board's 'Framework for the
preparation and presentation of financial statements'. In virtually all
circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with
all applicable IFRSs. However, directors are also required to:

& properly select and apply accounting policies;

s present infermation, including accounting policies, in a manner
that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information; and

*  provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in [FRSs are insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and ¢onditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance.
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The directers have elected to prepare the parent company financial
staternents in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice [United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and applicable lawl. The parent company financial statements are
required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required to:

& setect suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

& make judgments and estirmates that are reasonable and prudent;

*  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business.

The directors are respansible for keeping proper accounting records
that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the parent
company financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities,

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information inctuded on the company’s
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of Fiberweb plc

We have audited the group financial statements of Fiberweb plc for
the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the Group Income
Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group Cash Flow Statement,
the Group Statement of Recognised Income and Expense and the
related notes 1 to 34. These group financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein, We have also
audited the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is
described as having been audited.

We have reported separately on the parent company financial
statements of Fiberweb plc for the year ended 31 December 2007.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985, Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditors’ repoart and for no other purpase. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit wark, for this repert, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the
Directors’ Rermuneration Repert and the group financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and Internationat Financial Reporting
Standards [IFRSs] as adopted by the European Union are set out in
the Statement of Directors’ Respansibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the group financial statements in
accordance with relevant legat and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial
statements give a true and fair view, whether the group financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Campanies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and whether
the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having
been audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our opinion the
information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the group
financial statements. The information given in the Directors’ Report
includes that specific infermation presented in the Operating and
Financial Review that is cross referred from the Business Review
section of the Directors’ Report,

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all
the infermation and explanations we reguire for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding director’s remuneration and
other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the
company's compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006 Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required to
consider whether the board’s statements on internal control cover all
risks and controts, or form an opinion en the effectiveness of the group's
corporate gevernance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as
described in the contents section and consider whether it is consistent
with the audited group financial statements. We consider the
implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstaternents or material inconsistencies with the group financial
statements. Our responsibilities de not extend to any further
information outside the Annual Report.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland| issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the group financial statements and
the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited. kt also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the group financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide
us with sufficient evidence to give reasenable assurance that the group
financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adegquacy of the presentation of
infermation in the group financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited.

Opinion

in our opinion:

» the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the
state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its loss
for the year then ended;

* the group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation;

* the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having
been audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985; and

# the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with
the group financial statements.

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs

As explained in Note 2 to the group financial statements, the group in
addition to complying with its legal obligation to comply with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, has also complied with the [FRSs as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

In our opinion the group financial statements give a true and fair view,
in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31
December 2007 and of its loss for the year then ended.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

Londen, England
26th February 2008
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| Consolidated Income Statement

| For the year ended 31st December 2007

e

2007 2007 2007 20048 2006t 2006*
Underlying* Note i Total Underlying* Note i Total
Note £€m £m £m £'m £m €m

Continuing operations
Revenue 4 473.6 - 473.6 499.9 - 49%.9
Cost of sales 5.6 (380.9] (31.8) 1412.7) [399.5) (15.3) (414.8)
Gross profit 92.7 (31.8) 60.9 100.4 (15.3) 85.1
Distribution costs ' (44.0) - (44.0) (41.4) - (41,4
Administrative expenses 6 (37.3) 45.7) (84.0] (33.7) - 133.7]
Other operating income 5 2.2 - 2.2 1.2 - 1.2
Share of profit of associates 15 0.2 - 0.2 0.6 - 0.6
Gain/iloss) on disposal of
associated undertaking 4 - 0.3 0.3 - [1.8] [1.8]
Restructuring costs ] - 124.9) 24,9} - (45.5] 145.51
Operating profit/(less)
from continuing operations 4,5,6 13.8 1103.11 (89.3) 271 162.4) 135.3]
Investment income 7 6.8 - 0.8 0.4 - 0.4
Finance costs 7 (11.6) - (11.6) [14.9] - (14.9]
Profit/{loss] before tax 3.0 (103.1) (100.1) 12.6 62.4]) {69.8)
Income tax ) 0.1 6.6 6.7 (6.3] 12.9 6.6
Profit/[loss] for the year
from continuing operations 3.1 (94.5) 193.4) 6.3 149.5] [43.2)
Profit/[loss) far the year
from discontinued operations g 0.2 {19.3 e 0.3 [26.4] (26.1)
Profit/(loss)for the year 3.3 (115.8) (112.5) 6.6 [75.9) [69.3)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent .3 {115.8) (112.5) 6.6 175.9} [69.3]
* Underlying trading results before items described in note i below.
Note i: Restructuring costs and non-recurring items as set out in note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
t 2006 results have been restated to reflect Discontinued Operations [see note 9)
Loss per share, attributable to the erdinary equity holders of the parent
From continuing operations:
Basic i 176.31p (35.3]p
Diluted i 176.31p (35.31p
From continuing and
discontinued operations:
Basic N (91.91p [56.5)p
Diluted 1 (91.91p [56.5]p
Adjusted earnings" per share, attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent
From continuing operations:
Basic 1 2.6p 5.1p
Diluted 1 2.5p 5.1p

" Adjusted earnings per share are shown calculated on earnings before restructuring costs and non-recurring items because the

directors consider this gives a better indication of underlying performance.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31st December 2007

-

2007 2006
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Intangible assets:
Goodwill 13 28.0 93.0
Other 13 25 3.4
Property, plant and equipment 14 266.4 330.6
Investments in associates 15 1.5 1.4
Other investments 14 0.8 -
Trade and other receivables 18 - 0.3
Deferred tax assets 26 0.5 -
299.7 4287
Current assets
Inventories 17 62.7 821
Trade and other receivables 18 2.1 9.4
Cash and cash equivalents 18 174 35.2
Corporation tax recoverable 1.4 2.0
173.3 216.7
TOTAL ASSETS 473.0 645.4
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 176.9) (77.3)
Tax liabilities (3.3) (3.4)
Obligations under finance leases 20 (2.3) (2.3)
Bank overdrafts and loans 22 (18.1) (10.3)
Provisions 24 14.2) [2.6]
1104.8) (95.9)
Net current assets 68.5 120.8
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 22 i131.9) (183.5)
Other payables due after one year - [2.5)
Retirement benefit obligations 25 (21.8) (23.2)
Obligations under finance leases 20 (2.4} [6.4)
Deferred tax liabilities 26 (24.3) (35.3)
Provisions 24 {2.5) 13.6)
(182.9) [252.5)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (287.7) [348.4)
NET ASSETS 185.3 297.0
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capital 28 6.1 6.1
Share premium account 29 84.5 84.5
Merger reserve 29 935 935
Other reserve 29 931 93.1
Capital reserve 29 0.6 0.1
Translation reserve 29 8.1 {1.3)
Hedging reserve 29 (1.5 0.5
Retained earnings 29 {99.1 20.5
TOTAL EQUITY 30 185.3 297.0

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26th February 2008 and signed on its behatf by

D Dayan D Abrams
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

' For the year ended 31st Decermnber 2007

o

2007 2006
Note m E'm
Operating activities
Net cash flows from operating activities 3 36.9 44.0
Investing activities
Interest received 0.8 0.4
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [32.4) [47.8]
Purchase of intangible assets (0.2) (0.8
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.6 0.8
Net proceeds on disposal of businesses 32 42.0 -
Dividends received from associated undertakings 0.1 0.2
Proceeds an sale of associate - 5.4
Acquisition of subsidiaries 33 - (2.3
Net cash inflow/[outflow) from investing activities 10.9 {43.9]
Financing activities
Interest paid (1.1} (1.8]
Interest paid to related parties [net) 7 - (5.9]
Interest element of finance leases paid (0.1} {0.3]
Bank facility fees paid - £1.2)
Dividends paid to related parties - (5.5
Dividends paid to shareholders (7.0} -
Repayment of related party loans - (150.7
{Repayment)/drawdown of externat loans (54.1) 177.7
Overdrafts reclassified to cash and cash equivalents 0.6} -
Decrease in finance leases (2.4) (2.3
Increase in overdrafts - 0.4
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from financing activities 175.3} 10.4
Net [decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents (27.5) 10.5
Foreign exchange differences 0.5 (t.13
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January 35.2 25.8
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December 18 8.2 35.2
Net debt at beginning of year (165.3] [242.3)
[Decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents 127.5) 10.5
Decrease/flincrease] in external loans 54.1 {177.3]
Bank loans disposed of/lacquired] 32,33 2.9 (0.4]
Facility fees paid - 1.2
Facility fees amortised (0.2] (0.1
Decrease in finance leases 2.4 2.3
Repayment of loans from former parent company - 150.7
[Increasel/decrease in overdrafts - (0.4)
Overdrafts reclassified to cash and cash equivalents 0.6 -
Loans waived by former parent company 29 - 90.0
Loans capitalised by former parent company 29 - 87.4
I Non-cash transfer of subsidiary investments - {101.5}
Fareign exchange differences (4.6) 14.6
: Net debt at end of year (137.6) {165.3)
' Comprising:
' Overdrafts - (0.6
' Bank loans (142.0) {194.3)
Less: unamortised prepaid facility fees 0.9 1.1
Bank overdrafts and loans 22 (141.1) [193.8)
Finance leases 20 4.7 (6.7
| Cash and cash equivalents 18 8.2 35.2
' Net debt at end of year 1137.6) 1145.3]
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Consolidated Statement of Recogniéed Income

d nd Expense For the year ended 31st December 2007
N

2007 2006

Note £m £'m

Exchange gains/[losses] on translation of foreign operations 29 9.4 (20.0)
{Loss)/gain on interest rate cash flow hedges 29 (1.7 05
Capital centribution through waiver of net debt by former parent company 29 - %0.0
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 25,29 .7 (0.3
Tax on items recognised directly in equity 0.6 -
Net income recognised directly in equity 7.6 70.2
Transferrad to profit or loss on interest rate cash flow hedges 7 (0.3) -
Loss for the year (112.5) 169.3)
Total recognised [expenselfincome for the year 30 (105.2} 0.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 3ist December 2007

N

1. General information

Fiberweb plc is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom on 22nd January 2006 under the Companies Act 1985, The Fiberweb Group
("Fiberweb” or “the Group”] is an international group of businesses dedicated to the development, manufacturing and supply of specialist
nonwoeven fabrics.

These financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling because that is the currency of the ultimate parent company. Foreign operations are
inctuded in accordance with the policies set out in note 2.

2.  Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on an historical cost basis, adjusted for certain derivative financial instruments which are stated
at fair value.

The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Policies ["UK GAAP™).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs”) adopted by
the European Union {"EU”) and therefore the Group financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

In the current year, the Group has adopted IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures, which is effective for annual reporting perieds beginning
on or after 1st January 2007, and the related amendment to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. The impact of the adoption of IFRS 7
and the changes to |AS 1 has been to expand the disclosure provided in these financial statements regarding the Group's financial instruments
and management of capital. Three interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee are effective for
the current period: IFRIC 7 Applying the restatement approach under IAS 29, Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies; IFRIC 8 Scope of
IFRS 2 and IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives. The adoption of these interpretations has not led to any changes in the Group’s
accounting policies.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations, which have not been applied in these
financial statements, were in issue but not yet effective:

1AS23:  [Revised] Borrowing Costs

IFRS8: Operating Segments

IFRIC10: Interim Reporting and Impairments

IFRIC1Y:  IFRS2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions

IFRIC12:  Service Concession Agreements

IFRIC13: Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC14: The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will have no material impact on the financial
statements of the Group.

The principal accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are detailed below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all periods presented.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by Fiberweb. Contro!l exists when Fiberweb has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financiat and
operating policies of an entity to obtain economic benefit from its activities. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the Group’s
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases in accordance with the acquisition method of
accounting. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with
those used by the Group.

For the purposes of these accounts, the subsidiaries transferred to Fiberweb as part of the demerger restructuring process in November 2004
have not been accounted for as acquired during the year ended 31st Decemnber 2006, but have been presented as if they had been cantrolled by
Fiberweb throughout the period.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on cansolidation.

Associated undertakings are those investments other than subsidiary undertakings where the Group is in a position to exercise a significant
inftuence, typically through the participation in the financial and operating decisions of the investee. Investments in asscciated undertakings are
stated at cost, plus the Group’s share of post- acquisition reserves, less dividends received and provision for impairment.
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2. Accounting Policies continued

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase methed. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair
values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any casts directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiabte assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment,
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recegnised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities
and contingent liahilities recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions, being the excess of fair value of the consideration paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired, is capitalised and
tested for impairment on an annual basis, or mare frequently when there is an indication that there may be an impairment. For the purposes of
impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combinatian.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of a subsidiary, assaciate or jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goadwill is included in the determination of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRSs has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts subject to being tested
for impairment at that date. Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has nat been reinstated and is not included in determining
any subsequent profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied and
services provided by the Group in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes and excluding intercompany
transactions and sales by associated undertakings.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is incurred. An internally-generated intangible asset arising from the.
Group’s development expenditure is recognised only if the asset can be separately identified, it is probable that the asset will generate future
ecanomic benefits and the development costs of the asset can be measured reliably.

Share-based payments

Fiberwebh operates two share-based compensation plans which are detailed in note 27. The equity-settled share-based payments under these
schemes are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed on a straight line basis over the
vesting period based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest.

No expense is recognised [and any previously recognised expense is reversed) for awards that do not ultimately vest, except where vesting is
conditional upan a measure linked to Fiberweb plc's share price ("a market condition”) or other market conditions. The likelihooad of achieving the
market condition is taken into account in the fair value and, therefore, the award is treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition is satisfied, provided that any ather performance condition is met.

When an award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately in the incorne statement.

The cost of share-based compensation schemes is recognised as an expense within staff costs in the income statement [see note 12].

Leases

Where assets are financed by lease agreements that give rights similar to ownership [finance leases), the assets are treated as if they had been
purchased and the leasing commitments are shown as obligations to the lessors. The capitalisation values of the assets are written off on a
straight line basis over the shorter of the periods of the leases or the useful lives of the assets concerned. The capital elements of future leases
are recorded as liabilities, while the interest elements are charged to the income statement over the period of the leases to produce a constant
rate of charge on the balance of capital payments qutstanding.

For all other leases [operating leases), the rental payments are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the lives of the leases.
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l Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements cntinued

For the year ended 31st December 2007

N

2. Accounting Policies continued

Post-retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

For defined benefit retirement benefit schemes, the cost is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried
out annually on 31st December. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur. They are recognised outside
profit or loss and presented in the statement of recognised income and expense.

Past service cost is recagnised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight line basis
over the average period until the benefits become vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service costs, and reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this caleulation is limited to past service
cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Retirernent benefit scheme contribution levels are determined by valuations undertaken by independent qualified actuaries. In certain overseas
subsidiaries, to comply with local legislatian and to obtain taxation advantages, provision is made for the total actuarial liability less the ¢current
surrender vatue of the supporting investment.

Treasury

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and Liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are recorded at the rates of exchange prevaiting at that date. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in exchange rates subsequent to the date of transaction is recognised in the income statement. Where monetary assets and
liabilities have been designated effective hedges against net investments in foreign eperations, the exchange gains and losses arising on those
assets and liabilities are taken directly to reserves.

The income statements of overseas operations are translatad into Sterling at the average exchange rates for the year and their balance sheets
are translated into Sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences arising on consolidation are taken to
reserves, subject to the requirements of IAS 21 “The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates™. All other translation differences are taken to
the income statement.

Derivative financial instrurments utilised by the Group comprise foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity derivatives. Al such
instruments are used for hedging purposes to manage the risk profile of an underlying exposure of the Group in line with the Group’s risk
management policies. The Group designates these derivatives as either hedges of highly probable forecast transactions or hedges of fareign
currency risk of firm commitments [cash flow hedges) or hedges of investments in foreign operations.

All derivative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Recognition of gains or losses on derivative instruments depends an
whether the instrument is designated as a hedge and the type of exposure it is designed to hedge.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are deferred in equity. The gain
or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts deferred in equity are recycted in profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss in the same line of
the income statement as the recognised hedged item. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the
initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated,
or exercised, or no longer quatifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or loss deferred in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted far similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument
relating to the effective porticn of the hedge is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Gains or losses deferred in the foreign currency translation reserve are recegnised in profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement
as they arise.

Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging restructuring costs and after the share of results of associates but before investment income and finance
costs [see note 5).
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2. Accounting Policies continued

Taxation
The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred due to temporary differences between the
treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.

No provision is made for temporary differences on unremitted earnings of fereign subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates where the Group has
control and the reversal of the temporary difference is not foreseeable.

The carrying amgunt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
suflicient taxable profits will be available to altow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax
is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
dealt with in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the batance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment. Depreciation
is provided on the cost or valuatian of property, plant and equipment less estimated residual value and is calculated on a straight line basis over
the fotlowing estimated useful lives of the assets:

Land not depreciated
Buildings 40) years maximum
Plant and machinery (including essential commissioning costs| 3-15 years

Tooling, vehicles, computer and office equipment are categarised within Plant and machinery. Production line equipment is depreciated over
10 to 15 years.

Finance costs which are directly attributable to the construction of major items of property, plant and equipment are capitalised as part of those
assets. The commencement of capitalisation begins when both finance costs and expenditures for the asset are being incurred and activities that
are necessary to get the asset ready for use are in progress. Capitatisation ceases when substantially all the activities that are necessary to get
the asset ready for use are complete.

Intangible assets excluding goodwill
Licences are shown at amortised cost. Amortisation provided on the cost of licences is calculated on a straight line basis over the useful life of the
licences.

Where computer software i nat an integral part of a related item of computer hardware, the software is treated as an intangible asset. Computer
software is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. Amortisation is provided on the cost of
software and is calculated on a straight line basis over the useful life of the software. -

The Group makes an assessment of the fair value of intangible assets arising on acquisitions. An intangible asset will be recognised as long as
the asset is separable or arises from contractual or other legal rights, and its fair value can be measured reliably. Amortisation is provided on the
fair value of the asset, exctuding goodwill, and is calculated on a straight line basis over its useful life.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying value of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment toss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An intangible asset with an indefinite life is tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing vatue in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately, unless the relevant assel is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amaunt of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continved

For the year ended 31st December 2007

o

2. Accounting Policies continued

Inventery

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the cost of raw materials and an appropriate proportion of labour
and overheads in the case of work in progress and finished goods. Cost is calculated on a first in first out basis, Provision is made for slow moving
or obsolete inventory as appropriate.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is under contract whose terms require
delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs,
except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit and loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets “at fair vatue through profit and loss  [FVTPL), ‘held to maturity’
investments, “available-for-sale’ {AFS] financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. As at 31st December 2007 and 2006, the Greup did not have any "held-to-maturity’
investments or AFS financial assets. The Group does not enter into hedge transactions for speculative purposes.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financiat asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

Afinancial asset is classified as held for trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

+ jtisa part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

+ itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at F¥TPL upon initial recognition if:

*  such designatien eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

* thefinancial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investrment strategy, and information about the Group
is pravided internally on that basis; or

* itforms part of a contract cantaining one or more embedded derivatives, and 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
permits the entire combined contract [asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

Loans and receivabies

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as
loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methad, less any impairment. Interest
incomne is recagnised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recegnition of interest would be immaterial.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financiat liabilities and equity instruments are classified according te the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabitities
Financial liabilities are classitied as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities'.




2. Accounting Policies continued

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabitities are classified as at FYTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
= it has been incurred principally for the purpose of disposal in the near future; or

e itis part of an identified partfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

« itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
A financial liability other than a financiat liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:
s such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

»  thefinancial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and infermation about the Group
is provided internally on that basis; or

» it forms part of 8 contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
permits the entire combined contract lasset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or lass recognised
in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrawings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest
method is a2 method of calculating the amortised costs of a tinancial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including premiums
payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accrual basis to the profit and loss account using the effective
interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise,

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct issue costs.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

The judgements used by management in the application of the Group’s accounting policies in respect of these key areas of estimation are considered
to be the most significant.

Impairment of goodwill and tangible fixed assets

Determining whether goodwill or tangible fixed assets are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill has been allocated or the individual assets. The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit or asset and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. The carrying amount of goodwill and
tangible fixad assets at the balance sheet date was £28.0 miltion (2006: £93.0 million] and £266.4 million {2006: £330.6 million) respectively.

Details regarding the goodwill and tangible fixed asset carrying value and assumptions used in carrying out the impairment reviews are provided
in aotes 13 and 14.

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

Determining the present value of future obligations of pension and other post-retirement benefit schemes requires an estimation of future martality
rates, future changes in employee benefits and length of service. These assumptions are determined in association with qualified actuaries.
The net pension liability related to defined benefit type schemes at the balance sheet date was £21.8 million (2006: £23.2 million). Details regarding
the carrying value and assumptions used in arriving at the carrying value are provided in note 25,
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3. Group results post incorporation

Fiberweb plc was incorporated on 22nd January 2004, During 2006, the Group generated underlying profit before tax of £1.7 million in the period
prior to incorparation and £11.1 million in the period post incorporation. All restructuring costs and non-recurring items occurred in the period
after the incorporation of Fiberweb plc (see note 6).

4. Segmental information

The Group's primary segmenis are geographic on the basis of the underlying operational management structure and reporting hierarchy.
The geographic segments then camprise businesses supplying the hygiene and industrial nonwovens markets. All segments inctude operatiens
consisting of the manufacture and sale of nonwoven materials.

In the following analysis, inter-segment sales represent goods sotd at arm’s length transfer prices between Group entities. Global Research &
Development and Health & Safety costs have been allocated to Group entities on the basis of their share of the Group’s continuing external revenue.
Central head office costs are not allocated te Group entities for the purpose of the segmental analysis and central costs of £7.1 million
12006: £1.7 millien) are shown below within Europe in the Geographical Segment analysis and as Unallocated Corporate within the Business
Segment analysis.

Geographical segments
Year ended 315t December 2007

North Rest of

Europe America World Eliminations Total
Continuing operations £m £'m €m £'m £m
External sates by origin 2389 198.5 36.2 - 473.6
External sales by destination 2255 197.9 56.2 - 473.6
Inter-segment sales 9.5 9.2 05 (1%.2] -
Underlying operating profit 9.6 3.2 1.0 - 13.8
Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items (12.1} 181.4) {9.6) - (103.1)
Segment result from continuing operations * 12.5] 178.2) [8.6) - (89.3]
Investment income 0.8
Finance costs 111.6)
Loss before tax (100.1)
Tax 6.7
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 11%.1)
Loss after tax and discontinued operations 112.5]

* Segment result includes £0.2 million profit of associates within Europe (2006: £0.1 million) and £nil within Rest of World (2004: £0.5 million]
respectively.

Other information

North Rest of
Europe America World Total
Note E'm £'m £'m £m
Capital additions 16.0 9.3 7.2 325
Depreciation and amortisation 14.9 13.5 3.4 ns
Impairment losses recagnised in profit or loss 14 05 4.3 - 48
Asset write downs recognised in profit or loss 14 7.7 21.4 9.4 38.7
Balance Sheet
Assets:
Segment assets, excluding tax assets and cash 252.6 150.0 £9.9 452.5
Interests in associates 1.5 - - 1.5
Censolidated total assets, excluding tax assets and cash 254.1 150.0 49.9 454.0
Unallocated corporate assets 19.0
Total consolidated assets 473.0
Liabilities: -
Segment liabilities, excluding tax liabilities and debt 52.9 47.2 53 105.4
Unallocated corporate liabilities 182.3
Consolidated total liabilities 287.7
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Geographical segments continued
Year ended 31st December 2007

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations had the following effect on the segment results of Europe and Morth America, analysed inte continuing and discontinued.

components.
Europe North America
Cantinuing Discontinued Total Continuing Discontinued Total
£'m £€m £'m E'm £'m £'m
Revenue
External sales by origin 238.9 16.0 254.9 198.5 15.5 214.0
Result
Underlying operating profit 9.6 0.7 10.3 3.2 (0.4) 2.8
Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items  (12.1) - (12.1) (81.4) - 181.4)
Segment result (2.5 0.7 [1.8] [78.2} {0.4) [78.4)
There were no discantinued operations in the Rest of World.
Year ended 31st December 2006
North Rest of
Europe America World Eliminations Tatal
Continuing cperations £m &€m 'm £'m £€m
External sales by crigin 2276 2331 39.2 - 499.9
External sales by destination 213.2 231.4 85.3 - £99.9
Inter-segment sales 75 10.8 0.5 [18.8] -
Undertying operating profit 14.5 8.7 3.9 - 271
Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items {16.4) (44.31 (1.7 - (62.4)
Segment result from continuing operations * [1.9) (35.6] 2.2 - (35.3)
Investment income 0.4
Finance casts (14.9}
Loss before tax (49.8}
Tax 6.6
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (26.1)
Loss after tax and discontinued operations 69.3
* Segment result includes £0.1 mitlion profit of associates within Europe and £0.5 million within Rest of World.
Other information
North Rest of
Eurepe America World Total
£m £m £m £'m
Capital additions 25.1 213 4.1 50.5
Depreciation and amortisation 15.1 15.2 3.2 335
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss 4.4 8.3 - 12.7
Asset write downs recognised in profit or loss 11.3 25.6 0.5 37.4
Balance Sheet
Assets:
Segment assets, excluding tax assets and cash 240.5 242.6 48.3 531.4
Interests in associates 1.4 - - 1.4
Consolidated total assets, excluding tax assets and cash 2419 242.6 48.3 532.8
Unaltocated carporate assets 38.4
Assets subsequently sold with discontinued operations 74.2
Total consolidated assets 645.4
Liabilities: -
Segment liabilities, excluding tax liabilities and debt 455 46.9 4.2 96.6
Unallocated corporate liabilities 235.9
Liabilities subsequently sold with discontinued operations 15.9
Consolidated total liabilities 348.4
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4. Segmental information continued

Geographical segments continued
Year ended 31st December 2006

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations had the following effect on the segment results of Europe and North America, analysed into continuing and discontinued

components.
North
Europe America
Continuing Discontinued Total Continuing Discontinued Total
£'m £'m £€m E'm £'m £m
Revenue
External sales by origin 2274 42.5 2701 2331 423 275.4
Result
Underlying operating profit 14.5 1.8 163 8.7 (1.3 7.4
Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items  [16.4] (14.7) (31.1) (44.3] (20.0) 164.3)
Segment result 11.9) (12.%] (14.8) {35.6) (21.3) 156.9)

There were no discontinued operations in the Rest of Warld.

The segment result from discontinued operations in Europe stated above is before net interest expense of £0.2 miltion. The segment result from
discontinued operations is disclosed in note 9, which provides a reconciliation te the net loss from discontinued operations.

Business segments
Year ended 31st December 2007
Unallocated

Hygiene Industrial Corporate Continuing Discontinued Total
£m Em £'m £'m E£m £'m
External sales by origin 272.4 201.2 - 473.6 31.5 505.1
Underlying operating profit 10.1 10.8 (7.1 13.8 03 14.1
Restructuring costs and cther non-recurring items  [58.7) (43.4) (1.0 (103.1} - 1103.1)
Segment result * (4B.6) (32.6 {8.1] (89.3) 0.3 (89.09
Underlying operating profit margin 3.7% 5.4% - 2.9% 1.0% 2.8%
Capital additions 239 8.4 0.2 325 0.4 329
Assets 3131 137.8 3 454.0 - 454.0
Depreciation & amortisation 23.8 7.9 0.1 38 1.7 33.5
*  Segment result includes €£0.2 million profit of associates within Hygiene and £nil within Industrial.
Year ended 315t December 2004
Unallocated
Hygiene Industrial Corporate Continuing Discontinued Total
£'m £'m £m £m £m £€m

External sales by origin 297.2%* 202.7** - 499.9 84.8 584.7
Underlying operating profit 14.0 14.8 .71 271 0.5 27.6
Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items  {48.4) {14.0] - 162.4) (34.7 (97.11
Segment result * [34.4) 0.8 (.7 {35.3§ (34.2) (69.5]
Underlying operating profit margin 4.7% 7.3% - 5.4% 0.5% 4.T%
Capital additions 35.8 14,2 0.5 50.5 3.2 53.7
Assets - 344.9 173.0 14.9 532.8 76.2 §09.0
Depreciation & amortisation 241 2.4 - 335 49 38.4

* Segment result includes £0.6 million profit of assaciates with Hygiene and £nil within Industrial.

** The allocation of prior year sales by business segment has been restated following review of discontinued sales.
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5.  Profit/(loss) for the year
Profit/iloss] for the year is stated after charging/lcrediting):

Continuing operations

2007 2004
Note £m £€m
Net foreign exchange gains (1.2) (0.2)
Change in the fair value of derivative assets outstanding at year end and classified as held for trading 0.6 -
Other operating income 2.2) (1.2)
Research and development costs T4 8.8
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 32.6 37.2
Impairment and write downs of property, plant and equipment 14 435 69.7
Amortisation of intangible assets {included in administration expenses] 13 0.9 1.2
* Impairment of goodwill : 13 46.7 14.4
Total depreciation and amartisation expense 123.7 122.7
Total employze costs 12 90.2 101.1
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 379.8 474.8
Write downs of inventories recognised as an expense:
- underlying 11 1.8
- non-recurring 5.8 0.4
Total write downs of inventories recognised as an expense 6.9 2.2

Current year other operating incame of £2.2 million includes £0.8 million compensation for loss of profit in respect of the delayed airlaid tine
installation in our Korma, ltaly facility and £0.7 million from a third party in respect of a licence fee for the right to use Hygiene nonwoven
technology developed by Fiberweh. The balance of other operating income of £0.7 million (2006: £1.2 million} primarily includes government grants,

rental income and other sundry items.

The analysis of auditors’ remuneration is as follows:

2007 2004
£€m £'m
Audit services
Fees payable to the Company’'s auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 0.9 18
Total 0.9 1.0

The Campany audit fee is inctuded within the Group audit fee in the current year and cannot be separately identified. Fees payable to Deloitte &
Touche LLP for non-audit services were £127,000 (2006: £50,000) in respect of taxation services and £140,000 [2006: £nil] in respect of due diligence

an abortive acquisition projects.
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6. Restructuring costs and non-recurring items

Continuing operations

2007 2006

Note £'m fm

Cost of sales Ky 15.3
Administrative expenses ’ 46.7 -
[Gain)/loss on dispesal of associated undertaking 15 0.3 1.6
Restructuring costs - 249 455
103.1 62.4

Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items inctuded within statutory operating profit amounted to £103.1 million [2006: £62.4 million).
The main items included within this are:

*  Year ended 31st December 2007
- Non-recurring cast of sales of £31.8million comprising:

(il
(i}
(i)

liv)
vl

tvi}

a £4.7 million write down of inventory in our US Industrial nonwavens business to bring product down to its net realisable value
following the restructuring in this business during the first half of the year;

a £5.5 million write down of assets in relation ta a specialist US Hygiene production line as raw material price increases have resulted
in the contract becaming commercially unviable:

a £0.9 miltion impairment of US Industrial assets at AQF, aur air quality filtration business, due to new competing technology negatively
impacting future sales projections of our automative cabin air product;

2 £1.8 million impairment in respect of other US assets across both Hygiene and Industrial units in response to the above issues;

a £9.4 millien write down in respect of assets in our Asian Hygiene business and a £2.7 million impairment in Hygiene Mexice, due to
slower than expected demand from a major custamer;

a £6.0 million impairment of a specialist production line in Germany to reflect slower than expected adoption of elastic nonwovens; and

Ivii) a £0.8 million impairment in respect of older Hygiene production tines in Sweden and Germany.

~ Non-recurring administrative expenses of £46.7 million comprising goadwill impairments of:

i

(i3}
(iki)
liv)

[v)

£1.6 millicn in respect of a specialist preduction line in Germany;

£4.0 million in respect of our US Industrial business at our Gray Court facility, following the closure of this site;

£1.4 miltion impairment of other goodwill attributed to the converting activity within US Industrial that is under commercial review;
£4.9 million in respect of AQF gocdwilt; and

£34.8 million in respect of goodwill attributed to the Veratec businesses, largely in response to lower than expected demand at our
Mexican Hygiene operation

- Nen-recurring gain on the sale of intellectual property in December 2007 of £0.3 million in connection with the Group’s dispesal of its interest
in associate Advanced Design Concepts GmbH ("ADC"] - refer note 15.

- Non-recurring restructuring costs of £24.9 million comprising:

(i)

(i)
(iii]
(iv)

(v)

£15.0 million of fixed asset write downs, £1.1 million of inventory write downs and £0.9 million of severance and closure costs in
respect of our Gray Court facility;

£3.5 million and £0.2 millien respectively in respect of headcount reductions in Europe and Brazil;
£3.1 million of severance and other restructuring costs in our US industrial business at Old Hickory;
£0.3 million of abortive acquisition costs; and

£0.8 million loss on disposal of our cotton-bleaching business at Griswoldvilte in June 2007.

*  Year ended 31st December 2005

- Non-recurring cost of sales of £15.3 million comprising:

(it
(i)

(i)

a £3.2 impairment in relation to the Group's cotton-bleaching business at Griswoldville;

a charge of £6.1 million in respect of surplus capacity in the US Industrial business in the face of a softening in the US canstruction
market; and

a charge of £6.0 million in respect of some European Hygiene lines written down as the cost effectiveness of the older technology
adversely affected the price competitiveness and therefore the future sales potential of the products.

- Non-recurring loss on disposal of £1.4 million on the sale of cur investment in associate CNC Thailand in December 2006 (refer note 15).

- Non-recurring restructuring costs of £45.5 million, comprising:

{il

(i)

40

line and asset write downs of £26.7 million and severance and other closure costs of £10.9 million associated primarily with the
rationalisation of our North American Hygiene business; and

a charge of £7.9 million in relation to the line and asset impairment and redundancy costs at Terram Limited.




7. Investment income and finance costs
Cantinuing operations

2007 2006
£€m £m
Interest on bank depasits 0.8 0.4
Total investment income 0.8 0.4
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts (10.5) (2.4)
Interest on obligations under finance leases 10.1) (0.3}
Interest on loans from the former parent company - (12.1]
Total interest expense 110.6) (14.8}
Net finance expense from pension schemes [note 25) 0.6) (1.0]
Qther finance costs 0.7) . (@.1)
11.9) (15.9)
Less: amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets - 08
Fair vatue gains on interest rate swaps transferred frem equity
for cash flow hedges of floating rate debt 0.3 -
Total finance costs 111.4) [15.1]

Borrowing costs inctuded in the cost of qualifying assets during the prior year arose on the general borrowing pool and were calculated by applying
a capitalisation rate to expenditure on such assets in the range of 2.7% to 4.5%, according to the interest rates applicable to the relevant countries
incurring the costs.

Other finance costs comprise amortisation of prepaid facility fees of £0.2 mitlion [2004: £0.1 million) and commitment fees of £0.5 million
(2006: £nil) paid on the Group’s undrawn revolving credit facility.

8. Taxation

Continuing Operations Discontinued Operations Totat
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m E£'m £'m £'m €m £'m
Current tax
Current income tax charge/lcredit} on
underlying activities [ WA 4.4 0.1 - 4.5 4.4
Current income tax credit on
nen-recurring activities 0.1 (0.3] - - 0.1 (0.3)
Adjustrments in respect of .
previous periads (0.8} 11.0) - - l0.8) (1.0)
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences on underlying activities (3.4] 3.0 - - (3.4 3.0
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences on non-recurring activities (6.5 (12.8) (1.6 (8.3 (8.1 (20.91
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (0.3) {0.11 - - {0.3) (0.1]
Income tax credit for the year 16.7) 16.6] (1.5 (8.3} {8.2) (14.9)

The total tax credit for the year includes a charge of £0.3 mitlion {2004: Enil) in respect of UK operations. All other tax items relate to overseas
operations. Domestic income tax is calculated at 30% (2004: 30%)] of the estimated assessable profit far the year. Taxation for other jurisdictions
is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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8. Taxation continued

The total income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the total accounting profit as follows:

2007 2006

£m £'m
Loss before tax (120.7) (84.2)
Standard UK tax rate 30.0% 30.0%
Loss before tax multiplied by the standard UK tax rate (36.2) {25.3)
Effects of:
Share of results of associates : - 0.3
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes - 7.0
Losses not recognised 8.7 -
{tems on which deferred tax has not been recognised 23.6 3.0
Adjustments in respect of previous periods .71 (1.1]
Surrender of losses to farmer parent company - 2.4
Tax rate changes [2.6) (8.2}
Tax credit for the year (8.2] (14.9]
Overall effective tax rate 6.8% 17.7%
Effective tax rate on underlying profits 3.3]% 48.6%

The ditference between the actual tax credit and that expected on the loss for the year has been based on the UK rate of Corporation tax of 30%
for both 2006 and 2007. In the prior year the comparisan of actual tax was against the then blended rate, which resuited from the mix of profits
and losses and the average rates of tax across the various jurisdictions in which the Group trades. The change to the standard rate of UK Corporation
tax for comparison purposes has been made to ensure a more consistent approach across the two years. The use of a blended rate would {ead to
a distorttan year on year as the mix of profits and tesses has changed considerably, as have the underlying tax rates in various jurisdictions.

In addition to the income tax expense charged to profit or toss, a net £0.4 million [2006: £nill has been charged to equity in the year, comprising
£0.4 million in respect of fair value adjustments on financial instrurnents {2006: £0.2 million charge in respect of fair value adjustments on financial
instruments, offset by a £0.2 million credit in respect of actuarial losses on pensions).

The effective rate of tax on underlying continuing profits in the current year of [3.31% is low as a resuit of prior year adjustments in relation to both
current and deferred taxation where liabilities have been reduced due to both over provisions and reduced rates of taxation. The current year tax
charge on underlying continuing profits of £1.0 million represents a tax rate of 33.3%. The effective rate of tax on underlying profits in the year ended
J1st December 2006 was high at 48.4% as a result of certain deferred tax assets not having been recognised because their ultimate recoverability
was not sufficiently assured.

9. Discontinued operations

On 30th March 2007, the Group entered into a sale agreement with Ahlstrom Corporation to dispose of the shares of Fiberweb Tenotex SAU and
Fiberweb Holdings SLU and the trade and assets of Fiberweb Tecnofibra Srl and the Bethune Hygiene wipes business within Fiberweb Inc.
{"Hygiene Wipes”). The disposal was completed on 25th May 2007, on which date control of Hygiene Wipes passed to the acquirer. The disposal
was a significant step in Fiberweb’s published commitment to address issues concerning the “Weak Hygiene” businesses within the Group.

The results of the discontinued operations which have been included in the consolidated income statement were as follows:

2007 2008

Underlying  Non-recurring Total Underlying  Non-recurring Total
Revenue 31.5 - 315 B4.8 - 84.8
Expenses (31.2) - 131.2) (84.3] - (84.3
YUnderlying operating profit 0.3 - 0.3 a5 - 0.5
Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items - - - - [34.7) 134.7)
Interest - - - - 10.2) - [0.2)
Profit/(loss] before tax 0.3 - 0.3 0.3 134.7] (34.4)
Income tax (0.1) 1.6 1.5 - 8.3 83
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations - {20.9) (20.9) - - -
Profit/lloss] from discontinued operations 0.2 {19.3 1911 0.3 126.4} [24.1)

Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items of £20.9 million in the current year represent the loss on the disposal [refer to note 32].
Prior year non-recurring costs of £34.7 million comprise impairments of the uncompetitive assets in the Hygiene Wipes business. Non-recurring
taxation credits of £1.6 million [2004: £8.3 million] relate to deferred tax liabilities reversed due to the sale and impairments.

During the year the net operating cash outflow from Hygiene Wipes was £1.2 million (2004: an inflow of £4.8 million). Additionally, Hygiene Wipes
paid £0.3 mittion (2006: £3.2 million} in respect of investing activities and paid £0.1 million [2004: received £2.6 million] in respect of financing activities.

The effect of discontinued operations on segment results is disclosed in note 4,
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10. Dividends

2007 2004
€m £'m
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Dividends paid to shareholdérs 7.0
Dividends paid to former parent company prior to demerger - 5.5
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2007 of 2.50 pence |2004: 3.95 pencel per share 3.1 4.8

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these
financial statements.

11. Earnings per share

- From continuing and discontinued operations

2007 2004
Earnings £'m £m
Basic and diluted:
Loss for the year - basic loss attributable to ordinary shareholders (112.5) [69.3)
Restructuring costs and non-recurring items 124.0 97.1
Tax an restructuring costs and non-recurring items 18.2) (21.2)
Adjusted earnings 3.3 6.6
Number of shares
Weighted average number of 5p ordinary shares:
For basic earnings per share 122,440,375 122,440,375
For diluted earnings per share 122,440,375 122,440,375
Earnings/{loss) per share
Basic:
Adjusted 2.7p 5.4p
Unadjusted 191.9p 156.51p
Diluted:
Adjusted 2.7p 5.4p
Unadjusted 191.9)p (56.51p
From continuing operations

2007 2006
Earnings £'m £m
Basic and diluted: .
Loss for the year - basic loss attributable to ordinary shareholders (93.4) 143.2)
Total adjusted earnings for continuing and discontinued operations 33 b6
Adjustments to exclude profit for the period from discontinued operations {0.2) (0.3
Adjusted earnings from continuing operations 3.1 6.3
Number of shares .
Weighted average number of 5p erdinary shares:
For basic earnings per share 122,440,375 122,440,375
For diluted earnings per share 122,440,375 122,440,375
Earnings/(toss) per share
Basic:
Adjusted 2.6p 5.1p
Unadjusted (76.3lp 135.31p
Diluted:
Adjusted 2.6p 5.1p

Unadjusted (76.31p [35.3)p
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11. Earnings per share continued

From discontinued operations

2007 2004
Earnings €m £'m
Basic and diluted:
Loss for the year - basic loss attributable to erdinary shareholders (19.1] [26.1]
Restructuring costs and non-recurring items 20.9 34.7
Tax on restructuring costs and non-recurring items 1.4 (8.3]
Adjusted earnings from discontinued operations 0.2 0.3
Number of shares
Weighted average number of 5p ordinary shares:
For basic earnings per share 122,440,375 122,440,375
For diluted earnings per share 122,440,375 122,440,379
Earnings/[loss) per share
Basic:
Adjusted 0.1p 0.3p
Unadjusted 115.6)p 21.2)p
Diluted:
Adjusted 0.1p 0.3p
Unadjusted (15.6)p (21.2p

Adjusted earnings per share are shown calculated on earnings before restructuring costs and non-recurring items because the directors consider

this gives a better indication of underlying performance.

For 2006, the number of ordinary shares in issue immediately after the demerger was used as the weighted average number for the pericd prior

to demerger.

12. Employees

2007 2004
Average monthly number (inctuding executive directors) Number Number
By region
Europe 1,020 .31
North America 937 1,327
Rest of World 472 310
2,429 2,948
By market
Hygiene 1,428 1,936
Industrial 1,001 1,012
2,429 2,948
Employment costs E'm Em
Wages and salaries 75.9 81.2
Social security costs 10.6 16.5
Pension costs [note 25] 3.2 33
Expense of share-based payments [nate 27} 0.5 0.1
90.2 1011
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13. Intangible assets

Software &
Gaodwill Licences Total
E'm £'m £m

Cost
At st January 2006 112.0 6.4 118.4
Exchange adjustments (7.4 (0.7 (8.1]
Recognised on acquisition of a subsidiary 2.6 0.2 28
Additions : - 0.6 0.6
At 1st January 2007 - 107.2 45 113.7
Exchange adjustments 08 0.1 0.9
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary (33.1] (0.2) 133.3)
Additions - 6.2 0.2
At 31st December 2007 74.9 5.6 81.5
Amortisation and impairment
At 1st January 2004 - (2.1 {2.1)
Exchange adjustments 0.4 0.2 0.6
Charge for the year f14.6} (1.2) (15.8)
At 1st January 2007 {14.2} (3.1 1172.3)
Exchange adjustments 0.2) 0.2} 10.4)
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary 14.2 0.1 14.3
Charge for the year 146,71 (0.9] {47.6]
At 31st December 2007 (46.9) [4.1) (51.0)
Carrying amount:
31st December 2007 28.0 2.5 30.5
31st December 2004 93.0 3.4 96.4

Licences are amortised over the period to which they relate, which is on average five years.

Goodwill acquired in a business cambination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units ["CGUs™] that are expected to benefit from
the business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill has been atlocated as follows:

2007 2006

£m £'m

Veratec 5.0 48,2
Tenotex 12.7 223
US Industrial (Reemay and Superiori 9.7 13.9
AQF - 5.0
Other - several CGUs 0.6 3.4
28.0 3.0

The £2.6 million goodwill arising in the year ended 31st Decernber 2006 was in respect of the acquisition of Blowitex GmbH [note 33).
The business tests goodwill for impairment annually or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

The recaverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calcutations. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period.

The business prepares cash flow furecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management and extrapolates cash flows for
the following 40 years based on an estimated growth rate for the current year plus one, with future profit levels then held flat, Growth rates used for
the upcoming year are based on selling price and cost assumptions for each business individually, built from management's current knowtedge and
expectations for future profit evolution in the short term. These rates do not exceed the average long-term industry growth rate for the relevant markets.
Forecasts specifically exclude any incremental profits that may be generated through targeted investments in new technologies or strategic markets.
Value in use calculations assume an annual tevel of maintenance capital expenditure throughout the forecast period, with periodic higher investments
included based on previous experience of the useful lives of the equipment in use. Specific capital injections to fund projects and new technologies are
excluded from value in use calculations. The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is estimated by reference to the Group’s weighted average
cost of capital and the degree of risk that management feels attaches to a CGU. The discount rates applied in the review at December 2007 range from
10% to 13% (2004: 10%).

Goodwill impairment recognised during the year of £46.7 million [2006: £14.6 million] is described in note 6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continues

14. Property, plant and equipment

Land & Fixtures &

Buildings Equipment Total
Cost or valuation Em em Em
At 1st January 2006 121.8 571.8 693.6
Exchange adjustments (8.2) (33.1] (41.3]
Recognised on acquisition of a subsidiary 0.7 [ER:) 1.5
Additions 7.4 45.7 53.1
Disposals (0.1 (0.9) 1.0)
Transfers between categories 23 (2.3) -
Asset write downs in respect of non-recurring iterns (6.2) [94.8] (101.0]
Other asset write downs - (0.8] {0.8]
At 1st January 2007 17.7 486.4 604.1
Exchange adjustments 4.8 18.1 22.9
Additions 1.3 316 32.7
Disposals (1.7 (0.8) [2.5)
Derecognised on disposal of businesses (10.7] (62.3) {73.0
Asset write downs in respect of non-recurring items (6.8) (47.9) [54.7]
At 31st December 2007 104.4 4251 529.5
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1st January 2006 (32.5) [254.9) [287.4)
Exchange adjustments 2.8 15.7 18.5
Depreciation charge for the year (4.0} (33.21 137.2)
Disposals - 0.5 0.5
kmpairments (5.6 [26.6) [32.2)
Transfers between categories [0.6) 0.6 -
Asset write downs in respect of non-recurring items 3.1 61.0 &4.1
Other asset write downs - 0.2 0.2
At 1st January 2007 [36.8] {236.7] {273.5
Exchange adjustments (1.2 (10.4] £11.4)
Depreciation charge for the year 13.7] (28.9) (32.61
Disposals 0.6 0.7 1.3
Derecognised on disposal of businesses 30 391 42.1
Impairments (0.2) (4.6) {4.8]
Asset write downs in respect of nen-recurring items 1.1 14.9 16.0
At 31st December 2007 (37.2) (225.9) 263.1}
Carrying amount:
31st December 2007 7.2 199.2 268.4
31st December 2006 80.9 249.7 330.6
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14. Property, plant and equipment continued

The net book value derecognised in respect of disposal of businesses of £30.9 million comprises £2%9.6 million in respect of Hygiene Wipes
and £1.3 million in respect of the sale of the Group's cotton bleaching business in Griswoldville, Massachusetts {see note 32].

Non-recurring asset write downs of £38.7 million include £15.0 million in respect of the closure of Gray Court included within restructuring costs
in note 4, The balance of £23.7 million, together with impairments of £4.8 million, is expensed through non-recurring cost of sales totalling
£31.8 million Inote é).

2007 2004
Capital commitments £&€m €m
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided 19.2 3.6

The carrying amount of the Group's fixtures and equipment includes an amaunt of £8.1 million {2006: £8.9 million] in respect of assets held under
finance leases.

At 31 December 2007, the carrying amount of the Graup’s fixtures and equipment includes £11.1 million [2006: £6.3 million] in respect of assets
in the course of construction.

Where assets have been impaired the recoverable amount has been determined by reference to its value in use, estimated using discount rates
ranging between 10% and 13% (2006: 10%).

15. Interests in associates

2007 2006°
£m £'m
Cost of investment in associates 1.1 1.1
Share of post acquisition profit, net of dividends received 0.4 0.3
1.5 1.4

* 2006 adjusted to reflect the fair allocation of the impairment provision against the ariginal cost of investment. This adjustment has not impacted
the carrying value.

In December 2007, the Group entered into an agreement to liquidate associate Advanced Design Concepts GmbH I"ADC"] and sell the intellectual
property owned by ADC to our associate partner. The Group has recognised a gain on disposat of this investment of £0.3 miltion, related primarily
to the sale to our associate partner of the right to use related intellectual property owned by our US Hygiene business [refer to note 4).

In Novemnber 2006, the Group sold its 50% undertaking in CNC Internationat Co. Ltd for £5.4 million/U5%$10.2 millian. The Group recegnised a book
loss of £1.6 million on the transaction arising from the write-off of unremitted profits [refer to note 4). Proceeds from the sale were used to repay
part of the revolving credit facility drawn down by Fiberweb on demerger.

The names of and interests in the Group’s associated undertakings are shown in note 36.

Aggregated amounts relating to associates:

2007 2006
£m £m
Total assets 5% 45
Total liabilities {1.8) £1.1)
Net assets 4.0 34
Revenue 11.0 21.0
Profit for the year 0.6 1.6
Business share of profit for the year 0.2 0.6
16. Other investments
2007 2006
£'m £'m
Cost or valuation
At 1st January - -
Balance reclassified during the year 0.8 -
At 31st December 2007 ’ 0.8 -

The carrying value of the Group's investments in Saudi German Nonwovens Products Co. (SGN] and Cordustex [Pty) Limited was reclassified
during the year. The Group owns a 15% interest in SGN and a 10% interest in Cordustex and the above value represents the original cost of
investent in these entities ptus a long term loan to SGN,
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17. Inventories

2007 2006
£'m £'m
Raw materials 13.3 29.7
Work-in-progress 7.8 121
Finished goods 41.6 40.3
62.7 821
18. Other financial assets
Trade and other receivables
2007 2006
£€m £m
Trade receivables 70.8 75.8
Amaunts owed by related parties 3.5 4.5
Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income ‘ 17.2 16.4
Derivative financial instruments 0.6 0.5
Trade and other receivables due within one year : 92.1 97.4
Trade and other receivables due after one year - 0.3
92.1 97.7

Trade receivables

The average credit pericd taken on sales of goods is 55 days [2004: 48 days). No interest is charged on the receivables paid within their due date.
Thereafter, the seller reserves the right to charge interest on the overdue outstanding balance at rates ranging from 1.5% to 4% above the bank
base interest rate of the relevant jurisdiction. An allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods of £1.3
million {2004: £1.3 million). This allowance has been determined by reference to past default experience and taking into account the Group's credit
insurance cover. Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an external credit scoring system, available for use via the provider of its credit
insurance cover, to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and define credit limits by customer.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value. Amounts owed by related parties
comprise amounts owed by the former parent company and include £3.5 million (2004: £3.5 million] in respect of indemnities provided for
corporation tax liabilities in accordance with the terms of the Demerger Agreement. ’

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of £14.0 million (2006: £12.8 million] which are past due at
the reporting date and for which the Group has not provided as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amaounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances, as in the event of default, the Group would pursue
reimbursement by claiming on its credit insurance cover.

Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables:

2007 2006
£m £'m
Amounts overdue by:
Less than 30 days 8.7 10.0
Between 30 - 60 days 4.4 1.9
Between 60 - 90 days 0.2 0.1
Mare than 90 days 0.7 0.8
14.0 12.8
Ageing of impaired receivables:
2007 2006
£'m £'m
Amounts overdue by:
Less than 30 days 0.1 0.1
Between 30 - 60 days 0.1 0.1
Between 60 - 90 days 0.4 0.4
More than 90 days 0.7 0.7
1.3 1.3
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18. Other financial assets continued

Movermnent in the allowance for estimated unrecoverable amounts in respect of trade receivables

2007 20056

£m £'m

Balance at the beginning of the year 13 2.2

Impairment losses recognised 0.4 0.2

Amaounts written off as uncollectible {0.5) .0l

Exchange adjustments 0.1 (0.1}

Balance at the end of the year 1.3 1.3
Cash and cash equivalents

2007 2004

£€m £m

Cash on hand and at bank 171 34.6

Short term bank deposits not repayable on demand - 0.6

Cash and cash equivalents 171 35.2

Less: bank overdrafts (8.9 -

Net cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes 8.2 35.2

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the business and short-term bank depasits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group's cash and cash equivalents at the reporting date are denominated in the following currencies:

Swedish
US Dollar Euro Krona Sterling Other Total

£'m £'m £m £m £'m £m
31st December 2007
Cash on hand and at bank 3.9 5.8 2.2 18 2.4 17.1
31st December 2006
Cash on hand and at bank 6.2 23.6 1.6 1.7 1.5 346
Short term bank deposits .
not repayable on demand - - - - 0.6 0.6

6.2 23.6 1.6 1.7 2.1 35.2
Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and ather receivables and investments. The credit risk on liquid funds
and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful
receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where there is an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a
reduction of the cash flows. The Group has global ¢credit insurance cover to mitigate the risk of a material bad debt; the terms of this policy impose
credit limits on individual customers according te their credit rating and the maximum excess payable by the Group in the event of a claim is
£37.000, both of which further restrict the Group’s exposure to default.

The Group has same concentration of credit risk, especially within the Hygiene businesses, where a significant percentage of sales are to a small
group of key custamers. However the Group's major customers have high credit ratings, and therefore the directors do not believe that this creates
a significant risk exposure. Refer also to the Business Review on Page 24.

Categories of financial assets
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis

on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset are disclosed in note 2.
Carrying value

2007 2006

£m £'m

Fair value through profit and toss [FVTPLI - held for trading - 0.6 -
Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships - 0.5
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 108.6 132.4

109.2 132.9
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19. Trade and other payables

2007 2006

£E'm £'m

Trade payables 48.5 48.6
Other taxation and social security 5.9 3.2
Accruals and deferred income 20.8 25.5
Derivative financial instruments 1.7 -
76.9 77.3

Trade payabies principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period taken for trade
purchases is 47 days (2006: 43 daysl. The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair value.

Categories of financial liabilities
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis

on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial liability are disclosed in note 2.
' Carrying value

2007 2006

fm . Em

Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships 1.7 -
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost . 236.6 286.5
238.3 286.5

20. Obligations under finance leases
Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments

2007 2006 - 2007 2006
£'m E'm £€m £'m

Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year 2.6 2.4 2.3 23
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2.4 4.6 2.4 4.4
5.0 7.2 4.7 6.7
Less: future finance charges 10.3) {0.5] nfa n/fa
Present value of lease abligations 4.7 6.7 4.7 6.7
Less: amounts due for settlement within ane year (shown under current liabilities) (2.3) (2.3
2.4 4.4

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is seven years. For the year ended
31st December 2007, the average effective borrowing rate was 5.25% (2006: 4.0%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date or vary based an
prevailing interest rates.

Finance lease obligations are denominated in the following currencies: Euros £1.2 million [2004: £2.0 million} and Swedish Krona £3.5 millian
(2005: £4.7 rillion].

The fair value of the Group's lease obligations approximates their carrying amount.

Obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets.
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21. Operating lease arrangements

The Group as lessee

2007 2006

£€m £'m

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year 1.8 3.4
At the balance sheet date, the business has outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2007 2006

£m £'m

Within one year 1.6 2.5

In the second to fifth years inclusive 4.7 6.1

After five years 0.9 5.2

7.2 13.8

Operating lease payments represent amounts payable by the Group for certain of its office properties, plant and equipment. Leases are negotiated
for an average term of one year for office properties, twelve years for warehouses and four years for equipment. Rentals are generally fixed or

adjusted for Lased on inflation.

22. Bank overdrafts and loans

2007 2006
£'m £m
Bank overdrafts 8.9 0.6
Bank loans 141.1 192.9
Loans ether than from banks - 0.3
150.0 193.8
The horrowings are repayable as foltows:
2007 2006
£'m £'m
0On demand or within one year 18.4 10.3
In the second year - 2.7
In the third to fifth years inclusive 131.9 180.8
150.0 193.8
Less: Amount due for settlement within one year (shown under current Lliabilities) (18.1) (10.3]
Amounts due for settlement after more than one year 131.9 1835
The fair value of the Group's borrowings is not materially different from their carrying values.
The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings at the reporting date are denominated in the following currencies:

US Dollar Euro  Swedish Krena Sterling Other Total
31st December 2007 £€m £m £m £€m £'m €m
Bank overdrafts 3.4 2.6 .6 23 - 8.9
Bank loans 62.8 63.7 1.2 (0.9] 43 1411

66.2 66.3 11.8 1.4 4.3 150.0
31st December 2006
Bank overdrafts - 0.6 - - - 0.6
Bank loans 93.4 85.4 141 - - 192.9
Loans other than from banks - 0.3 - - - 0.3

93.4 B&.3 14.1 - - 193.8
The average interest rates on borrowings from unrelated third parties are as follows:

2007 2006

US Dollar 5.465% 6.65%
Euro 5.32% 5.05%
Swedish Krona 4L.94% 4.461%
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22. Bank overdrafts and loans continued

Since demerger, the Group's primary source of funds is a $439.5 million multi-currency, revolving credit facility ["RCF™) provided by a syndicate
of several international banks, maturing in 2011. Borrowings under this facility are in Euro, US Dollars and Swedish Krona for maturities of up to
six months. All amaunts drawn down are at floating interest rates. Amounts owed under the RCF are shown as maturing between 3 and 5 years.
The majority of borrowings are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Group to interest rate risk. The effective rates on borrowings are not
materially different from their nominal interest rates.

Bank overdrafts are repayabte on demand. The business has secured leans of £6.0 million (2006: £2.5 million). The RCF is guaranteed by a number
of the Group's trading entities in respect of the parent’s liabilities. All other bank loans are unsecured, although there are some cases where
parent guarantees have been issued in respect of bank loans to averseas subsidiaries.

At year end the Group had available $177.3 million [2006: $84.0 millian] of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

Liquidity risk management

The Group is exposed to short term liquidity risks if outflows exceed the funds currently available at the time. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
managernent rests with the board of directors. The board in canjunction with the Group’s treasury function have built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long term funding and liquidity rmanagement requiremnents. The
Group manages liguidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves under the revolving credit facility and continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and ensuring adequate funds are drawn down to cover any autflows required, subject to the restrictions imposed by the Group's banking
covenants, Additional undrawn facilities that the Group has at its disposal to Further reduce liquidity risk are set out above.

The following table details the Group's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on undiscounted
contractual maturities of the financial assets.

Within
1year 1-5years Totat
E£'m £'m £m
31st December 2007 .
Non-interest bearing 91.5 - 91.5
31st December 2006
Non-interest bearing 96.9 0.3 97.2

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Within

1 year 1-5 years Total
£m £'m £€m

31st December 2007
Naon-interest bearing 79.4 2.5 81.9
Finance lease liability 23 2.4 4.7
Yariable interest rate instruments 19.3 1630 182.4
101.0 168.0 269.0

3st December 2006
Non-interest bearing 79.9 6.1 86.0
Finance lease liability 23 4.4 6.7
Variable interest rate instruments 10.9 236.7 247.6
93.1 2472 340.3
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22. Bank overdrafts and loans continued

The following table details the Group’s liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted net cash inftows/[outflows) on the derivative instruments that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross inflows and [outflows)
on those derivatives that require gross settlement, When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined
by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates as illustrated by the yietd curves existing at the reporting date.

Within :

1 month 1-46 menths Total
31st December 2007 t'm £'m £m
Interest rate swaps - (1.5} (1.5}
Foreign exchange forward contracts ) 0.6 (0.2} 0.4

0.6 1.7) 11.1)
31st December 20046
Interest rate swaps - 0.5 0.5

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be abte to continue as going concerns while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt which includes the
borrowings as set aut in this nate, cash and cash equivalents as set out in note 18 and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising
issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in notes 28 to 30. The Group reviews its capital structure regularly and as part of such
review, it considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital,

Externally imposed capital requirement

Under the revolving credit facility the Group is subject to capital requirements of a gearing ratio [net debt to EBITDA] and an interest cover ratio
([EBITDA to interest] which are measured every six months on the 30th of June and the 31st of December. EBITDA is defined as underlying operating
profit adjusted to exclude interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation and certain other non-cash items.

The net debt to EBITDA requirements are set out in the following table.

Relevant period ending: Consolidated Net Borrowings shall not exceed
31 December 2006 and 30 June 2007 3.50 times EBITDA
31 December 2007 and 30 June 2008 3.25 times EBITDA
31 December 2008 and 30 June 2009 3.00 times EBITDA
31 December 2009 and 30 June 2010 2.75 times EBITDA
31 Decemnber 2010 2.50 times EBITDA

The EBITDA to interest ratio is also measured every six months as follows:

Relevant period ending: EBITDA to exceed or be equal to
31 December 2006 . 5.00 times interest
30 June 2007 4.00 times interest
31 December 2007 4.50 times interest
30 June 2008 4,75 times interest
31 Decemnber 2008 to 31 Decermnber 2010 5.00 times interest

The Group has remained within these timits at all times over the life of the facility.
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23. Derivative financial instruments

2007 2007 2006 2006

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabitities
Derivatives that are designated and effective as £'m £'m £'m £'m
hedging instruments carried at fair value
Interest rate swaps - (1.5] 0.5 -
Forward foreign currency contracts - (0.2) - -
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss [FYTPL)
Held for trading derivatives that are not designated in hedge accounting relationships:
Forward foreign currency contracts 0.4 - - -
Nate 18, 19 0.5 1.7 0.5 -

Further details of derivative financial instruments are provided in note 22.

The fair values of all derivative financial instruments shown in the table above are based on market values of equivalent instruments at the balance
sheet date and are held as assets and liahilities within other receivables and payables. Derivative instruments are fair valued based on the estimated
market valuations provided by the respective bank with which the instrument is held.

Financial risk management objectives

The Group's carperate treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets,
monitors and manages the financial risks relating to aperations. These risks include market risk lincluding currency risk, fair value interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group seeks to manage the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge these exposures. The use of financial
derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on fareign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financiat derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity.
Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the Chief Financial Officer on a continuous basis and periodically by internal audit,
The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, inctuding derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Market risk
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group enters
into a variety of financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, including:

» forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising in trading subsidiaries, primarily through net sales to customers
and purchases from suppliers in currencies other than their domestic local currency;

¢ interest rate swaps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates; and
» forward foreign exchange swaps to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on net balance sheet exposure around the Group.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk management

The overall policy of Fiberweb is to use borrowings in currency to manage the transtational currency risk arising from assets and earnings in overseas
subsidiaries. Accordingly, the currency profile of borrowings under the RCF broadly mirrors the currency profile of the Group’s net assets. Foreign
currency-denominated borrowings are largely designated as net investment hedges. Itis the Group's policy not to undertake speculative currency
transactions.

Fiberweb's business is characterised by a relatively low level of cross border activity, and therefare the Group has tittle transactional currency
exposure. Qverall, the volume of transactions with a currency impact is below 10% of turnover. However, the Group's policy is that, where significant
transactional exposures exist, these exposures should be hedged with maturities not to exceed twelve months.

The Group manitars the translational foreign currency exposures of its financiat assets and liahilities on a manthly basis, adapting its portfatio of
loans and hedges as may be required.

Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange contracts taken out to hedge transactional risk are taken to the income statement. As at 31st
Decemnber 2007, the Group had committed to a notional amount of £30.5 million (2006: £5.7 millien) of forward contracts to buy or sell foreign
currency. The fair vatue of such transactions was £0.4 million (2006: €nil).
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23. Derivative financial instruments continued

Foreign currency risk management continued
The following table details the forward foreign currency contracts outstanding at the year end:

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Average
exchange rates Fareign currency Contract value Fair value

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
€m £'m £m £'m

QOutstanding contracts:
Buy Eurofsell GBP 1.39 1.46 21.0 8.5 15.1 5.7 0.4 -
Buy USD/sell GBP 2.04 - 12.0 - 5.9 - 0.2 -
Sell SEK/buy GBP 131 - 90.0 - 6.9 - 0.2 -
Buy SEK/sell GBP 13.17 - 9.4 - 0.7 - - -
Selt USD/buy Euro 1.44 - 0.5 - 0.3 - - -
Sell Euro/buy GBP 1.40 - 0.1 - 0.1 - - -
Buy SEK/sell Euro 9.34 - 18.7 - 1.5 - - -
30.5 5.7 0.4 -

All contracts mature within 30 days of year end

Fareign currency sensitivity anatysis
The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuations in the exchange rate applicable for the US Dallar and the Euro. Operating profit, EBITDA and net debt
are the key inputs into the Group’s gearing cavenant and the exchange impacts on these variables are monitored closely.

The following table illustrates the impact on the Group's continuing underlying operating profit, EBITDA, net debt and equity of a 10% increase and
decrease in Sterling against each of these currencies, assuming all other variables are unchanged. The use of a 10% variation has been chosen
in light of the magnitude of recent fluctuations in both the US Dollar and Euro values against Sterling. These values have been computed using
the currency profile of the Group's operating profit, EBITDA and net debt. For the restatement of the Group’s operating profit and EBITDA, the Sterling
equivalents have been retranslated by flexing the cumulative average exchange rates used by the Group for the relevant pertods. For the restatement
of the Group's net debt and equity, the Sterling equivalents have been retranslated by flexing the actual closing exchange rates used by the Group
at the period ends. The retevant cumulative average and closing exchange rates used by the Group for 2007 and 2006 are published in the Business
Review on page 24.

2007 2006
£m £m
Flexing the USD/E cross rate
Continuing underlying operating profit:
As reported 13.8 271
Restated assuming a 10% increase in the USD/E cross rate 133 261
Restated assuming a 10% decrease in the USD/E cross rate 14.5 28.4
Continuing underlying EBITDA:
As reported 45.6 60.6
Restated assuming a 10% increase in the USD/E cross rate 44.0 58.3
Restated assuming a 10% decrease in the USD/E cross rate 47.6 63.3
Net debt:
As reported 137.46 165.3
Restated assuming a 10% increase in the USD/E cross rate 1219 157.2
Restated assuming a 10% decrease in the USD/E cross rate . 144.5 175.0
Equity:
As reported 185.3 297.0
Restated assuming a 10% increase in the USD/E cross rate 183.9 288.4
Restated assuming a 10% decrease in the USD/E ¢cross rate 187.0 307.5
Flexing the Euro/E cross rate
Continuing underlying operating profit;
As reported 13.8 271
Restated assuming a 10% increase in the Euro/f cross rate 13.0 26.0
Restated assuming a 10% decrease in the Euro/E cross rate 14.9 28.4
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23. Derivative financial instruments continued

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis continued

2007 2006
Continuing underiying EBITDA: £'m £m
As reported 45.6 60.6
Restated assuming a 10% increase in the Euro/E cross rate 43.8 58.4
Restated assuming a 10% decrease in the Euro/f cross rate 47.9 63.1
Net debt;
As reported ) 137.6 165.3
Restated assuming a 10% increase in the Euro/f cross rate 1321 159.4
Restated assuming a 10% decrease in the Euro/€ cross rate 144.3 172.4
Equity:
As reported 185.3 297.0
Restated assuming a 10% increase in the Euro/€ cross rate 179.0 290.0
Restated assuming a 10% decrease in the Euro/f cross rate 193.0 305.8

The impact of exchange rate fluctuations on the Group’s aperating profit and EBITDA has reduced during 2007, despite notable movements in both
the Eurp and USD cross rate with Sterling, as the underlying profit generation has deteriorated. Exchange rate movements have a much greater
impact on the Sterling equivalent of net debt and equity, since the translation is based on the exchange rates at a given peint in time, rather than
the cumulative average rate applied to the income statement, and the absolute value being retranslated is in excess of £130.0 millicn and £180.0
million respectively. The reduction in net debt during 2007 has helped mitigate this translation exposure. The significant reduction in the Group’s
asset base through impairment in the current year has alse reduced the translation impact on equity.

Interest rate risk

The Group is predominantly exposed to interest rate fluctuations on the portion of the revolving credit facility that is not covered by hedging
arrangements. The total amount drawn down under the RCF at the year end was £131.6 million [2004: £181.3 million). The Group’s policy is to use
a combination of debt and derivative instruments to hedge portions of its interest rate exposure for varying periods, up to the maturity of its
underlying borrowing facilities. Interest rate swaps are entered into after due consideration by the Group's treasury function of actual base interest
rates and financial market projections for future changes to these rates based on economic conditions, and such swaps must be approved by the
board of directors in line with Group policy.

The Group entered into a series of interest rate swaps for totals of U5$100.0 million and Eurc 40.0 million [2006: US$100.0 million), spread over
several banks, whereby it pays a btended average fixed rate of 4.78% for US Dollar and 4.62% for Euros and receives floating rate. The interest rate
swaps have been designated interest risk hedges. They mature in 2010 and 2011, but settle on a semi-annual basis. The floating rate on the
interest rate swaps is 6-month US Doltar LIBOR and é-month EURIBOR respectively. The Group will settle the difference between the fixed and
floating interest rate on a net basis. The interest rate swaps settlements and the interest payments on the loan occur simultaneously and the amount
deferred in equity is recegnised in the profit or loss over the period that the floating rate interest payments on debt impact profit or loss. The fair
market value of the swaps at 31st December 2007 was a lass of £1.5 million [2006: a gain of £0.53 million] and the loss [2006: gain) has been debited
[2006: credited] 10 the hedging reserve [note 29],

The following table summarises the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of the interest rate swap contracts outstanding as at the
reporting date:

Qutstanding receive floating pay fixed contracts:

Average contract MNotionat
fixed interest rate principal amount Fair value
2007 2006 2007 2008 2007 2006
% % £m £'m £m £'m
Maturing in less than 1 year 4.69 4.80 94.4 51.1 (1.5) 0.5

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The interest sensitivity analysis below is based on the assumiption that changes in market interest rates affect the interest income or expense of
variable interest financial instruments and that a change in market interest rates only affects interest income or expensa in relation to financial
instruments with fixed interest rates if these are recognised at their fair value.
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23. Derivative financial instruments continued

Under these assumptions, if market interest rates over the course of the year were on average 1% higher or lower for all currencies in which the
Group had borrewings this would increase or decrease profit before tax and equity as follows:

2007 2006
£m £€m
Average amount drawn down under the revolving credit facility 153.6 184.1
Average amount covered by hedging arrangements 70.6 25.7
Average amount exposed to interest rate fluctuations 83.0 158.4
Effect an profit before tax and equity in the event of a 1% rise or fall in average interest rates over the year 0.8 1.6

Arnounts shown for 2006 are based on the extrapolation of averages for the peried from demerger on 16th November 2006 to 31st December 2004.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has decreased during the current period mainly due to the reduction in drawn down amounts under the
facility and the addition of Euro interest rate swaps.

Changes in interest rates in the market affect the fair value of derivative financial instruments designated as hedging instruments and all interest
rate hedges are expected to be highly effective.

Changes in fair values of interest rate hedging instruments are taken to the hedge reserve.

Commodity Risks .

The Group faces commodity raw material price exposure to a number of raw materials, mainly polypropylene and, to a lesser extent, polyester and
polyethylene. The monthly management reporting process highlights the net impact, adverse or favourable, of fluctuations in raw material prices
and this is considered by the board. The Group prefers to manage its exposure to polypropylene and others through business arrangements with
its suppliers and customers, which neutralise part of the exposure. The market for appropriate hedging instruments is monitored continously by
management with a view to mitigate this risk further. At 31st December 2007 and 2006, no commodity derivatives were outstanding.

Further discussion of the key risks to which Fiberweb is exposed can be found on pages 24 and 25 of the Business Review.

24. Provisions
Restructuring provisions

£'m
As at 1st January 2007 6.2
Exchange rate adjustments (0.1
Charged in the year 6.6
Utilised in the year ) (6.0]
As at 31st December 2007 6.7

Restructuring pravisions represent costs provided in relation to obligations existing at the balance sheet date for reorganisation around the globe:
£5.3 mitlion in respect of US actions, including £3.5 million in respect of an aneraus lease provision in North America, and £1.4 million in respect
of redundancy costs across Europe. The provision brought forward relates to the rationalisation of Terram and the further restructuring of the US
Hygiene business. Amaounts payable after mare than one year comprise rent obligations in respect of the onerous lease provision in North America.

2007 2004

Analysed as: €m £'m
Current liabilities 4.2 2.6
Non-current liabilities 25 3.6
6.7 6.2

25. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of pensian plans worldwide. The majority of these are defined contribution in nature. The nermal pension cost for
the Group, including early retirement costs, was £3.2 million (2006 £3.3 million) of which £3.1 million [2006: £3.1 million] was in respect of foreign
schemes. This includes £1.9 million {2006: £2.1 million] relating to defined contribution schemes. The pension costs are assessed in accordance
with the advice of independent qualified actuaries, where practicable, using a variety of methods and assumptions and otherwise, in respect of
certain foreign schemes, in accordance with local regulations.

The Group's foreign pension schemes mainly relate to defined contribution plans. There are also a numnber of funded final salary defined benefit
pension arrangements, principalty in North America. Pension costs have been calculated by independent qualified actuaries, using the projected
unit method and assumptions appropriate to the arrangements in place.

The Group also operates a number of plans in North America which principally cover healthcare and life assurance benefits for its retirees.
The costs of these other post-retirement benefits are assessed by independent qualified actuaries..
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25. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits continued

tn accordance with I1AS 19 the latest actuarial vatuations of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes and healthcare plan have been reviewed
and updated as at 31st December 2007. The following weighted average financial assumptions have been adopted:

Marth America Rest of World
p.a. (%] 2007 2006 2005 2007 2004 2005
Discount rate 8.0 5.8 5.5 5.6 4.4 4.5
Rate of increase to pensionable salaries 3.0 30 3.0 33 30 3.4
Price inflation .28 2.8 - 28 21 2.1 21
Rate of increase to pensions in payment - - - - 1.8 1.9 1.8
Rate of healthcare cost increases 9% reducing to 5% over the next 4 years - - -

Mortality assumptions:

Mortality assumptions have been updated at 3tst December 2007 based on the US standard table RP2000 with allowance for future improvements
in mortality allowed for in line with projections scale AA. Generational tables have been used so that the basis used to calculate liabilities in respect
of future pensioners assumes lower mortality [i.e. a bigger allowance for lmprovementsl than for current pensioners. The expected future
lifetime assumptions are summarised as follows:

Expected future lifetime of: 2007 2004
- a 65 year old current male pensioner 19.1 years 18.0 years
- a 68 year old current female pensioner 21.1 years 21.1 years
- a 65 year old future male pensioner 19.1 years 18.0 years
- a 65 year old future female pensioner 21.1 years 21.1 years
The fair value of the assets and liabilities of the schemes at each balance sheet date were:
Narth America Rest of World Total

2007 2004 2605 2007 2005 2005 2007 2006 2005
Assets £m £m £m €'m £m E'm £m £m £'m
Equities 16.0 14.2 14.2 0.1 05 0.5 161 14.7 14.7
Government bonds 1.0 18 19 0.1 0.1 0.1 141 1.9 20
Corporate bonds 0.9 1.7 13.5 - - - 0.9 1.7 13.5
Other 1.3 1.1 0.3 0.8 - - 21 1.1 0.3
Total fair value of scheme assets 29.2 28.8 29.9 1.0 0.6 0.6 30.2 29.4 30.5
Obligations
Present vatue of funded defined
benefit abligations (37.5) (387 (43.7) (0.9) (0.4) (0.5)  (38.4) (39.1] (44.2]
Present value of unfunded defined
benefit obligations (7.8 (7.3) (7.4) (5.8) (6.2) (6.4)  (13.8) (13.5) (13.8]
Total value of scheme abligations [45.3) [46.0 51.1] 16.7) (5.6 (6.9 (52.0) 152.4) (58.0
Liability recognised on the balance sheet date  [16.1) (17.2] [21.2) (5.7) (6.0 (6.3] 21.8) [23.2} (27.5)

The funding policy for the schemes is reviewed on a systematic basis in consultation with the independent scheme actuary in order to ensure that
the funding contributions from sponsoring employers are appropriate to meet the liabilities of the schemes over the long term,

The expected rates of return reflect the Group’s best estimate of the investrent returns {net of tax and expenses] that will be earned on each asset
class over the long term. The expected return on assets in the analysis of the income statement is based on weighted average returns using these
rates, and taking into account the asset allocation of each plan.
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25. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits continued

North America
% 2007 2004 2005
Long term expected return on assets
Equities 8.3 8.8 8.3
Government bonds 4.5 4.8 47
Corporate bends 5.5 58 5.1
Other 3.0 3.0 4.0
Total 6.7 7.3 6.4
North America Rest of World Total

2007 2006 2007 2005 2007 2006
Analysis of income statement charge £'m €m £m €m t'm Em
Current servica cost 0.3 0.3 0.8 0.8 1.1 1.1
Interest cost 25 2.7 0.2 0.2 27 2.9
Expected return on assets (2.0 (1.9] 0.1 - (2.11 (1.9
Immediate recognition of losses/[gains)
arising over the year - - 0.2 (0.1] 0.2 {0.1)
Losses due to settlements, curtailments and
termination benefits 0.3 0.2 - - 0.3 0.2

1.1 1.3 1.1 0.9 2.2 2.2

Expense recognised in income statement

Current service costs and curtailment gains/losses and termination benefits in respect of underlying trading operations have been recognised in
the income statement within administrative expenses. Curtailment gains/losses in respect of non-recurring restructuring activity have been
recagnised in the income statermnent in restructuring costs. Net interest payable of £0.6 million (2005: £1.0 million] has been recognised within finance

costs [see note 4],

North America Rest of World Total

2007 2004 2007 2004 2007 20046
Changes to the fair value of scheme C'm E'm Em Em £m Em
assets during the year
Fair value of scheme assets at beginning of year 288 299 0.6 0.6 29.4 30.5
Expected return on assets 2.0 1.9 0.1 - 2.1 1.9
Actual employer contributions 2.7 3.2 11 1.0 8 4.2
Contributions by plan participants 0.2 01 - - - 0.2 0.1
Net benefits paid out (4.5) {3.1) (1.6) (1.0 (6.1 (4.1)
Actuarial gains on assets 2t 0.5 0.7 0.1 2.7 0.6
Settlements (1.5} - - - 1.5) -
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (0.5} (3.7) 0.1 (0.1 (0.4) (3.8]
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 29.2 28.8 1.0 0.6 30.2 29.4

North America Rest of World Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Changes to the defined benefit E'm Em £'m Em em E'm
obligation during the year
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 46.0 511 6.6 6.9 52.6 58.0
Current service cost 0.3 0.3 0.8 0.8 11 1.1
Interest cost 25 2.7 0.2 0.2 2.7 2.9
Contributians by plan participants 0.2 0.1 - - 0.2 0.1
Actuarial losses/[gains) on scheme Lliabilities * 2.9 1.0 0.7 10.1) 3.6 0.9
Net benefits paid out (4.5 (3.1 [1.6) 1.0) 16.1) [4.1)
Gains due to settlements and curtailments 1.21 (48] - - .2) [0.1)
Liabilities disposed of - - [0.8) - (0.6) -
Termination benefits - 0.3 - - - 0.3
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (0.9) (6.3) 0.5 (0.2) (0.3} [6.5)
Defined benefit obligation at end of year - 45.3 46.0 6.7 6.6 52.0 52.6

* Includes changes to the actuarial assumptions

79




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continved

For the year ended 31st December 2007

N

25. Pensions and ather post-retirement benefits continued

North America Rest of World Total

2007 2006 2007 2005 2007 2006

£m £'m €m £'m £€m £'m
Actual return on scheme assets 4.0 2.4 0.1 0.1 41 2.5
Analysis of amounts recognised in the Staterment
of Recognised Income and Expense
Total actuarial [losses)/gains recognised in the year  {0.9) (0.5] 0.2 0.2 (0.7) (0.3}
Total losses in the Statement of Recognised
incorne and Expense (0.9} (0.5) 0.2 0.2 (0.7) (0.3}
Cumulative amount of losses recognised in the
Statement of Recognised Income and Expense 17.1) [6.2] {1.3) [1.5) (8.4] (7.7]

A 1% increase in assumed medical cost trend rates would increase the aggregate charge in the income statement by £0.1 million (2006: £0.1 million)
and increase the net liability by £0.8 million [2006: £0.8 million). A 1% decrease in assumed medical cost trend rates would reduce the aggregate
charge in the income statement by £0.1 miltion (2004: £0.1 million] and reduce the net liability by £0.6 million (2006: £0.7 million).

North America Rest of World Total
. 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2085 2007 20.[]6 20.05

History of Asset Values, £m £'m £'m £m £'m £'m £€m £m £€m
Defined Benefit Obligations

Fair value of assets 29.2 288 29.9 1.0 0.6 0.4 30.2 29.4 30.5
Defined benefit obligations 45.3 46.0 51.1 6.7 b.6 6.9 52.0 52.6 58.0
Dedicit (16.1) (17.2} (21.2) 5.7 (6.0 (6.3 121.8) 23.2) (27.5]
Experience gains/[losses] on scheme assets 2.0 0.5 [0.4) 0.7 0.1 6.1 2.7 0.6 0.3
Experience losses on scheme liabitities 2.3 (1.4) {0.8) (0.3) - (1.8) [2.6) (1.4} (2.4

North America Rest of World Tatal
£€m £m £'m

Employer contributions in 2008 are estimated to be as follows: 21 0.1 2.2

BBA Group Income and Protection Plan

Prior to the demerger in Nevember 2006, the employees of the Group's UK operations participated in the BBA Group Income and Protection Plan,
a funded defined benefit final salary pension plan. The BBA Group Income and Protection Plan shared risks between entities in the BBA Group and
the Fiberweb Group. No apportionment of the assets and liabilities of this scheme has been made ta the Group in these financial statements on the
basis that there is no contractual agreement or stated policy for allocating the plan between the companies or businesses, and under 1AS 19, the
assets, lfabilities, income and expenses are recognised in the financial statements of the sponsoring employer of the plan, BBA Aviation plc.

Contributions payable by Group entities to the BBA Group Income and Protection Plan were determined with reference to the salaries of the
employees of Group entities who participated in the scheme. As from the demerger, the Group has no obligation to make further contributions to
this scheme. The charge recognised in the year was Enil [2006: £0.2 million).
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26. Deferred tax

Fixed Other Goodwilland  Tax (osses and Retirement

assets assets intangibles tax credits benefits Total

£€m £'m £'m £m £'m £m

At 1st January 2007 [40.9] a (5.8 1.3 7.0 [35.3]
Amounts derecognised on disposal of businesses 0.5 - - - - 0.5
Credited/[charged) in year 19.3 4.7 6.0 (1.4l (7.3) 1.9
Recognised directly in equity - 0.6 - - - 0.6
Exchange adjustments (1.7] 0.1 {0.2) - 0.3 (1.5]
At 31st December 2007 (22.8) (0.9) - (0.1) - (23.8)

In accordance with 1AS 12, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the anatlysis of the deferred tax balances
[after offset] for financial reporting purposes:

2007 2004

, £€m £'m

Deferred tax liabilities (24.3) (35.3]
Deferred tax assels 0.5 -
[23.8) (35.3)

At the balance sheet date, the group has unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to tax losses and other temporary differences of £18.3 million
{2004: £10.0 rillion] available for offset against future profits. These assets have not been recognised as the precise incidence of future profits in
the retevant countries and legal entities cannot be predicted accurately at this time. The Group’s tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred
tax tiabilities have not been recognised was £2.5 million (2004: £7.6 million). Na liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in associates are insignificant.

27. Share-based payments

Up to the date of demerger, certain directors and employees of Fiberweb were entitled to participate in the share option schemes of the former
parent company.

Since demerger, Fiberweb has issued its own share-based payment compensation plans. In the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group
recognised a total expense, within staff costs, in relation to share-based payments under equity-settled schemes of £0.5 mitlion [2006: £0.1 miltion].

The schemes in operation during the year are as follows.

Demerger Share Plan ["DSP”]
The DSP provides for the grant of free shares in the form of contingent shares. The award of shares under the DSP was made on 27th November 20046.

Shares in relation to the award will be released to participants at the end of an expected two year performance period, dependent on the extent
to which the performance conditions have been satisfied. Subject to good leaver provisions, awards are forfeited if the employee leaves before the
end of the vesting period.

Fifty per cent of the shares awarded under the grant are governed by a Total Shareholder Return ["TSR"] market-based performance condition,
The remaining fifty per cent are governed by an Earnings per Share ["EPS”] perfermance condition.

No DSP awards were granted during the year [2006: 2,091,250 shares were granted). The Group recognised a total expense in relation to DSP awards
of £0.4 rniltion (2006: £72,000). Awards outstanding at the end of the year were 1,681,098 (2006: 2,091,250). The weighted average fair value of the
DSP awards during the period is 148.2 pence per share or £2.5 million (2006: £3.1million] in total.

Long Term Incentive Plan [“LTIP")
The LTIP provides for the grant of free shares in the form of contingent shares. The award of shares under the LTIP was made on 27th Novemnber 2006.

Shares in relation to the award will be released to participants at the end of an expected three year performance period, dependent on the extent
te which the performance conditions have been satisfied. Subject te good leaver provisions, awards are forfeited if the employee leaves before the
end of the vesting period. .

Fifty per cent of the shares awarded under the grant are governed by a TSR market-based performance condition. The remaining fifty per cent is
governed by an EPS performance condition.

No LTIP awards were granted during the year {2004: 1,143,938 were granted). The Group recognised a total expense in relation to LTIP awards of
£0.1 million (2006: £27,000). Awards outstanding at the end of the year were 979,153 (2004: 1,143,938). The weighted average fair value of the LTIP
awards during the period is 150.9 pence per share or £1.5 million [£1.7millign) in total.
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27. Share-based payments continued

Fair value assumptions

The fair value of shares awarded under the plans has been calculated using the market value of shares adjusted to take into account the TSR
market-based performance condition where applicable. The calculation has been performed using the stochastic pricing model. The assumptions
made in performing the calculation for each award are listed below:

2007 osp LTIP
Grant date 27th November 2006 27th November 2004
Number of participants 100 . 28
Performance period 2 years 3years
Stochastic model assurmptions: ’

- Share price at grant date (pencel 188.75 188.75

- Exercise price [pence} - -

- Volatility 28.0% 28.0%

- Expected dividend yield 2.5% 2.5%
Fair value of shares:

- TSR element [pence) 107.59 113.04

- EPS etement [pence] 188.75 188.75

Expected volatility for the grants is based on the historical volatility taking into account the expected vesting term for each grant. Awards of shares
with no exercise price are not affected by the risk free rate of interest. In calculating the income statement charge in relation to the EPS element
of the plans, an expected vesting percentage of nil% [2004: 30%) has been applied to the fair values. This vesting percentage has been calculated
after taking into account expected staff retention rates and the probabilities attached to attainment of the performance condition.

The totat charge for the year relating to employee share-based payment plans was £0.5 million [2006: £0.1 million], all of which related to
equity-settled share-based payment transactions. After deferred tax, the total charge to the income statement was £0.5 million [2006: £45,000).
Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

Number
of share
options
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,235,188
Expired during the year 574,937
Qutstanding at the end of the year 2,660,251
The weighted average exercise price of all share options outstanding at December 2007 and 2004 was nil.
28. Share capital
2007 2004
€m £'m
Authorised: 200 million {2006: 200 million) ordinary shares of 5p (2006: 5pl each 10.0 10.0
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 5p 5.1 6.1
Number of shares in issue
Beginning and end of year ' 122,440,375 122,440,375

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income,
There were no changes to the Group’s share capital during the year ended 31st December 2007,

Fiberweb ple issued twa £1 shares to former parent company BBA Aviation ple {"BBA”) on 3rd April 2004. The £1 shares were converted to ordinary
5p shares on 7th September 2004 and a further 100 shares were issued at par to BBA, bringing the total holding to 140 shares. 5,588,944 shares
were issued at £2.00 on 7th September 2006 in exchange for shares in Terram Limited. 57,778,925 shares were issued at £1.48 in exchange for
shares in Fiberweb’s US aperations on 15th November 2006. A further 59,072,366 shares were issued on demerger on 16th November 2006 at £1.48
in relation to the debt canverted by the former parent company.

Given that Group Reconstruction Relief is available under section 132 of the Companies Act 1985 ["the Act”), the Group has taken advantage of the
related option under section 133 1) of the Act ta record the premiums an the shares issued in satisfaction of the acquisition of Terram and the US
subsidiaries, of £10.9 million and £82.4 million respectively, as a total credit of £93.5 million to the merger reserve [see note 29].
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29. Movements on reserves

Share Merger Other Capital Hedging Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Earnings
£'m £'m £'m £m £€m £'m f'm
As at 1st January 2006 84.5 93.5 85.2 - - 18.7 7.4
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations - - - - - [20.0) -
Actuarial losses - - - - - - (0.3]
Loss for the year - - - - - - 169.3)
Increase in fair value of
cash flow hedging derivatives - - - - 0.5 - -
Share option costs - - - 0.1 - - -
Adjustments on demerger - - 4.8 - - - 11.8
Dividends paid to
former parent company - - - - - - (5.51
Capital contribution by
former parent company - - - - - - 90.0
As at 1st January 2007 84.5 93.5 931 0.1 0.5 (1.3) 20.5
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operatians - - - - - 7.4 -
Actuarial losses - - - - - - (0.7)
Deterred tax on items taken
directly to reserves - - - - - - 0.6
Loss for the year - - - - - - [112.5)
Loss on interest rate
cash flow hedges - - - - (1.7) - -
Transfer to income:
Interest rate swaps - - - - (0.3) - -
Share option costs - - - 0.5 - - -
Dividends paid - - - - - - (7.01
As at 31st December 2007 84.5 93.5 3.1 0.6 [1.5) 8.1 (99.1]

On demerger, BBA waived loans owed to it by Fiberweb entities totalling £90.0 million and creating distributable reserves in Fiberweb plc.
BBA also converted £87.4 miltion of debt to equity in Fiberweb plc. The merger reserve comprises the excess between the nominal value of the
shares issued in consideration of the transfer of subsidiaries and the book value of those subsidiary investments transferred.

The other reserve comprises adjustments in regpect of the Group recrganisation which took place as part of the demerger. This reserve primarily
represents the difference between the capital structure of the Fiberweb entities that were owned directly by BBA prior to the demerger and the

capital structure of Fiberweb plc and its subsidiaries after completion of the demerger restructuring. This reserve is not distributable.

The capital reserve represents amounts accrued in respect of the cost of equity-settled share options in accordance with IFRS 2 "Share-based

Payments” [see note 27).

The hedging reserve represents unrealised gains or losses on hedge instruments.

The translation reserve represents the gains or losses on translation of the Group’s averseas subsidiaries.
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30. Reconciliation of movements in total shareholders’ equity

2007 2006

£€m £'m
Total recagnised [expenselfincome for the year (105.2) 0.9
Equity dividends paid to former parent company - {5.5)
Equity dividends paid to shareholders (7.0 -
Movement on reserve for share option costs 0.5 0.t
Revaluation gain recycled to protit for the year - {1.8]
Capitalisation of subsidiary loans prior to demerger - 5.8
Net movement in total shareholders’ equity for the year 111.7 0.5
Total shareholders’ equity at beginning of year 297.0 296.5
Total shareholders’ equity at end of year 185.3 297.0

£6.8 million credited to the other reserve during the year ended 31st December 2006 comprises the capitalisation of loans from the former parent

company to Fiberweb subsidiaries in 2004.

31. Cash flow from operating activities

2007 2006
£m fm
Operating loss from continuing operations (89.3} (35.30
Operating profit/[loss) from discontinued operations 0.3 {34.2)
Share of profit fram associates 0.21 (0.6l
Loss from operations (89.2) {70.1]
Depreciation of preperty, plant and equipment 32.6 37.2
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.9 1.2
Loss/{profit) on sate of property, plant and equipment 0.6 [0.3]
Increase in provisions 0.6 43
Additional pension scheme cantributions (2.6 (3.1}
Share-based payments 0.5 0.1
Loss on disposal of CNC [see note 15) - 1.6
Goodwill impairment (see note 13) 48.7 14.6
Non-cash impairment and asset write downs [see note 14} 43.5 6%
Non-recurring inventory write-downs 5.8 -
Other non-cash non-recurring items (0.9 -
Other non-cash items 10.9] {0.7}
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 37.6 531.9
Decrease/lincrease} in working capital 2.4 (3.1}
Cash generated by operations £0.0 50.8
Income taxes paid (3.1) (6.8}
Net cash from operating activities 36.9 44.0
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32. Disposal of subsidiary undertakings

{i) As referred to in note 9, on 25th May 2007 the Group disposed of its interests in Fiberweb Tenotex SAU and Fiberweb Holdings SLU and the trade
and assets of Fiberweb Tecnofibra Srl and the Bethune hygiene wipes business within Fiberweb Inc. The results of these businesses have been
classified as discontinued cperations in these consolidated financial statements.

The net assets of the disposal group at the date of disposal and at 31st December 2004 were as follows:
25 May 31 December

2007 2006
Note £€m £'m
Property, plant and equipment 14 29.6 33
Intangible assets 13 0.1 ¢.2
Inventories 10.2 1.1
Trade receivables 14.5 13.1
Other receivables 0.7 08
Bank balances and cash 1.0 08
Retirement benefit obligation ) 10.8] (0.6}
Deferred tax liability 26 (0.5) (0.4)
Trade payables (7.2 9.1
Other payables (3.1) {2.9)
External borrowings (2.9} [2.9}
Attributable goodwill 13 18.% 18.9
Cumulative translation reserve 0.9 0.6
61.6 60.9
Loss on disposal 9 {20.9)
Total consideration Inet of disposal costs] 40.7
Satisfied by - Cash 40.7

The impact of the disposal group on the Group’s results in the current and prior periods is disclosed in note 3.

[ii] At the end of June 2007, the Group sold the fixed assets and working capital of its cotton bleaching business at Griswoldville, Massachusetts to
Barnhardt Manufacturing Company. This activity was not material to the Group's operations and, accordingly, this disposal has not been classified as
discontinued operations. The Group realised a loss on disposal of £0.8 million, which is included within Restructuring Costs as described in note 6.

The net assets of the entity at the date of disposal and at 31st December 2006 were as follows:
30 June 31 December

2007 2006
Note £m £'m
Property, plant and equipment 14 1.3 1.3
Inventories 1.0 0.9
Other receivables - 0.1
Trade payables 0.2 i6.1]
Other payables - (0.1}
2.1 2.1
Loss on disposal 6 (0.8)
Total consideration [net of disposal costs) 1.3
Satisfied by - Cash 1.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continved

For the year ended 31st December 2007

-

33. Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings
There were no acquisitions during the year ended 31st December 2007

The Group acquired the entire issued share capital of Blowitex Vliesstoffe International GmbH ["Blowitex”) on 1st April 2006. The directors performed
an exercise to establish the fair value of the assets and tiabilities of this acquisition. The goodwill arising on the acquisition was

£2.6 million [note 13).
Book and fair value
to the Group

E'm
Intangible assets 0.2
Property, plant and equipment 15
Inventories 0.7
Receivables 1.0
Payables [2.6]
Taxation (0.2)
Net borrowings (0.4}
Net assets 0.2
Goodwill 2.6
Cash consideration (including deferred consideration) ) 28
Deferred consideration (0.5)
Net cash consideration in the year 23

In the year ended 31st December 2006, the acquisition of Blowitex contributed £1.0 million to the Group profit before tax, £0.2 million to net
operating cash flows, paid £0.2 million in respect of taxation, paid £0.1 million in respect of capital expenditure and utilised £nit for other investing
activities.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1st January 2006, total revenue from acquisitions for the year ended 31st December 2006 would have been
£14.4 million and the loss for the year would have been lower by £0.2 million.

34. Contingent liabilities

The Fiberweb business is party to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the normal course of business, including specific product liability
and environmental ctaims in Fiberweb North America. Any liabilities are likely to be mitigated by legal defences, insurance, reserves and third party
indemnities.

The directors do not currently anticipate that the outcome of such proceedings and claims, either individualty or in aggregate, will have a material
adverse effect upon Fiberweb’s financial positian.
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35. Related party transactions
Transactions between Fiberweb plc and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed
in this note. Details of transactions between Fiberweb and other related parties are detailed below.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directars and other members of key management persannel of the Group is set out below in aggregate.

2007 2006
£€m £'m
Short-term benefits - 2.2 2.9
Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.1
Termination benefits 0.8 0.4
3.2 34
Amounts included in the above expense that are outstanding at 31st December 2007 are £0.7 million [2006: Enill.
Other related party transactions
2007 20056
£'m £'m
Dividends to BBA Group [see note 10] - 5.5
Costs recharged to Group entities by BBA Group - 0.6
Insurance premiums recharged to Group entities by BBA Group - 3.7
Net interest payable to BBA Group [see note 7] - (12.1)
Net amounts owed by BBA Group )
- tax indemnity [see note 18] - 315 35
- other (see note 18} - 1.0

As part of the demerger transaction, £90.0 million of debt owed by Fiberweb to BBA was waived. A further £87.4 million of debt owed by Fiberweb
to BBA was capitalised. Further information with respect to these transactions is detailed in note 29.

Cantributions made during the year to the BBA incorme and pratection plan amounted te €nil [2006: £0.2 million] - see note 25.

During the year ended 31st December 2006, an entity in the Group rented office accommodation from a company controlled by Robert Rufli,
a member of the management of that entity until his retirement in September 2004, The rental agreement was entered into inthe ordinary course
of business and on an arm's length basis. Rental payments for the year amounted to £nil [2006: £0.1 million).

On the 17th November 2006, the Fiberweb plc Group was listed on the Lo'ndon Stack Exchange. Fiberweb ple is the parent and contrelling entity
of the Group. Prier to this date, the ultimate parent and centrolling entity of the Group was BBA Aviation plc [formerly BBA Group plel.
34. Subsidiary and associated undertakings

The detailed list of the principal subsidiary and associated undertakings of the Group as at 31st Decerr;ber 2007 is shawn in note 3 to the Company
financial statements.
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| Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of Fiberweb plc

-

- -

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Fiberweb
plc fer the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the Balance
Sheet and the related notes 1 to 13. These parent company financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting poticies set out
therein.

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of
Fiberweb plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 and on the
information in the directors’ remuneration report that is described as
having been audited.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in
accortiance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit wark, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Repart and the
parent company financial staterments in accordance with applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards [United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice] are set out in the Statement
of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our respensibility is to audit the parent company financial statements
in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Iretand).

We report to you our apinion as to whether the parent company financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the parent company
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our opinion
the Directors’ Report is consistent with the parent company financial
statements. The information given in the Directors’ Report includes
that specific information presented in the Business Review that is cross
referred from the Business Review section of the Directors’ Report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept
proper accounting records, if we have not received all the infoermation
and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by
law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactians is not
disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as
described in the contents section and consider whether it is consistent
with the audited parent company financial statements, We consider
the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the parent company
financial statements, Our responsibilities do nat extend to any further
information outside the Annual Repert,

&3

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland] issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
auditincludes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the parent campany financial statements.
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the parent
company financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the company's circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed,

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent
company financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our
opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the parent company financial statements.

Cpinion

In our opinion:

e  the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view,
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice, of the state of the company's affairs as at 31
December 2007;

o the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accofdance with the Cempanies Act 1985; and

¢ theinformation given in the Directors’ Report is cansistent with the
parent company financial statements.

Detoitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
L.ondon, England

26th February 2008




Company Balance Sheet

As at 31st December 2007

N

2007 2006
Note €m £m
Fixed assels
Investments in subsidiaries 3 298.3 3935
Property, plant and equipment 4 0.6 39
298.9 357.4
Current assets
Debtors 5 20.2 5.1
Cash at bank and in hand 1.9 0.5
221 5.6
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other creditors b (4.5) {2.9)
Bank overdrafts (7.4) -
Corporation tax (4.0) -
116.0 2.9
Net current assets 6.1 2.7
Total assets less current liabilities 305.0 3601
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than ene year
Bank loans 7 (130.7) [180.2)
NET ASSETS 174.3 179.9
EQUITY
Called-up share capital 9 6.1 b1
Share premium account 10 84.5 84.5
Capital reserve 1" 0.6 -
Profit and loss account 12 83.1 89.3
13 174.3 179.9

The financial statements were approved by the Board of directors and authorised for issue on 2éth February 2008. They were signed on its
behalf by:

Daniel Abrams
Director

As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for the year.
Fiberweb plc reperted a profit for the year ended 31st December 2007 of £0.8 million [first financial period ended 31st December 2006: a loss
of £0.7 million). ‘

The Company audit fee is included within the Group audit fee in the current year and cannot be separately identified.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet.
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Notes to the Company Balance Sheet

For the year ended 31st December 2007

.

1. Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and
accounting standards.

The principal accounting poticies are set out below. They have all been applied consistently throughout the period.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS1 “Cash Flow Statements” and has not produced a cash flow statement.
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS8 "Retlated Party Transactions™ and has not reported transactions with fellow
Group undertakings.

Investments

investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment. Given that Group Reconstruction Relief
is available under section 132 of the Companies Act 1985 ("the Act”), the Company has taken advantage of the related option under section 133
[1) of the Act to record the cost of the investments in Terram and the US subsidiaries at the nominal value of the shares issued in satisfaction of
the acquisitian.

Treasury

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Manetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in exchange rates subsequent to the date of transaction is recognised in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for and presented under FRS26 (Revised] “Financial Instruments - Measurement”™ and FRS25
“Financial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation”. Derivative financial instruments utilised by the company comprise foreign exchange
contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity derivatives. All such instruments are used for hedging purposes to manage the risk profile of an
underlying exposure of the Group in line with the Group’s risk management policies. All derivative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet
at fair value. Recognition of gains or losses on derivative instruments depends on whether the instrument is designated as a hedge and the type
of exposure it is designed to hedge.

The effective portion of gains or losses on hedges is deferred in reserves until the impact from the hedged item is recognised in the income
statement, The ineffective portion of such gains and losses is recognised in the income statement immediately.

Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement
as they arise.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including premiums
payable on settiernent or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accrual basis to the profit and lass account using the
effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which
they arise.

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct issue costs.
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1. Basis of accounting continued

Share-based payments
The Company has for the first time this year adopted the requirements of FRS 20 Share-based Payments.

Fiberweb plc operates two share-based compensation plans which are detailed in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. Under FRS
20 the equity-settled share-based payments under these schemes are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant dale is expensed within staff costs in the income statement on a straight line basis over the vesting period based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

_The fair value of shares awarded under the plans has been calculated using the stochastic pricing modet using the market value of shares
adjusted to take into account market based performance conditions where applicable.

The charge is adjusted each year to reflect the expected and actual level of vesting.

Tangible fixed assets
Property, plant and equipment is stated in the balance sheet at cost. Depreciation is provided an the cost or valuation of property, plant and
equipment less estimated residuval value and is calculated on a straight line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Leasehold improvements over the term of the lease
Office fixtures and equipment 3-Syears

Plant and equipment 10 years

Leases

Where assets are financed by lease agreements that give rights similar to ownership [finance leases), the assets are treated as if they had been
purchased and the leasing commitments are shown as cbligations to the lessors. The capitalisation values of the assets are written off on a straight
line basis over the shorter of the periods of the leases or the useful lives of the assets concerned. The capital elements of future leases are recorded
as liabilities, while the interest elements are charged to the income statement aver the period of the leases to produce a constant rate of charge
on the balance of capital payments outstanding.

For all other leases [operating leases], the rental payments are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis aver the lives of the leases.

Pension and post-retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into accaunt taxation deferred due to timing differences between the treatment
of certain iterns for taxation and accounting purposes. Deferred tax is provided in full on all liabilities. In accordance with FRS 19, deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent it is regarded that it is more likely than not that they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities have
not been discounted.

2. Dividends

The Company paid dividends of £7.0 millien during the year [2004: £nil] in respect of the final dividend of 3.95 pence for the year ended 31st
December 2006 and the interim dividend of 1.70 pence for the year ended 31st December 2007.

In respect of the current year, the directors propose that a final dividend of 2.50 pence per share (2006: 3.95 pence per share] will be paid
to shareholders on 27th May 2008. This dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and in accordance with
FRS 21, "Events after the Balance Sheet Date”, has not been recorded as a liability in these financial statements. The proposed dividend is payable
to all shareholders on the Register of Members on 25th April 2008. The estimated total cost of the final dividend payable is £3.1 million {2006: £4.8
miltion).

3. Investments

Investment in Leans to
subsidiaries subsidiaries Total
Cost and carrying value £'m £'m E'm
As at 1st January 2007 3.2 350.3 3535
Additions in the year - - -
Loans repaid in the year - 160.71 (60.7]
Exchange gains - 55 5.5

As at 31st December 2007 3.2 295.1 298.3
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3. Investments continued

The following is a list of the principal subsidiary and associated undertakings of the Group as at 31st December 2007, each of which is wholly-

owned unless otherwise stated. Subsidiaries marked * are owned directly by the company.

Name

Subsidiaries

Fiberweb Bidim Industria e Comecio de Nao-Tecidos Ltda

Fiberweb China Airlaid Company Limited
Fiberweb France SAS

Fiberweb Holdings France SAS
Fiberweb Holdings Deutschland GmbH
Fiberweb Berlin GmbH

Fiberweb Corovin GmbH

Fiberweb Linotec Developments GmbH
Terram Geotextilien GmbH

Fiberweb Industrial Nonwovens GmbH
Fiberweb Joint Venture Holdings GmbH
Fiberweb Blowitex GmbH

Fiberweb Asia Pacific Limited
Fiberweb italia SpA

Korma SpA

Fiberweb Tecnofibra SpA

Tenotex SpA

Fiberweb de Mexico SA de CV

Fiberweb Non Wavens Mexico SA de CV
Fiberweb Veratec SA de CV

Fiberweb Holdings Sweden AB
Fiberweb Industrial Hotdings Sweden AB
Fiberweb Sweden AB

Fiberweb Switzerland AG

Fiberweb Holdings Limited *

Fiberweb US Holdings Limited *
Terram Limited*

Fiberweb Simpsonville Incerporated
Fiberweb Washougal incorporated
Fiberweb Incorporated

Fiberweb Industrial Textiles Incorporated
Fiberweb USA Hotdings Incorporated
Fiberweb China Holdings BY

Fiberweb Holdings Netherlands BY

Associates and other investments
Coratech GmbH

Coronor Compaosites GmbH

Advanced Design Concepts GmbH
Saudi German Nonwovens Products Co.
Cordustex [Pty] Limited
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Country of incorporation
and principal operation

Brazil
China
France
France
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Hong Kong
Italy

Italy

ltaly

ltaly
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Sweden
Sweden
Sweden
Switzerland
UK

UK

UK

USA

USA

USA

USA

USA
Netherlands
Netherlands

Germany
Germany

‘ Germany

Saudi Arabia
South Africa

% owned

25.1
50
50
15
0




4, Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Fixtures & Plant &

improvements fittings machinery Total
Cost £€m £'m £m £'m
As at 1st January 2007 0.2 0.3 3.5 4.0
Additions in the year - . 0.3 - 0.3
Asset write downs in respect of nan-recurring items - - [3.5) (3.5)
As at 315t December 2007 0.2 0.6 - 0.8
Depreciation
As at 1st January 2007 - - 0.1 0.1
Asset write downs in respect of non-recurring items - - (0.1 [0.1]
Charged in the year 0.1 0.1 - 0.2
As at 31st December 2007 0.1 0.1 - 0.2
Net book value at 31st December 2007 . 0.1 0.5 - 0.6
Net book value at 31st December 2606 0.2 0.3 34 3.9

During the year, assets of £3.4 million were written down to Enil as a result of discounted cash flows in respect of these assets no longer supporting
their carrying vatue.

5. Debtors
2007 2006
£€m £'m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 19.6 0.5
Amounts owed by former parent company - 1.0
Other debtors 0.1 0.1
Prepayments 0.1 2.7
Derivative financial instruments 0.4 -
VAT recoverahle - 0.8
20.2 5.1
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings comprise management recharges and loan interest invoiced in December.
8. Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
2007 2006
€m £€m
Trade creditors 0.5 02
Accruals and deferred income 2.4 15
Other taxes and social security 0.1 0.6
Other creditors 1.6 -
4.6 2.9
7. Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year
2007 2006
£'m €m
Bank loans - repayable between two and five years 131.6 1813
Less: unamortised prepaid facility fees (0.9 (1.1]
‘ 130.7 180.2

Since demerger, the Company’s primary source of funds is a $439.5 million multi currency, revalving credit facility 'RCF’) provided by a syndicate
of several international banks, maturing in 2011. Borrowings under that facility are in Eure, US Dollars and Swedish Krona for maturities of up to
six months. All amounts drawn down are at floating interest rates. The effective rates an borrowings are not materially different from their nominal
interest rates.

The RCF is guaranteed by a number of the Group’s trading entities in respect of the parent's liabilities.

At year end the Company had available $177.3 million [2006: $84.0 million) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

8. Share-based payments

Since demerger, Fiberweb has issued its own share-based payment compensation plans. These plans are explained in detail in note 27 to the
consotidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Company Balance Sheet continued

For the year ended 31st December 2007

N

9. Called-up share capital

2007 2004
£€m £'m
Authorised: 200 million erdinary shares of 5p each 10.0 10.0
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 5p 6.1 6.1
Number of shares in issue
Beginning and end of year 122,440,375 122,440,375

There were no changes to the Company’s share capital during the year ended 31st December 2007,

Fiberweb plc was incorporated on 22nd January 2006. Fiberweb plc issued two £1 shares to former parent company BBA plc ["BBA") on 3rd April
2004. The £1 shares were converted to ordinary 5p shares on 7th September 2006 and a further 100 shares were issued at par to BBA, bringing
the total holding to 140 shares. 5,588,944 shares were issued at £2.00 on 7th September 2006 in exchange for shares in Terram Limited. 57,778,925
shares were issued at £1.48 in exchange for shares in Fiberweb's US operations on 15th Novernber 2006, A further 59,072,366 shares were
issued on demerger on 1éth Noverber 2006 at £1.48 in relation to the debt converted by the former parent company.

Given that Group Reconstruction Relief is available under section 132 of the Companies Act 1985 ["the Act”], the Company has taken advantage
of the related option under section 133 [1] of the Act to record the cost of the investrents in Terram and the US subsidiaries at the nominal value
of the shares issued in satisfaction of the acquisition. )

10. Share premium account

2007 2008

£m £m

As at 1st January 84.5 -
Premium arising on issue of equity shares - 84.5
As at 315t December 2007 84.5 84.5

11. Capital Reserve
As a first time adopter of FRS 20 Share-based Payments, equity-settled share based payments are credited to an equity reserve. The Company
recognised a total expense, within staff costs, in relation to share-based payments under equity-settled schemes of £0.5 million [2006: £0.1 miltion]

2007 2006
£€m £'m
As at 1st January - -
Liability as at 31st December 2006 reclassified from accruals on adoption of FRS 20 0.1 -
Cost of share-based payments during the year 0.5 -
As at 31st December 2007 0.6 -
12. Profit and loss account
2007 2006
£m £'m
As at Ist January 89.3 -
Capital contribution from former parent company - 90.0
Dividends paid {(7.00 -
Profit/{loss) for the year 0.8 10.7)
As at 31st December 83.1 89.3
13. Reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds
2007 2006
£m £€m
As at 1st January 179.9 -
Profit/lloss) for the year 0.8 (0.7
Dividends paid (7.0) -
Addition of capital reserves 0.6 -
Capital contribution from former parent company - 90.0
Issue of share capital - 90.6
As at 31st December 174.3 179.9

Equity comprises share capital, share premium, capital reserve and retained earnings.
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Three Year Review

.

The Group was demerged from BBA Aviaticn plc in November 2006. Proforma results showing performance for the full years ended 31st Decermber
2006 and 2005, as if the Group had legally existed in its demerged form from 1st January 20053, have been presented below for the purposes of
meaningful cornparison.

2007" 2006 2006 2005
£m £m £m £€m

Results
Revenue 473.6 4999 584.7 603.3
Underlying profit from operations 13.8 271 27.5 47.9
Net finance costs (10.8) (14.5) [14.7) [14.8)
Underlying profit before tax 3.0 12,6 12.8 333
Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items (103.1) (62.4} 19711 (13.1)
Total [loss)/ profit before tax (100.1) (49.8 {84.31 20.2
{Loss)/ profit attributable to the equity holders of Fiberweb ple (112.5) (69.3] (9.3} 15.3
Assets employed
Non-current assets 299.2 428.7 428.7 530.9
Current assets 17M.7 216.7 216.7 2229
Current liabilities (103.2] 195.9 (95.9 (356.0
Non-current Liabilities (182.4) (252.5) {252.5) (101.3)
Net assets 185.3 297.0 297.0 296.5
|Loss)/earnings per share (76.31p [35.3lp [56.5)p 12.5p
Adjusted™ earnings per share ) 2.bp 5.1p 5.4p 19.3p

[1} Figures for the years ended 31st December 2007 and 2006 are presented for continuing operations following the disposal of the Hygiene Wipes
business in May 2007, 2006 figures are also shown as originally published (prier to restatement for discontinued operations) for direct comparison
with 2005.

(2] Adjusted earnings per share is shown calculated on earnings before restructuring costs and other non-recurring items because the directars
consider this gives a better indication of underlying performance.
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Shareholder Information

.

Analysis of Shareholdings

% of totat Number % of
Number of number of of shares share
shareholders shareholders held  capital
Size of holding
Ordinary shareholdings at 31 December 2007
1-1,000 3,194 81.75 882,757 0.72
1,001 - 5,000 454 11,461 897,213 0.73
5,001 - 10,000 &7 1.7 479,955 0.3¢9
13,001 - 50,000 78 1.9¢ 1,749,897 1.43
50,001 - 100,000 17 0.43 1,161,084 0.95
100,001 upwards 98 2.51 117,269,469 95,78
3,910 100.00 122,440,375 100.00
Holders
Individuals 3,251 83.14 4,062,718 332
Pensicn funds 12 0.31 10,801 0.01
Nominee and
other Companies 637 16.29 117,578,224 26.03
Other i0 0.2 788,632 0.64
3,910 100.00 122,440,375 100.00

Dividend Re-investment Plan

A scheme which altows you to use your dividend to buy further
shares in Fiberweb plc.

Capita IRG Trustees Limited are offering shareholders in Fiberweb
plc the opportunity to participate in a Dividend Re-investment Flan
(DRIPL

What is a Dividend Re-investment Plan [DR{P).

This is a plan that allows private shareholders to reinvest cash
dividends from their investments cheaply and easily back into
Fiberweb plc shares and so obtain the benefits of compounding.

How is the plan managed?

The plan is managed by administrator, Capita IRG Trustees Limited
[CIRGT). They are authorised and regulated by the Financial Services
Authority.

On the dividend date, shareholders who join the plan are still paid the
cash dividend, but CIRGT then uses the cash te buy shares in
Fiberweb on behall of the shareholder. Please note that CIRGT may
not offer a DRIP for every dividend paid. If a DRIP is not made
avaitable, the shareholder will receive the cash dividend.

What are the benefits to shareholders?

® You can increase your shareholding over the long term at lower
dealing commission rates that are generally available through retail
brokers;

e Compounding effect of increasing shareholding and dividend
payments;

Offers the protection of a regulated service;

An alternative for overseas shareholders in qualifying countries who
may have difficulty cashing sterling dividend cheques due to high
bank charges.

What price will the shares be bought at?

CIRGT instructs its broker to buy shares on the dividend payment at
the current market price. Deals are aggregated for all Shareholders.
Shareholders will not be aware of the share price when they sign up
for the DRIP.
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What happens to any cash dividend left over?

Any cash dividend left over which is insufficient to purchase a whole
share will be carried forward and held, without interest, in a Client
Money bank account.

How much does the Plan cost?

The DRIP commission charged to the Shareholders is one per cent
of the purchase price of the shares, with a minimum charge of £2.50.
Full details of all costs will be sent to you by CIRGT.

How do Shareholders apply?

Enclosed with this Annual Report is a reply paid post card which you
should complete and return to Capita Registrars to enable them to
send you further information together with a Form of Election,
Alternatively you can contact the Registrars by telephone on 0871 664
0381* [if calling from overseas +44 (0] 208 &3% 3402] or email
shares@capitaregisrars.com to request documentation. Please nate
that to participate in the Plan in respect of the 2007 finatl dividend
payable on 27 May 2008, you must return your Form of Election to
Capita Registrars by 2 May 2008, Forms of Elaction received after this
date will be registered, but will not take effect until the next dividend
payable.

Share Dealing Services

A quick and easy share dealing service is available to either buy or
sell Fiberweb pic shares. An on-line and telephone dealing facility is
available providing shareholders with an easy to access and simple to
use service.

For further information on this service, or to buy and sell shares, please
contact www.capitadeal.com [on-tine dealingl or 0871 644 0445*
(telephone dealing].

Key Dates
Financial Calendar
Dividend and interest payments:

Final 2007 27 May 2008
Interim 2008 November 2008

Announcement of Group Results
Half year results August 2008

Share price information
The price of the Company's shares is available from the Investor
Relations section of the website at www.fiberweb.com

Registered office
1 Victoria Villas, Richmond on Thames, Londan TWS 2GW.

Company number 054683352

Company Registrar .

Capita Registrars, Northern House, Woodsorne Park, Fenay Bridge,
Huddersfield HD8 OLA.

Telephone: 0871 664 0300*

Email: shareholder.services@capitaregistrars.com

Web site: www.capitaregisrars.com

Please contact the registrars directly if you wish to advise a change of
name, address, or dividend mandate. Alternatively, you can view up to
date infarmation and manage your shareholding through our Registrars’
Share Portal where you will be able to access and maintain your halding
at your own convenience. Yeu will require your unique investor code,
which can be found on your share certificate or dividend tax voucher.
The URL for the portal is www.capitasharepuortal.com

*calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras
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Announcements made via a Regulatory Information Service/U.S. Securities and Details of all
regulatory announcements for Fiberweb plc can be found on the London Stock Exchange
website at www.londonstockexchange.comand on the Fiberweb plc website at
www.fiberweb.com

Announcements made via a Regulatory Information Service/U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission:

9 May 2008 Director / PDMR Holding

9 May 2008 Holdings in Company

2 May 2008 Result of AGM

2 May 2008 AGM and IMS

30 April 2008 Disposal of Bidim

28 April 2008 Holdings in Company

22 April 2008 Termination of Talks

16 April 2008 Holdings In Company

7 April 2008 Statement re Possible Offer
28 March 08 Notice of AGM

19 March 2008 Annual Information Update

Documents filed with Companies House/U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

Date Document Type Description
5/5/08 Financial Statement

5/5/08 Resolutions passed

5/5/08 Memorandum and Articles of Association
Fiberweb plc

1 Victoria Villas
Richmond on Thames
London TWS 2GW

211631110260 Document L1 ARYB 120508:1220
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Released 11:43 09-May-08 o
Number 08e0u

TR-1: NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN

SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer of existing .

shares to which voting rights are attached: Fiberweb Plc
2. Reason for notification (yes/no)

An acquisition or disposal of voting rights NO

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in the | NO
acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are attached

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights NO

Other (please specify) Change in shareholdings is a result of a change in | YES
management relationship

3. Full name of person(s) subject to the notification Templeton Investment
obligation: Counsel, LLC

J P Morgan Chase Bank
4. Full name of shareholder(s) (if different from 3.): State Street Bank
5. Date of the transaction (and date on which the threshold is 7 May 08
crossed or reached if different):
6. Date on which issuer notified: 8 May 08
7. Threshold(s) that is/are crossed or reached: 9%

8. Notified details:
A: Voting rights attached to shares

Class/type | Situation previous to | Resulting situation after the triggering transaction
of shares the Triggering
transaction

if possible
using the ISIN' | Number | Numberof | Number | Number of voting | % of voting rights
of Shares | Voting of shares | rights
Rights
Direct Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
Ord GBP 0.05 18.248,522 | 18,248,522 11.763.955 11,763,955 9.61%

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 12/05/2008




B: Financial Instruments

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction

Type of financial Expiration | Exercise/ Conversion
instrument date Period/ Date

Number of voting | % of voting
rights that may be | rights

acquired if the
instrument is
exercised/ converted.

Total (A+B)

Number of voting rights % of voting rights

11,763,955

9.61%

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable:

Proxy Voting:

10. Name of the proxy holder:

N/A

11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will
cease to hoid:

N/A

12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to
hold voting rights:

N/A

13. Additional information:

14. Contact name:

Lori A Weber

Assistant Secretary, Franklin Resources Inc

15. Contact telephone number:

954 847 2283

http://www .londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 12/05/2008




Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section 2
Company Fiberweb Plc

TIDM FWEB

Headline Director/PDMR Shareholding

Released 11:42 09-May-08

Number 0857V

RNS Number:0857U
Fiberweb Plc
09 May 2008

Fiberweb plc

9 May 2008

Directors' Shareholdings

Fiberweb plc (the "Company") has been informed that the following transaction by
a director of the Company took place on 8 May 2008:

Richard Stillwell, Non-Executive Director of Fiberweb plc, purchased 60,000
ordinary shares at a price of 40.5 pence per share. As a result of this
transaction Mr Stillwell now beneficially owns 87,500 shares in Fiberweb.

This notification is made pursuant to Disclosure and Transparency Rule 3.1.4 R.

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2008 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved

http://www .londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 12/05/2008
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Headline Result of AGM
Released 12:44 02-May-08
Number 6763T
Fiberweb plc

Fiberweb plc announces that all resolutions proposed at its Annual General Meeting held earlier
today were duly passed on a show of hands including the resolution authorising the Company to
make market purchases of up to 10 per cent of its issued ordinary share capital.

Two copies of the resolutions relating to the special business of the Meeting have been submitted to
the UK Listing Authority and will shortly be available for inspection in the UK Listing authority’s
Document Viewing Facility, which is situated at:

The Financial Services Authority
25 The North Colonade

Canary Wharf

London

E14 5HS

Tel: 020 7676 1000

Details of the proxy voting instructions, lodged prior to the meeting are set out below:

RESOLUTION For % Discretion % Against
1 | To receive and adopt the 2007 Report and Accounts 78,563,020 99.76 | 26,500 0.03 164.581 (
2 | To approve the 2007 Remuneration Report 78.536.511 | 9973 | 20,685 0-04 183.792 |
3| To dectare the final dividend for 2007 78,682,848 | 99.95 | 25,844 003 | 16025 |,
4 | To elect Mr Abrams as a director of the Company 78,350,065 | 99 74 | 31 734 0.04 173.494 (
5 | To re-elect Mr Stillwell as a director of the Company 78.298.306 [ 99 74 | 31780 0.04 | 174984 |
6| To re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as the auditors 78.560.736 | g9 75 | 27149 003 [ 167,844 |
. :;omauursz::;:is;nlhe directors to determine the auditors 78,549,642 0974 | 35,001 0.0 168.261 (
8 | To grant the directors authority to allot relevant securities 78,640,830 99.86 | 36,646 0.05 73.810 (
9 | To approve the disapplication of pre-emption rights 78,706.903 | 99,94 37,309 0.05 7.243 |
10 l’%;ua!:\yogs:r;hse company to make market purchases of 78.551.555 007 | 33438 0.04 169,438 .
11 | To adopt amended Articles of Association ‘A’ 78.555.269 | g9 76 | 40,342 0.05 152503 ¢
12 | Te adopt amended Articles of Association 'B’ 78,354,756 | 9975 40,855 0.05 152874 |

An abstention is not a vote in law and is not counted in the calculation of proportion of votes “For” or
“Against” a resolution.

The total shares in issue at 30 April 2008 were 122,440,375, of these 78,756,631 including
abstentions (64.32%) were voted.

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 12/05/2008




Total number of ordinary shareholders 3,781

Total number of proxy instructions lodged 421
Percentage of ordinary shareholders who lodged proxies 11.13%
END

London Stock Exchange ple is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (incfuding any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons andfor outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2008 London Stock Exchange ple. All rights reserved
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Released 07:00 02-May-08 N ROE
Number 6268T

RNS Number:6268T
Fiberweb Pla
02 May 2008

2 May 2008

Fiberweb plc
{("Fiberweb" or the "Company"}

AGM and IMS

Fiberweb's Annual General Meeting will take place at 11.30 a.m. today at the
offices of Baker & McKenzie LLP, 100 New Bridge Street, London EC4V 6JA.

At the AGM, Malcolm Coster, Chairman, will make the following comments, which
constitute the Company's first Interim Management Statement, covering the period
from 1 January 2008 to 2 May 2008, as reguired by the UK Listing Authority's
Disclosure and Transparency Rules.

Trading

The start of trading in 2008 has been steady with the margin benefits of actions
taken in 2007 coming through. Sales are flat compared to prior year at constant
currency. Underlying(l) gross margins are in line with the improvement seen in
the second half of 2007 and underlying(l) operating profit is in line with our
expectations.

Brazilian Divestment

Earlier this week, the divestment of Bidim, our Brazilian subsidiary, was
announced, for £16.6 million in cash, subject to shareholder approval. The sale
of Bidim is part of Fiberweb's ongoing programme of business simplification and
debt reduction.

Outlook

Following the termination of recent discussions with Avgol, the Company intends
to address a number of cost reduction opportunities identified during the due
diligence process. We expect to achieve these savings from 2009 onwards, with
cne-off implementation costs to be incurred in 2008 and 20089.

Trading prospects for the remainder of 2008 remain in line with our
expectations. Two new airlaid lines, in China and in Italy, are expected to make
a first-time contribution in the second half. Hygiene spunbond veolumes in North
America are expected to grow and in Industrial, margin growth is expected from
continued improvements in mix and cest base. New product introductions are
progressing as planned in both Hygiene and Industrial segments.

(1) Underlying profit measures are before restructuring charges and other
non-recurring items.

Enquiries
Fiberweb 020 8439 8594

Daniel Dayan Chief Executive
Dan Abrams Chief Financial Officer

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 12/05/2008




Hoare Govett Limited 020 7678 B00O
Neil Ceollingridge

John Fishley

Justin Jones

John Garrad-Cole

Weber Shandwick Financial 020 7067 0700
Ian Bailey
Nick Dibden
James White

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2008 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved
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Released 07:13 30-Apr-08

Number 40807

RNS Number:4080T
Fiberweb Plc
30 April 2008
EMBARGOED FCOR RELEASE UNTIL 7.00 AM
30 April 2008
Fiberweb plc

Disposal of Bidim for £16.6 million

Fiberweb plc ("Fiberweb" or "the Company"} is pleased to announce that it has
agreed the sale of its wholly-owned Brazilian subsidiary, Fiberweb Bidim

Industria e Comercio de Nao-Tecidos Ltda ("Bidim"), to MEXICHEM S.A.B de C.V.,
a subgidiary of Mexichem, for a cash consideration of Brazilian Real 55.5
million (£16.6 million) ("the Disposal®), subject to a post completion working

capital adjustment. The proceeds, net of an estimated Brazilian Real 5.0 million
{(£1.5 million) of associated tax and transaction costs, will be used to reduce
Group debt. The expected gain on disposal is £2.5 million. The sale is
conditional, inter alia, upon the approval of Fiberweb shareholders which is to
be sought at a General Meeting. A circular containing further details of the
Disposal and convening the General Meeting will be sent to shareholders in due
course.

Bidim manufactures standard polyester nonwoven fabrics predominantly for use in
geotextile, roofing and footwear markets from its manufacturing site near Sao
Paulo, Brazil. The Disposal is consistent with the Board's stated strategy of
reviewing Fiberweb's portfolio of businesses to ensure that shareholder value is
maximised and Group indebtedness is reduced.

Bidim's grcss assets as at 31 December 2007 were Brazilian Real 55.5 million
{£16.6 million) and pre-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2007 was
Brazilian Real 4.3 millicn (£1.3 million). The transaction is expected toc be
earnings neutral for Fiberweb in 2008. Fiberweb was advised in Brazil by
Stratus.

Commenting on the Disposal Daniel Dayan, Fiberweb's CEQO, said today:

"As part of Fiberweb's ongoing pregramme of business simplification and focus on
strengthening its core hygiene and speciality industrial businesses, we have
taken the decision to dispose of Bidim. Under Fiberweb's ownership Bidim has
been developed into an excellent business that has grown sales and profits in
recent years and are pleased to be able to transfer ownership to a company with
a significant footprint in adjacent markets which will continue to build on the
achievements to date. The proceeds from the disposal will be used to reduce the
Group's existing debt."

Fiberweb will update the market on current trading at its Annual General Meeting
and in its AGM and Interim Management Statement on Friday 2nd May.

-Ends-

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 12/05/2008




Enquiries:

Fiberweb plc 020 8439 8594
Daniel Dayan, Chief Executive
Dan Abrams, Chief Financial Officer

Hoare Govett Limited 020 7678 8000
Neil Collingridge

John Fishley

Justin Jones

John Garrad-Cole

Weber Shandwick Financial 020 7067 0700
Ian Bailey

Nick Dibden

James White

This announcement has been issued by, and is the sole responsibility of,
Fiberweb plc

Hoare Govett Limited, which is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by
the Financial Services Authority, is acting as financial adviser, sponsor and
broker to the Company and no one else in connection with the Disposal, and will
not be responsible to anyone other than the Company for providing the
protections afforded to its clients or for providing advice in relation to the
Disposal, or any other matters referred to in this announcement.

This announcement contains forward-locking statements, which are based on the
Board's current expectations and assumptions and involve known and unknown risks
and uncertainties that could cause actual results, performance or events to
differ materially from those expressed or implied in such statements. It is
believed that the expectations reflected in these statements are reasonable, but
they may be affected by a number of variables which could cause actual results
or trends to differ materially. Each forward-looking statement speaks only as of
the date of the particular statement. Except as required by the Listing Rules,
the London Stock Exchange or otherwise by law, the Company expressly disclaims
any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to
any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any change in the
Company's expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions
or circumstances on which any such statement is based.

No statement in this announcement is intended to be a profit forecast or to
imply that the earnings of Fiberweb for the current year or future years will
necessarily match or exceed the historical or published earnings cof Fiberweb.

Assumed exchange rate: BRL/f = 3.343

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2008 London Stock Exchange ple. All rights reserved
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Released 10:10 28-Apr-08 Fitdsnof

Number 22307

TR-1(i): NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer of existing shares to which voting
rights are attached ii:

Fiberweb pic
2. Reason for the notification
An acquisition or disposal of voting rights: (x )

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in the acquisition of
shares already issued to which voting rights are attached: ( )

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights: ( )
Other (please specify) : { )

3. Full name of person(s) subject to the notification obligation ii:
Standard Life Investments Ltd

4. Full name of shareholder(s) (if different from 3.) g
Vidacos Nominees

5. Date of the transaction (and date on which the threshold is crossed or reached if
different) (v):
24 April 2008

6. Date on which issuer notified:
25 April 2008

7. Threshold(s) that is/are crossed or reached:
5%

8. Notified details:

A: Voting rights attached to shares

Classitype of shares if Situation previous to the Triggering transaction (vi)
possible using the ISIN CODE

Number of shares Number of voting Rights {viii)
GBO0B1FMHO67 6,352,039 6,352,039

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 12/05/2008




Resulting situation after the triggering transaction (vij

Class/type of shares if Number of shares Number of voting rights (ix) % of voting rights
possible using the ISIN CCDE
Direct (x) Indirect (xi) Direct Indirect
GBOOB1FMHO067
6,082,560 3,695,508 2,386,962 3.018%  1.9499

B: Financial Instruments
Resulting situation after the triggering transaction (i

Type of Expiration Date Exercise/Conversion Number of voting % of voting
financial (xil Period/ Date (xiv) rights that may he rights
instrument acquired if the

instrument is
exercised/ converted.

Total (A+B)
Number of voting rights % of voting rights

6,082,560 4.968%

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the

financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable *V)
Standard Life Investments

Proxy Voting:
10. Name of the proxy holder:

11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold:

12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights:

1 3.. Addltlonal information:

14. Contact name:
Alison Kennedy
Corporate Governance Manager — Engagement
Standard Life Investments Ltd

15. Contact telephone number:

(0131) 245 2289
END

http://www .londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 12/05/2008

L




London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2008 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved
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Released 07:01 22-Apr-08
Number 81318

IMMEDIATE RELEASE, 22 APRIL 2008

FIBERWEB PLC

AVGOL TALKS TERMINATED AND TRADING UPDATE

Yesterday evening, 21 April 2008, Avgol Industries 1953 Ltd (“Avgol”) announced that due to the difficulties
of obtaining financing on reasonable terms, given current credit market conditions, it had resolved not to
proceed with its possible offer for Fiberweb plc (“Fiberweb” or the “Company”). Accordingly discussions
between Fiberweb and Avgol have been terminated and Fiberweb is no longer in discussions with any third
party about a possible offer for the Company.

The Board of Fiberweb is confident of the prospects of the Group as an independent business. First quarter
trading in 2008 has been in line with the Board’s expectations and an Interim Management Statement will be
issued on 2 May 2008, before the AGM to be held on that day.

Enquiries:

Fiberweb plc 020 8439 8594
Daniel Dayan, Chief Executive
[Dan Abrams, Chief Financial Officer

JPMorgan Cazenove (Financial Adviser and Corporate Broker)
Robert Constant 020 7588 2828
Richard Perelman

Hoare Govett (Corporate Broker) 020 7678 8000
Neil Collingridge

John Fishley

Weber Shandwick Financial 020 7067 0700
lan Bailey

Nick Dibden

James White

END

END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
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Released 16:00 16-Apr-08 )
Number 50098

TR-1(i): NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer of existing shares to which voting
rights are attached qiiy:

Fiberweb plc
2. Reason for the notification
An acquisition or disposal of voting rights: (x )

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in the acquisition of
shares already issued to which voting rights are attached: ( )

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights: ()
Other (please specify) : ( )

3. Full name of person(s) subject to the notification obligation ii:
Standard Life Investments Ltd

4. Full name of shareholder(s) (if different from 3.) :
Vidacos Nominees

5. Date of the transaction (and date on which the threshold is crossed or reached if
different) (v:
15 April 2008

6. Date on which issuer notified:
16 April 2008

7. Threshold(s) that is/are crossed or reached:
5%

8. Notified details:

A: Voting rights attached to shares

Class/type of shares if Situation previous to the Triggering transaction (vi)
possible using the I1SIN CODE

Number of shares Number of voting Rights (viii)
GBOOB1FMHO067 4,935,405 4,935,405

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/L.SECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i...  12/05/2008




Resulting situation after the triggering transaction {vi

Class/type of shares if Number of shares Number of voting rights (ix) % of voting rights
possible using the ISIN CODE
Direct (x) Indirect (xi) Direct Indirect
GB00OB1FMHOB7
6,352,039 3,965,077 2,386,962 3.238% 1.9499

B: Financial Instruments
Resulting situation after the triggering transaction ¢

Type of Expiration Date Exercise/Conversion Number of voting % of voting
financial (i) Period/ Date (xiv) rights that may be rights
instrument acquired if the

instrument is
exercised/ converted.

Total (A+B)
Number of voting rights % of voting rights

6,352,039 5.188

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the

financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable *¥
Standard Life Investments

Proxy Voting:

10. Name of the proxy holder:

13. Additional information:

14. Contact name:
Alison Kennedy
Corporate Governance Manager — Engagement
Standard Life Investments Ltd

15. Contact telephone number:

(0131) 245 2289
END
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Fiberweb plc
7 April 2008

The Board of Fiberweb plc (“Fiberweb™) notes the announcement released today by Avgol Industries 1953
Ltd (*Avgol™) in relation to the expected financing of its possible offer for Fiberweb.

The transtated text of Avgol’s announcement is set out below:

“Following Avgol's announcement of 21 January 2008 in relation to the possible offer by Avgol for Fiberweb
Plc, Avgol today announces that it has completed the due diligence investigation of Fiberweb and is currently
reviewing the results of such due diligence investigation.

If the proposed transaction is consummated, Avgol expects the financing thereof to consist of (i) debt in an
approximate amount of $400M, which shall be provided by non-Israeli banks and Israeli institutional
investors, and which shall be secured, together with Avgol's currently outstanding debentures, by the assets of
the combined group, and (ii) mezzanine financing in an approximate amount of $200M. Avgol expects the
debt amount to be used, among other things, to refinance the existing indebtedness of Fiberweb. The terms of
the different debt components have not yet been finalised.

The abovementioned expectations for the financing of the acquisition of Fiberweb, to the extent it is
consummated, are of a forward looking nature, and are based on initial indications Avgol has received from
various financial institutions and on the analysis of the current financing markets and alternatives. Avgol’s
financing expectations might not consummate if the final financing terms of the transaction materially differ
from the indicative information Avgol has received and/or in case of a material change in the acquisition
terms of Fiberweb. Without derogating from the abovementioned, there can be no certainty that the
acquisition of Fiberweb will be consummated.

Attached to this report is a presentation, which will be presented by Avgol today at 13:00 (Israel time) in a
telephonic conference with [sraeli institutional investors, regarding a possible private placement by Avgol of
debentures. The information in the presentation may be presented differently than was presented by Avgol to
the public and therefore, for the sake of good order, a copy of the presentation is attached hereto.”

There can be no certainty that Fiberweb's discussions with Avgol will lead to an offer being made for
Fiberweb.

A further announcement will be made in due course.
The directors of Fiberweb accept responsibility for the information contained in this announcement. To the
best of the knowledge and belief of the directors of Fiberweb (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure

that such is the case), the information contained in this announcement is in accordance with the facts and does
not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.
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Dealing Disclosure Requirements

Under the provisions of Rule 8.3 of the UK Takeover Code (the “Code™), if any person is, or becomes,
"interested" {directly or indirectly) in one per cent. or more of any class of "relevant securities” of Fiberweb,
all "dealings" in any "relevant securities" of that company (including by means of an option in respect of, or a
derivative referenced to, any such "relevant securities”) must be publicly disclosed by no later than 3.30 pm
(London time) on the London business day following the date of the relevant transaction. This requirement
will continue until the date on which any offer becomes, or is declared, unconditional as to acceptances,
lapses or is otherwise withdrawn or on which the "offer period" otherwise ends. If two or more persons act
together pursuant to an agreement or understanding, whether formal or informal, to acquire an "interest”" in
"relevant securities” of Fiberweb, they will be deemed to be a single person for the purpose of Rule 8.3.

Under the provisions of Rule 8.1 of the Code, all "dealings" in "relevant securities" of Fiberweb by Fiberweb
or by Avgol, or by any of their respective "associates”, must be disclosed by no later than 12.00 noon (London
time) on the London business day following the date of the relevant transaction,

A disclosure table, giving details of the companies in whose "relevant securities” "dealings” should be
disclosed, and the number of such securities in issue, can be found on the Takeover Panel's website at
www.thetakeoverpanel.org.uk.

"Interests in securities” arise, in summary, when a person has long economic exposure, whether conditional or
absolute, to changes in the price of securities. In particular, a person will be treated as having an "interest” by
virtue of the ownership or control of securities, or by virtue of any option in respect of, or derivative
referenced to, securities.

Terms in quotation marks are defined in the Code. If you are in any doubt as to whether or not you are
required to disclose a "dealing" under Rule &, you should consult the Panel.

END

London Stock Exchange ple is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
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countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.
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NOTICE OF AGM

Fiberweb plc (the "Company") announces that on 28 March 2008 it posted to shareholders a Notice
of an Annual General Meeting to be held on 2 May 2008.

The Company confirms that copies of the documents listed below have today been submitted to the
UK Listing Authority and will shortly be available for inspection in the UK Listing Authority's
Document Viewing Facility, which is situated at:

The Financial Services Authority
25 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London

E14 5HS

Tel: 020 7676 1000

List of Documents:

Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2007
Chairman's Explanatory Letter and Notice of Annual General Meeting
Annual General Meeting Proxy Card

New Articles (being proposed at the Annual General Meeting)

Copies of these documents are also available for inspection during normal business hours until 2
May 2008 at the registered office of the Company:

Fiberweb plc

1 Victoria Villas
Richmond on Thames
London

TW9 2GW

AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

At its upcoming Annual General Meeting, the Company will be proposing the adoption of new
articles of association. These are intended to replace the Company's current articles of association.
The main reason for proposing the adoption of new articles of association is to take account of
changes in UK company law brought about by the Companies Act 2006. A summary of the
principal changes being introduced by amended Articles is set out below, and is based on notes to
the Chairman's Explanatory Letter:

1. Articles that Duplicate Statutory Provisions

Provisions in the current Articles which replicate provisions contained in the Companies Act 2006
("CA 2006"} are, in the main, to be amended to bring them into line with the CA 2006. Certain
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examples of such provisions include provisions as to the form of resolutions, the variation of class
rights, the requirement to keep accounting records and provisions regarding the period of notice
required to convene general meetings. The main changes made to reflect this approach are detailed
below.

2. Form of Resolution

The current Articles contain provisions that specifically require extraordinary resolutions. These
provisions are removed/amended in the new Articles as the concept of extraordinary resolutions has
not been retained under the CA 20086.

3. Variation of Class Rights

The current Articles contain provisions regarding the variation of class rights. The proceedings and
specific quorum requirements for a meeting convened to vary class rights are contained in the CA
2006. The relevant provisions have therefore been amended in the new Articles.

4, Convening General Meetings

The provisions in the current Articles dealing with the convening of general meetings and the length
of notice required to convene general meetings are being amended to conform to new provisions in
the CA 2006. In particular, a general meeting to consider a special resolution can be convened on
14 days' notice whereas previously 21 days' notice was required.

5. Votes of Members

Under the CA 2006, proxies are entitled to vote on a show of hands whereas, under the current
Articles, proxies are only entitled to vote on a poll. Multiple proxies may be appointed provided that
each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share held by the shareholder.
Multiple corporate representatives may be appointed. The new Articles reflect these provisions.

6. Age of Directors on Appointment or Re-election

The current Articles contain a provision requiring a director's age to be disclosed in the notice
convening a meeting at which the director is proposed to be elected or re-elected if he has attained
the age of 70 years or more. This provision has been removed from the new Articles.

7. Conflicts of Interest

The CA 2006 sets out directors' general duties which largely codify the existing law, but with some
changes. Under the CA 2006, from 1 October 2008, a director must avoid a situation where he has,
or can have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict with the company’s
interests. The requirement is very broad and could apply, for example, if a director becomes a
director of another company or a trustee of ancther organisation. The CA 2006 allows directors of
public companies to authorise conflicts and potential conflicts, where appropriate, where the Articles
contain a provision to this effect. The CA 2006 also allows the Articles to contain other provisions for
dealing with directors' conflicts of interest to avoid a breach of duty. The new Articles give the
directors authority to approve such situations and include other provisions to allow conflicts of
interest to be dealt with in a similar way to the current position.

There are safeguards which will apply when directors decide whether to authorise a conflict or
potential conflict. First, only directors who have no interest in the matter being considered will be
able to take the relevant decision, and secondly, in taking the decision the directors must act in a
way they consider, in good faith, will be most likely to promote the company's success. The
directors will be able to impose limits or conditions when giving authorisation if they think this is
appropriate.

It is also proposed that the new Articles should contain provisions relating to confidential

information, attendance at Board meetings and availability of Board papers to protect a director
being in breach of duty if a conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest arises. These provisions
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will only apply where the position giving rise to the potential conflict has previously been authorised
by the directors.

8. Notice of Board Meetings

Under the new Articles, a director absent or intending to be absent from the United Kingdom may
request that notices of Board meetings during his absence be sent to him in hard copy form or by
electronic means to an address or electronic address given by him to the Company for that purpose.
If no request is made (and/or if no such non-United Kingdom address is given) it is not necessary to
give notice of a Board meeting to a director who is absent from the United Kingdom.

9. Electronic and Web Communications

Provisions of the CA 2006 which came into force in January 2007 enable companies to
communicate with members by electronic and/or website communications. The new Articles
continue to allow communications to members in electronic form and, in addition, they also permit
the Company to take advantage of the new provisions relating to website communications. Before
the Company can communicate with a member by means of website communication, the relevant
member must be asked individually by the Company to agree that the Company may send or supply
documents or information to him by means of a website, and the Company must either have
received a positive response or have received no response within the period of 28 days beginning
with the date on which the request was sent. The Company will notify the member (either in writing,
or by other permitted means) when a relevant decument or information is placed on the website and
a member can always request a hard copy version of the document or information.

10. Directors’ Indemnities and Loans to Fund Expenditure

The CA 2006 has in some areas widened the scope of the powers of a company to indemnify
directors and to fund expenditure incurred in connection with certain actions against directors. In
particular, a company that is a trustee of an occupational pension scheme can now indemnify a
director against liability incurred in connection with the company's activities as trustee of the
scheme. In addition, the existing exemption allowing a company to provide money for the purpose
of funding a director's defence in court proceedings now expressly covers regulatory proceedings
and applies to associated companies.

11. General

Generally the opportunity has been taken to bring clearer language into the new Articles and in
some areas to conform the language of the new Articles.

END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms_and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.
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FIBERWEB PLC

ANNUAL INFORMATION UPDATE FOR THE 12 MONTHS FROM 19 MARCH 2007

This annual information update is filed pursuant to Prospectus Rule 5.2 made by the Financial Services
Authority and not for any other purpose and by filing this annual information update neither the Company, nor
any other person, takes any responsibility for, or makes any representation, express or implied, as to the
accuracy or completeness of, the information contained or referred to below herein. The information referred
to below is not necessarily up to date as at the date of this annual information update and the Company does
not undertake any obligation to update any such information in the future. Furthermore, such information may
have been prepared in accordance with the laws or regulations of a particular jurisdiction and may not comply
with or meet the relevant standards of disclosure in any other jurisdiction. Neither this annual information
update, nor the information referred to below constitutes, by virtue of this communication, an offer of any
securities addressed to any person and should not be relied on by any person.

1. Announcements made via a Regulatory Information Service/U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission
19 March 2008 Annual Information Update

27 February 2008

Asian Joint Ventures

27 February 2008

Final Results

28 February 2008

Notification of Major Shareholding

25 February 2008

Notification of Major Shareholding

18 February 2008

Natification of Major Shareholding

8 February 2008

Notice of Results

6 February 2008

Notification of Major Shareholding

1 February 2008

Notification of Major Shareholding

31 January 2008

Board Appointment

30 January 2008

Notification of Mjaor Shareholding

29 January 2008

Notification of Major Shareholding

23 January 2008

Notification of Major Shareholding

23 January 2008

Notification of Major Shareholding

22 January 2008

Notification of Major Shareholding

22 January 2008

Notification of Major Shareholding

21 January 2008

Possible Offer by Avgol Industries 1953 Ltd (*Avgol” )

18 January 2008

Notification of Major Shareholding

10 January 2008

Notification of Major Shareholding

27 December 2007

Notification of Major Sharehelding

21 December 2007

Director/PDMR Shareholding

19 December 2007

Notification of Major Shareholding

7 December 2007

Notification of Major Shareholding
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6 December 2007

Directorate Change and Trading Updte

5 December 2007

Notification of Major Shareholding

29 November 2007

Notification of Major Shareholding

29 November 2007

Notification of Major Shareholding

21 November 2007

Notification of Major Shareholding

21 November 2007

Director/PDMR Shareholding

20 November 2007

Director/PDMR Shareholding

16 November 2007

Director/fPDMR Sharehaolding

8 November 2007

DirectorfPDMR Shareholding

31 October 2007

Notification of Major Interest

17 October 2007 Notification of Major Interest
3 October 2007 Director/fPDMR Shareholding
2 October 2007 DirectorfPDMR Shareholding

1 October 2007

Notification of Major Interest

28 September2007

Notification of Major Interest

28 September2007 Natification of Major Interest
25 September 2007 Director/PDMR Shareholding
24 September2007 Notification of Major Interest
24 September 2007 Notification of Major Interest
24 September 2007 Notification of Major Interest
21 September 2007 Notification of Major Interest
10 September 2007 Notification of Major Interest
6 September 2007 Trading Update

5 September 2007 Natification of Major Interest
14 August 2007 Notification of Major Interest
14 August 2007 Notification of Major Interest
7 August 2007 Notification of Major Interest
7 August 2007 Interim Results

6 August 2007 Notification of Major Interest
2 August 2007 Notification of Major Interest
20 July 2007 Notification of Major Interest
5 July 2007 Ngtification of Major Interest
28 June 2007 Notification of Major Interest
22 June 2007 Natification of Major Interest
14 June 2007 Natification of Major Interest
12 June 2007 Notification of Major Interest
12 June 2007 Notification of Major Interest
8 June 2007 Directors Shareholding

7 June 2007 Notification of Major Interests
7 June 2007 Director/fPDMR Interests

5 June 2007 Directors Shareholding

1 June 2007 Notification of Major Interests
25 May 2007 Disposal

23 May 2007 Notification of Major Interests
17 May 2007 Director/fPDMR Interests

2 May 2007 AGM Statement

1 May 2007 Notification of Major Interests
30 April 2007 Notification of Major Interests

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 12/05/2008




25 April 2007 Notification of Major Interests
18 April 2007 Analyst and Investor Site Visit
16 April 2007 Trading Update

30 March 2007 AGM Notice

30 March 2007 Notification of Major Interests
30 March 2007 Disposal

28 March 2007 Notification of Major Interests
20 March 2007 Notification of Major Interests
19 March 2007 Annual Information Update

During the period 23 January 2008 to date, various exempt principal traders and other persons disclosed
dealings in the Company's shares in compliance with the requirements of Rule 8.3 and Rule 38.5 of the City
Code on Takeovers and Mergers.

Details of all regulatery announcements for Fiberweb plc can be found on the London Stock Exchange
website at www.londonstockexchange.com and on the Fiberweb plc website at www.fiberweb.com

2. Documents filed with Companies House/U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

Date Document Type Description

4/2/08 Form 363 Annual Return

1/2/08 Form 288a Appointment of Director

31/1/08 Form 288b Resignation of Director

30/1/08 Form 288¢ Change of Address

212107 Form 288a Appointment of Company Secretary

3M2/07 Form 288b Resignation of Company Secretary

21/9/07 Form 288¢ Change of Address

16/05/07 Resolutions make info available 02/05/07
disapp pre-empt rights 02/05/07 ;
auth allot of security 02/05/07 ;
12244038 ord shares

16/05/07 Group Accounts made up to 31/12/06

Copies of documents filed at Companies House can be obtained from Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff
CF14 3UZ or through Companies House Direct at

www . direct.companieshouse.gov.uk

3. Documents published or sent to shareholders or filed with the UKLA viewing facility
Date Description
21 January 2008 Letter to Shareholders re possible offer
5 September 2007 Interim Report 2007
2 May 2007 Resolutions relating to special business passed at AGM on 26 April 2007
30 March 2007 Annual Report and Accounts 2006, Chairman’s Letter and Notice of AGM,
AGM Proxy Card

Copies of all the above documents may be obtained from the Company Secretary at the Company’'s
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Registered Office:

Fiberweb plc

1 Victoria Villas
Richmond on Thames
London TW9 2GW

END
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IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 30
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

At the Annual General Meeting of Fiberweb plc, (the "Company”) duly convened and held at Baker &
McKenzie LLP, 100 New Bridge Street, London, EC4V 6JA on Wednesday 2 May 2008 at 11.30am,
the following resolutions were passed:

As an Ordinary Resolution:

That the directors be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to section 80
of the Companies Act 1985 for the period ending on the date of the next Annual General Meeting, to
exercise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities up to an aggregate nominal amount
of £2,038,622 provided that the authority hereby conferred shall allow the directors to make an offer or
agreement before the expiry of such authority which would or might require relevant securities to be
allotted after such expiry as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.

As a Special Resolution:

That, subject to the passing of resclution 8, the directors be and are empeowered pursuant to section
95 of the Companies Act 1985 ("CA 1985") to allot equity securities (within the meaning of section
94(2) CA 1985) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by resolution 8 as if section 89(1) CA 1985
did not apply to the allotment, provided that the power conferred by this resolution:

(@) will expire at the next Annual General Meeting save that the Company may before the expiry
of this power make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity securities to be
allotted after such expiry and the directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of such
offer or agreement as if the power conferred by this resolution had not expired; and

(b) is limited to:

(i) an allotment of equity securities in connection with a Rights Issue. For the purpose of this
resolution 9, a "Rights Issue” means an offer of securities open for acceptance for a
pericd fixed by the directors, to holders of ordinary shares, made in proportion (as nearly
as practicable) to their respective existing holdings of ordinary shares but subject to the
directors having a right to make such exclusions or other arrangements as they consider
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or legal or practical problems
arising in any overseas territory, by virtue of the shares being represented by depositary
receipts or by the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange; and

(i) the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to (i) above) of equity securities for cash having, in
the case of relevant shares, a nominal amount or, in the case of other equity securities,
giving the right to subscribe for or convert into relevant shares having a nominal amount
not exceeding in aggregate £306,100,

and the power conferred by this resolution 9 shall also apply to a sale of treasury shares, which is an
allotment of equity securities by virtue of section 94(3A) CA 1985, but with the omission of the words
"pursuant to the authority conferred by resolution 8"

Fiberweb plc,

Registered in England & Wales,

Registered Office: 1 Vicioria Villas, Richmond on Thames, London, TW9 2GW
No. 5683352

Fiberweb is a registered trade mark in a number of countries
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As a Special Resolution:

That the Company is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 166
of the Companies Act 1985 to make market purchases (within the meaning of section 163 of that Act)
on the London Stock Exchange of ordinary shares of 5 pence each in the capital of the Company
(“ordinary shares”) provided that:

(@) the maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares authorised to be purchased is 12,244,038
ordinary shares in the capital of the Company (representing approximately 10 per cent of the
present issued ordinary share capital of the Company);

(b) the minimum price (excluding stamp duty and expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary
share so purchased is 5 pence;

(e the maximum price (excluding stamp duty and expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary
share so purchased is an amount equal to the higher of 5 per cent above the average of the
middle market quotations shown for an ordinary share in the London Stock Exchange Daily
Official List on the five business days immediately preceding the day on which that ordinary
share is purchased and the amount stipulated by Article 5{1) of the Buy-back and Stabilisation
Regulaticns 2003;

(d) the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to
be held in 2009, unless such authority is renewed, varied or revoked prior to such time;

(e) the Company may prior to the expiry of such authority make a contract to purchase ordinary
shares under the authority hereby conferred which will or may be executed whoily or partly
after the expiry of such authority, and may make a purchase of ordinary shares in pursuance
of any such contract; and

H all ordinary shares purchased pursuant to the said authority shall either:
(M be cancelled immediately upon completion of the purchase;
(i) be heid, sold, transferred or otherwise dealt with as treasury shares in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985.

As a Special Resolution:

That the amended Articles of Association of the Company produced to the Meeting and initialled by
the Chairman for the purpcse of identification as New Articles 'A' be adopted as the Articles of
Association of the Company, in substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the existing Articles of
Association with immediate effect.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Aus oA

A. HOLLAND
COMPANY SECRETARY

Fiberweb plc,

Registered in England & Wales,

Registered Office; 1 Victoria Villas, Richmond on Thames, London, TW8 2GW
No. 5683352

Fiberweb is a registered trade mark in a number of countries
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(Articles adopted on 14 September 2006 and
amended by Special Resolution passed on 2 May 2008)

Interpretation
1. Exclusion of Table A
No regulations set out in any statute, or in any statutory instrument or other subordinate
legislation made under any statute, concerning companies shall apply as the regulations or
Articles of the company.
2. Definitions

In these Articles unless the context otherwise requires:-

“address”, in relation to electronic communications, includes any number or address
used for the purposes of such communications;

‘these Articles” means these Articles of association as altered from time to time and
the expression “this Article” shall be construed accordingly;

‘associated company” has the meaning given to it in section 256 of the Companies Act
2006 (as amended);

‘the auditors” means the auditors from time to time of the company or, in the case of
joint auditors, any one of them;

“the board” means the board of directors from time to time of the company or the
directors present at a meeting of the directors at which a quorum is present;

1 The company was incorporated on the 22 January 2006 under the name *“TRUSHELFCO (NO.3193) LIMITED" and its
name was subsequently changed to “Fiberweb Limited” pursuant to a Special Resolution passed on 8 March 20086.
The company was re-registered as a public limited pursuant to a special resolution passed on 14 September 2006,

LONDOCS\2807019.01 1



“certificated share” means a share which is not an uncertificated share and references
in these Articles to a share being held in certificated form shall be construed
accordingly;

“clear days” in relation to the period of a notice means that period excluding the day
when the notice is served or deemed to be served and the day for which it is given or on
which it is to take effect;

“the Companies Acts” means every statute (including any orders, regulations or other
subordinate legislation made under it) from time to time in force concerning companies
in so far as it applies to the company;

“the company” means Fiberweb plc;

"electronic form" has the same meaning as in section 1168 of the Companies Act
2006;

"electronic means" has the same meaning as in section 1168 of the Companies Act
2006;

“electronic signature” means anything in electronic form which the board requires to
be incorporated into or otherwise associated with an electronic communication for the

purpose of establishing the authenticity or integrity of the communication;

“the holder” in relation to any shares means the member whose name is entered in the
register as the holder of those shares;

“the Listing Rules” means the rules which are made from time to time by the relevant
competent authority for the purposes of the regulation of the official listing of the
company's securities;

‘member’ means a member of the company;

“the office” means the registered office from time to time of the company;

“‘paid up” means paid up or credited as paid up;

“participating class” means a class of shares title to which is permitted by an Operator
to be transferred by means of a relevant system;

“person entitled by transmission” means a person whose entitlement to a share in
consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a member or of any other event giving rise
to its transmission by operation of [aw has been noted in the register;

“the register” means the register of members of the company;

‘seal" means any common or official seal that the company may be permitted to have
under the Companies Acts;
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(A)

(B)

“the secretary” means the secretary, or (if there are joint secretaries} any one of the
joint secretaries, of the company and includes an assistant or deputy secretary and any
person appointed by the board to perform any of the duties of the secretary,

“uncertificated share” means a share of a class which is at the relevant time a
participating class title to which is recorded an the register as being held in
uncertificated form and references in these Articles to a share being held in
uncertificated form shall be construed accordingly;

“the Uncertificated Securities Requlations® means the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations 2001 as amended from time to time and any provisions of or under the
Companies Acts which supplement or replace such Regulations;

“United Kingdom™ means Great Britain and Northern Ireland;

references to a document being executed include references to its being executed
under hand or under seal or by any other method except by means of an electronic
signature;

references to a document being signed or to signature include references to its being
executed under hand or under seal or by any other method and, in the case of an
electronic communication, such references are to its bearing an electronic signature;

references to writing include references to any method of representing or reproducing
words in a legible and non-transitory form including by way of electronic
communications where specifically provided in a particular Article or where permitted by
the board in its absolute discretion;

words or expressions to which a particular meaning is given by the Companies Acts in
force when these Articles or any part of these Articles are adopted bear (if not
inconsistent with the subject matter or context) the same meaning in these Articles or
that part (as the case may be) save that the word “company” shall include any body
corporate; and

references to a meeting shall not be taken as requiring more than one person to be
present if any quorum requirement can be satisfied by one person.

Headings are included only for convenience and shall not affect meaning.
Form of Resolution

Where for any purpose an ordinary resolution of the company is required, a special
resolution shall also be effective.

Subject to the Companies Acts, a resolution in writing signed by or on behalf of each
member who would have been entitled to vote upon it if it had been proposed at a
general meeting at which he was present shall be as effectual as if it had been passed
at a general meeting properly convened and held and may consist of several
instruments in the like form each signed by ar on behalf of one or more of the members.
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In this paragraph of this Article references to in writing include the use of electronic
communications subject to such terms and conditions as the board may decide.

Share Capital
4, Authorised Share Capital

The authorised share capital of the company at the date of adoption of this Article is
£10,000,000 divided into 200,000,000 ordinary shares of 5 pence each.

5. Rights Attached to Shares

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and to any rights attached to existing shares,
any share may be issued with or have attached to it such rights and restrictions as the company
may by ordinary resolution decide or, if no such resoclution has been passed or so far as the
resolution does not make specific provision, as the board may decide.

6. Redeemable Shares

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and to any rights attached to existing shares,
any share may be issued which is to be redeemed, or is liable to be redeemed at the option of
the company or the holder.

7. Purchase of Own Shares

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and to any rights attached to existing shares,
the company may purchase or may enter into a contract under which it will or may purchase all
or any of its shares of any class, including any redeemable shares. Neither the company nor
the board shall be required to select the shares to be purchased rateably or in any other
particular manner as between the holders of shares of the same class or as between them and
the holders of shares of any other class or in accordance with the rights as to dividends or
capital conferred by any class of shares.

8. Variation of Rights

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, all or any of the rights attached to any existing
class of shares may from time to time (whether or not the company is being wound up) be
varied either with the consent in writing of the holders of not less than three-fourths in nominal
value of the issued shares of that class (excluding any shares of that class held as treasury
shares) or with the sanction of a special resclution passed at a separate general meeting of the
holders of those shares. All the provisions of these Articles as to general meetings of the
company shall, with any necessary modifications, apply to any such separate general meeting,
but so that the necessary quorum shall be two persons present at the meeting holding not less
than one-third in nominal value of the issued shares of the class (excluding any shares of that
class held as treasury shares), (but so that at any adjourned meeting one person present at the
meeting holding shares of the class in question (whatever the number of shares held by him)
shall be a quorum), that every holder of shares of the class present at the meeting and entitled
to vote shall be entitled on a poll to one vote for every share of the class held by him (subject to
any rights or restrictions attached to any class of shares) and that any holder of shares of the
class at the meeting and entitled to vote may demand a poll in writing. The foregoing
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provisions of this Article shall apply to the variation of the special rights attached to only some of
the shares of any class as if each group of shares of the class differently treated formed a
separate class and their special rights were to be varied.

9. Pari Passu Issues

The rights conferred upon the holders of any shares shall not, unless otherwise expressly
provided in the rights attaching to those shares, be deemed to be varied by the creation or issue
of further shares ranking pari passu with them.

10. Unissued Shares

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and these Articles and to any resolution passed
by the company and without prejudice to any rights attached to existing shares, the unissued
shares of the company (whether forming part of the original or any increased capital} shall be at
the disposal of the board which may offer, allot, grant aptions over or otherwise deal with or
dispose of them to such persons, at such times and for such consideration and upon such terms
as the board may decide.

1. Payment of Commission

The company may in connection with the issue of any shares exercise all powers of paying
commission and brokerage conferred or permitted by the Companies Acts. Subject to the
provisions of the Companies Acts, any such commission or brokerage may be satisfied by the
payment of cash or by the allotment of fully or partly-paid shares or partly in one way and partly
in the other.

12. Trusts Not Recognised

Except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as required by law, no person shall be
recognised by the company as holding any share upon any trust and the company shall not be
bound by or required in any way to recognise (even when having notice of it} any interest in any
share or (except only as by these Articles or by law otherwise provided) any other right in
respect of any share other than an absolute right to the whole of the share in the holder.

13. Suspension of Rights Where Non-Disclosure of Interest

{A) Where the holder of any shares in the company, or any other person appearing to be
interested in those shares, fails to comply within the relevant period with any statutory
notice in respect of those shares or, in purported compliance with such a notice, has
made a statement which is false or inadequate in a material particular, the company
may give the holder of those shares a further notice (a “restriction notice”) to the effect
that from the service of the restriction notice those shares will be subject to some or all
of the relevant restrictions, and from service of the restrigtion notice those shares shall,
notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, be subject to those relevant
restrictions accordingly. For the purpose of enforcing the relevant restriction referred to
in sub-paragraph (iii) of the definition of “relevant restrictions”, the beard may give notice
to the relevant member requiring the member to change the relevant shares held in
uncertificated form to certificated form by the time stated in the notice. The notice may
also state that the member may not change any of the relevant shares held in
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(B)

(©)

(o)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

certificated form to uncertificated form. If the member does not comply with the notice,
the board may authorise any person to instruct the Cperator to change the relevant
shares held in uncertificated form to certificated form.

If after the service of a restriction netice in respect of any shares the board is satisfied
that all information required by any statutory notice relating to those shares or any of
them from their holder or any other person appearing to be interested in the shares the
subject of the restriction notice has been supplied, the company shall, within seven
days, cancel the restriction notice. The company may at any time at its discretion
cancel any restriction notice or exclude any shares from it. The company shall cancel a
restriction notice within seven days after receipt of a notice in writing that the relevant
shares have been transferred pursuant to an arm'’s length sale.

Where any restriction notice is cancelled or ceases to have effect in relation to any

shares, any moneys relating to those shares which were withheld by reason of that
notice shall be paid without interest to the person who would but for the notice have
been entitled to them or as he may direct.

Any new shares in the company issued in right of any shares subject to a restriction
notice shall also be subject to the restriction notice, and the board may make any right
to an allotment of the new shares subject to restrictions corresponding to those which
will apply to those shares by reason of the restriction notice when such shares are
issued.

Any holder of shares on whom a restriction notice has been served may at any time
request the company to give in writing the reason why the restriction notice has been
served, or why it remains uncancelled, and within 14 days of receipt of such a notice the
company shall give that information accordingly.

If a statutory notice is given by the company to a person appearing to be interested in
any share, a copy shall at the same time be given to the holder, but the failure or
omission to do so or the non-receipt of the copy by the holder shall not invalidate such
notice.

This Article is in addition to, and shall not in any way prejudice or affect, the statutory
rights of the company arising from any failure by any person to give any information
required by a statutory notice within the time specified in it. For the purpose of this
Article a statutory notice need not specify the relevant period, and may require any
information to be given before the expiry of the relevant period.

In this Article:-

a sale is an “arm’s length sale” if the board is satisfied that it is a bona
fide sale of the whole of the beneficial ownership of the shares to a
party unconnected with the holder or with any person appearing to be
interested in such shares and shall include a sale made by way of or in
pursuance of acceptance of a takeover offer and a sale made through a
recognised investment exchange or any other stock exchange outside
the United Kingdom. For this purpose an associate (within the definition
of that expression in any statute relating to insolvency in force at the
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date of adoption of this Article) shall be included amongst the persons
who are connected with the holder or any person appearing to be
interested in such shares;

“person appearing to be interested” in any shares shall mean any
person named in a response to a statutory notice or otherwise notified

to the company by a member as being so interested or shown in any
register or record kept by the company under the Companies Acts as so
interested or, taking into account a response or failure to respond in the
light of the response to any other statutory notice and any other relevant
information in the possession of the campany, any person whom the
company knows or has reasonable cause to believe is or may be so
interested;

“person with a 0.25 per cent. interest” means a person who holds, or
is shown in any register or record kept by the company under the
Companies Acts as having an interest in, shares in the company which
comprise in total at least 0.25 per cent. in number or nominal value of
the shares of the company {calculated exclusive of any shares held as
treasury shares), or of any class of such shares (calculated exclusive of
any shares of that class held as treasury shares), in issue at the date of
service of the restriction notice;

“relevant period” means a period of 14 days following service of a
statutory notice;

“relevant restrictions” mean in the case of a restriction notice served
on a person with a 0.25 per cent. interest that:-

(i) the shares shall not confer on the holder any right to attend or
vote either personally or by proxy at any general meeting of the
company or at any separate general meeting of the holders of
any class of shares in the company or to exercise any other
right conferred by membership in relation to general meetings;

i) the board may withhold payment of all or any part of any
dividends or other moneys payable in respect of the shares and
the holder shall not be entitled to receive shares in lieu of
dividend;

(iii) the board may decline to register a transfer of any of the shares
which are certificated shares, unless such a transfer is pursuant
to an arm'’s length sale

and in any other case mean only the restriction specified in sub-
paragraph (i) of this definition; and

“statutory notice” means a notice served by the company under the
Companies Acts requiring particulars of interests in shares or of the
identity of persons interested in shares.

7



14.

(A)

(B)

(€)

(D)

(E)

Uncertificated Shares

Pursuant and subject to the Uncertificated Securities Regulations, the board may permit
title to shares of any class to be evidenced otherwise than by a certificate and title to
shares of such a class to be transferred by means of a relevant system and may make
arrangements for a class of shares (if all shares of that class are in all respects
identical} to become a participating class. Title to shares of a particular class may only
be evidenced otherwise than by a certificate where that class of shares is at the relevant
time a participating class. The board may also, subject to compliance with the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations and the rules of any relevant system, determine at
any time that title to any class of shares may from a date specified by the board no
longer be evidenced otherwise than by a certificate or that title to such a class shall
cease to be transferred by means of any particular relevant system. For the avoidance
of doubt, shares which are uncertificated shares shall not be treated as forming a class
which is separate from certificated shares with the same rights.

In relation to a class of shares which is a participating class and for so long as it
remains a participating class, no provision of these Articles shall apply or have effect to
the extent that it is inconsistent in any respect with:-

{i) the holding of shares of that class in uncertificated form;

(i) the transfer of title to shares of that class by means of a relevant
system; and

(i)  any provision of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations,

and, without prejudice to the generality of this Article, no provision of these
Articles shall apply or have effect to the extent that it is in any respect
inconsistent with the maintenance, keeping or entering up by the Operator, so
long as that is permitted or required by the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations, of an Operator register of securities in respect of that class of
shares in uncertificated form.

Shares of a class which is at the relevant time a participating class may be changed

fram uncertificated to certificated form, and from certificated to uncertificated form, in
accordance with and subject as provided in the Uncertificated Securities Regulations
and the rules of any relevant system.

Unless the board otherwise determines or the Uncertificated Securities Regulations or
the rules of the relevant system concerned otherwise require, any shares issued or
created out of or in respect of any uncertificated shares shall be uncertificated shares
and any shares issued or created out of or in respect of any certificated shares shall be
certificated shares.

The company shall be entitled to assume that the entries on any record of securities
maintained by it in accordance with the Uncertificated Securities Regulations and
regularly reconciled with the relevant Operator register of securities are a complete and
accurate reproduction of the particulars entered in the Operator register of securities
and shall accordingly not be liable in respect of any act or thing done or omitted to be
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done by or on behalf of the company in reliance on such assumption; in particular, any
provision of these Articles which requires or envisages that action will be taken in
reliance on information contained in the register shall be construed to permit that action
to be taken in reliance on information contained in any relevant record of securities (as
s0 maintained and reconciled).

15. Right to Share Certificates

Every person (except a person to whom the company is not by law required to issue a
certificate) whose name is entered in the register as a holder of any certificated shares shall be
entitled, without payment, to receive within two months of their name being entered in the
register as a holder of certificated shares (or, if earlier, within any time limit prescribed by the
Companies Acts or within a time specified when the shares were issued} one certificate for all
those shares of any one class. In the case of a certificated share held jointly by several
persons, the company shall not be bound to issue more than one certificate and delivery of a
certificate to one of several joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to all. A member who
transfers some but not all of the shares comprised in a certificate shall be entitled to a certificate
for the balance without charge.

16. Replacement of Share Certificates

If a share certificate is defaced, worn out, lost or destroyed, it may be replaced on such terms (if
any) as to evidence and indemnity as the board may decide and, where it is defaced or worn
out, after delivery of the old certiftcate to the company. Any two or more certificates
representing shares of any one class held by any member shall at his request be cancelled and
a single new certificate for such shares issued in lieu. Any certificate representing shares of any
one class held by any member may at his request be cancelled and two or more certificates for
such shares may be issued instead. The board may require the payment of any exceptional
out-of-pocket expenses of the company incurred in connection with the issue of any certificates
under this Article (including, without limitation, any registrar’s costs). Any one of two or more
joint holders may request replacement certificates under this Article.

17. Execution of Share Certificates

Every share certificate shall be executed under a seal or in such other manner as the board,
having regard to the terms of issue and any listing requirements, may authorise and shall
specify the number and class of the shares to which it relates and the amount or respective
amounts paid up on the shares. The board may by resolution decide, either generally or in any
particular case or cases, that any signatures on any share certificates need not be autographic
but may be applied to the certificates by some mechanical or other means or may be printed on
them or that the certificates need not be signed by any person.
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Lien
18. Company's Lien on Shares Not Fully Paid

The company shall have a first and paramount lien on every share (not being a fully paid share)
for all amounts payable to the company {(whether presently or not) in respect of that share. The
company’s lien on a share shall extend to every amount payable in respect of it. The board may
at any time either generally or in any particular case waive any lien that has arisen or declare
any share to be wholly or in part exempt from the provisions of this Article.

19, Enforcing Lien by Sale

The company may sell, in such manner as the board may decide, any share on which the
company has a lien if a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently payable and is not
paid within 14 clear days after a notice has been served on the holder of the share or the person
who is entitled by transmission to the share, demanding payment and stating that if the notice is
not complied with the share may be sold. For giving effect to the sale the board may authorise
some person to execute an instrument of transfer of the share sold to or in accordance with the
directions of the purchaser. The transferee shall not be bound to see to the application of the
purchase money, nor shall his title to the share be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in
relation to the sale.

20. Application of Proceeds of Sale

The net proceeds, after payment of the costs, of the sale by the company of any share on which
it has a lien shall be applied in or towards payment or discharge of the debt or liability in respect
of which the lien exists so far as it is presently payable, and any residue shall (subject to a like
lien for debts or liabilities not presently payable as existed upon the share prior to the sale and
upon surrender, if required by the company, for cancellation of the certificate for the share sold)
be paid to the person who was entitled to the share at the time of the sale.

Calls on Shares
21. Calls

Subject to the terms of issue, the board may from time to time make calls upon the members in
respect of any moneys unpaid on their shares {(whether on account of the nominal amount of the
shares or by way of premium) and not payable on a date fixed by or in accordance with the
terms of issue, and each member shall (subject to the company serving upon him at least 14
clear days’ notice specifying when and where payment is to be made) pay to the company as
required by the notice the amount called on his shares. A call may be made payabte by
instalments. A call may be revoked or postponed, in whole or in part, as the board may decide.
A perscn upon whom a call is made shall remain liable jointly and severally with the successors
in title to his shares for all calls made upon him notwithstanding the subsequent transfer of the
shares in respect of which the call was made.

22, Timing of Calls

A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the board
authorising the call was passed.
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23. Liability of Joint Holders

The joint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in respect of the
share.

24, Interest Due on Non-Payment

If a call remains unpaid after it has become due and payable, the person from whom it is due
and payable shall pay interest on the amount unpaid from the day it is due and payable to the
time of actual payment at such rate, not exceeding 15 per cent. per annum, as the board may
decide, and all expenses that have been incurred by the company by reason of such non-
payment, but the board shall be at liberty in any case or cases to waive payment of the interest
or expenses wholly or in part.

25. Sums Due on Allotment Treated as Calls

Any amount which becomes payable in respect of a share on allotment or on any other date
fixed by or in accordance with the terms of issue, whether in respect of the nominal amount of
the share or by way of premium or as an instaiment of a call, shall be deemed to be a call and, if
it is not paid, all the provisions of these Articles shall apply as if the sum had become due and
payable by virtue of a call.

26. Power to Differentiate

The board may on or before the issue of shares differentiate between the allottees or holders as
to the amount of calls to be paid and the times of payment.

27. Payment of Calls in Advance

The board may, if it thinks fit, receive from any member who is willing to advance them all or any
part of the moneys uncalled and unpaid upon any shares held by him and on all or any of the
moeneys $¢ advanced may (until they would, but for the advance, become presently payable)
pay interest at such rate, not exceeding (unless the company by ordinary resolution shall
otherwise direct) 15 per cent. per annum, as the board may decide.

Forfeiture of Shares
28. Notice if Call or Instalment Not Paid
If any call or instaiment of a call remains unpaid on any share after the day appointed for
payment, the board may at any time serve a notice on the holder requiring payment of so much
of the call or instalment as is unpaid, together with any interest which may have accrued and
any expenses incurred by the company by reason of such non-payment.
29. Form of Notice
The notice shall name a further day (not being less than 14 clear days from the date of the

notice) on or before which, and the place where, the payment required by the notice is to be
made and shall state that in the event of non-payment on or before the day and at the place
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appointed, the shares in respect of which the call has been made or instalment is payable will
be liable to be forfeited.

30. Forfeiture for Non-Compliance with Notice

If the notice is not complied with, any share in respect of which it was given may, at any time
before payment of all calls or instalments and interest and expenses due in respect of it has
been made, be forfeited by a resolution of the board to that effect and the forfeiture shall include
all dividends declared and other moneys payable in respect of the forfeited shares and not paid
before the forfeiture. The board may accept the surrender of any share liable to be forfeited
and, in that event, references in these Articles to forfeiture shall include surrender.

31. Notice after Forfeiture

When any share has been forfeited, notice of the forfeiture shall be served upon the person who
was before forfeiture the holder of the share but no forfeiture shall be invalidated by any
omission or neglect to give notice.

32, Sale of Forfeited Shares

Until cancelled in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Acts, a forfeited share
shall be deemed to be the property of the company and may be sold or otherwise disposed of
either to the person who was, before forfeiture, the holder or to any other person upon such
terms and in such manner as the board shall decide. The board may for the purposes of the
disposal authorise some person to execute an instrument of transfer to the designated
transferee. The company may receive the consideration (if any) given for the share on its
disposal. At any time before a sale or disposition the forfeiture may be cancelled by the board
on such terms as the board may decide.

33. Arrears to be Paid Notwithstanding Forfeiture

A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a member in respect of them and
shall surrender to the company for cancellation the certificate for the forfeited shares but shall
remain liable to pay to the company all moneys which at the date of the forfeiture were payable
by him to the company in respect of those shares with interest thereon at the rate of 15 per cent.
per annum (or such tower rate as the board may decide) from the date of forfeiture until
payment, and the company may enforce payment without being under any obligation to make
any allowance for the value of the shares forfeited or for any consideration received on their
disposal.

34. Statutory Declaration as to Forfeiture

A statutory declaration that the declarant is a director of the company or the secretary and that a
share has been forfeited on a specified date shall be conclusive evidence of the facts stated in it
as against all persons claiming to be entitled to the share. The declaraticn shall (subject to the
execution of an instrument of transfer if necessary) constitute a good title to the share and the
person to whom the share is sold or otherwise disposed of shall not be bound to see to the
application of the purchase money (if any) nor shall his title to the share be affected by any
irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings relating to the forfeiture, sale or disposal.
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Transfer of Shares
35. Transfer
(A) Subject to such of the restrictions of these Articles as may be applicable:-

(i) any member may transfer all or any of his uncertificated shares by
means of a relevant system in such manner provided for, and subject as
provided in, the Uncertificated Securities Regulations and the rules of
any relevant system, and accordingly no provision of these Articles shall
apply in respect of an uncertificated share to the extent that it requires
or contemplates the effecting of a transfer by an instrument in writing or
the production of a certificate for the share to be transferred; and

ii) any member may transfer all or any of his certificated shares by an
instrument of transfer in any usual form or in any other form which the
board may approve.

(B) The transferor of a share shall be deemed to remain the holder of the share concerned
until the name of the transferee is entered in the register in respect of it.

36. Execution of Transfer

The instrument of transfer of a certificated share shall be executed by or on behalf of the
transferor and (in the case of a partly paid share) the transferee. All instruments of transfer,
when registered, may be retained by the company or its registrars.

37. Rights to Decline Registration of Partly Paid Shares

The board may, in its absolute discretion and without giving any reason for so doing, decline to
register any transfer of any share which is not a fully paid share.

38. Other Rights to Decline Registration

(A) Registration of a transfer of an uncertificated share may be refused in the
circumstances set out in the Uncertificated Securities Regulations, and where, in the
case of a transfer to joint ho!ders, the number of joint holders to whom the uncertificated
share is to be transferred exceeds four.

(B) The board may decline to register any transfer of a certificated share unless:-

(i) the instrument of transfer is duly stamped or duly certified or otherwise
shown to the satisfaction of the board to be exempt from stamp duty
and is left at the office or such other place as the board may from time
to time determine accompanied (save in the case of a transfer by a
person to whom the company is not required by law to issue a
certificate and to whom a certificate has not been issued) by the
certificate for the share to which it relates and such other evidence as
the board may reasonably require to show the right of the person
executing the instrument of transfer to make the transfer and, if the
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instrument of transfer is executed by some other person on his behalf,
the authority of that person so to do;

(ii) the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of share; and

(iii) in the case of a transfer to joint holders, the number of joint holders to
whom the share is to be transferred does not exceed four.

<) For all purposes of these Articles relating to the registration of transfers of shares, the
renunciation of the allotment of any shares by the allottee in favour of some other
person shall be deemed to be a transfer and the board shall have the same powers of
refusing to give effect to such a renunciation as if it were a transfer.

39. No Fee for Registration

No fee shall be charged by the company for registering any transfer, document or instruction
relating to or affecting the title to any share or for making any other entry in the register.

40. Untraced Shareholders

The company may sell any certificated shares in the company on behalf of the holder of, or
person entitied by transmission to, the shares at the best price reasonably obtainable at the time
of sale if:-

(i) the shares have been in issue either in certificated or uncertificated form
throughout the qualifying period and at least three cash dividends have become
payable on the shares during the qualifying period;

{ii) no cash dividend payable on the shares has either been claimed by
presentation to the paying bank of the relevant cheque or warrant or been
satisfied by the transfer of funds to a bank account designated by the holder of,
or person entitled by transmission to, the shares or by the transfer of funds by
means of a relevant system at any time during the relevant period;

(iii) so far as any director of the company at the end of the relevant period is then
aware, the company has not at any time during the relevant period received any
communication from the holder of, or person entitled by transmission to, the
shares; and

{iv) the company has caused two advertisements to be published, one in a
newspaper with a national circulation and the other in a newspaper circulating in
the area in which the last known postal address of the holder of, or person
entitled by transmission to, the shares or the postal address at which service of
notices may be effected under the Articles is located, giving notice of its
intention to sell the shares and a period of three months has elapsed from the
date of publication of the advertisements or of the last of the two advertisements
to be published if they are published on different dates.
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For the purpose of this Article:-

“the qualifying period” means the period of 12 years immediately preceding the date
of publication of the advertisements referred to in sub-paragraph (iv) above or of the
first of the two advertisements to be published if they are published on different dates;
and

“the relevant period” means the period beginning at the commencement of the
qualifying period and ending on the date when all the requirements of
sub-paragraphs (i) to {iv} above have been satisfied.

To give effect to any sale of shares pursuant to this Article the board may authorise some
person to transfer the shares in question and an instrument of transfer executed by that person
shall be as effective as if it had been executed by the holder of, or person entitled by
transmission to, the shares. The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the application of the
purchase moneys nor shall his title to the shares be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in
the proceedings relating to the sale. The net proceeds of sale shall belong to the company and,
upon their receipt, the company shall become indebted to the former holder of, or person
entitled by transmission to, the shares for an amount equal to the net proceeds. No trust shall
be created in respect of the debt and no interest shall be payable in respect of it and the
company shall not be required to account for any moneys earned from the net proceeds which
may be employed in the business of the company or as it thinks fit.

Transmission of Shares
41. Transmission on Death

If a member dies, the survivor or survivors, where he was a joint holder, and his personal
representatives, where he was a sole halder or the only survivor of joint holders, shall be the
only persons recognised by the company as having any title to his shares; but nothing contained
in these Articles shall release the estate of a deceased holder from any liability in respect of any
share held by him solely or jointly with other persons.

42, Entry of Transmission in Register

Where the entitlement of a person to a certificated share in consequence of the death or
bankruptcy of a member or of any other event giving rise to its transmission by operation of law
is proved to the satisfaction of the board, the beard shall within two months after proof cause the
entitlement of that person to be noted in the register.

43, Election of Person Entitled by Transmission

Any person entitled by transmission to a share may, subject as provided elsewhere in these
Articles, elect either to become the holder of the share or to have some person nominated by
him registered as the holder. If he elects to be registered himself he shall give notice to the
company to that effect. If he elects to have another person registered and the share is a
certificated share, he shall execute an instrument of transfer of the share to that person. If he
elects to have himself or another person registered and the share is an uncertificated share, he
shall take any action the board may require (including, without limitation, the execution of any
document and the giving of any instruction by means of relevant system) to enable himself or

o
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that person to be registered as the holder of the share. The board may at any time require the
person to elect either to be registered himself or to transfer the share and if the requirements
are not complied with within 60 days of being issued the board may withhold payment of all
dividends and other moneys payable in respect of the share until the requirements have been
complied with. All the provisions of these Articles relating to the transfer of, and registration of
transfers of, shares shall apply to the notice or transfer as if the death or bankruptcy of the
member or other event giving rise to the transmission had not occurred and the nofice or
transfer was given or executed by the member.

44, Rights of Person Entitled by Transmission

Where a person becomes entitled by transmission to a share, the rights of the holder in relation
to that share shall cease, but the person entitled by transmission to the share may give a good
discharge for any dividends or other moneys payable in respect of it and shall have the same
rights in relation to the share as he would have had if he were the holder of it save that, until he
becomes the holder, he shall not be entitled in respect of the share (except with the authority of
the board) to receive notice of, or to attend or vote at, any general meeting of the company or at
any separate general meeting of the holders of any class of shares in the company or to
exercise any other right conferred by membership in relation to general meetings.

Alteration of Share Capital
45, Increase, Consolidation, Sub-Division and Cancellation
The company may from time to time by ordinary resclution:-

(i) increase its share capital by such sum to be divided into shares of such amount
as the resolution shall prescribe;

{ii) consoclidate, or consclidate and then sub-divide, all or any of its share capital
into shares of larger amount than its existing shares;

(iii) subject to the Companies Acts, sub-divide its shares or any of them into shares
of smaller amount and the resolution may determine that, as between the
shares resulting from the sub-division, any of them may have any preference or
advantage or be subject to any restriction as compared with the others; and

(iv) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not
been taken or agreed to be taken by any person and diminish the amount of its
share capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled.

46, Fractions

(A) Whenever as a resuit of a consolidation, consolidation and sub-division or sub-division
of shares any members would become entitled to fractions of a share, the board may
deal with the fraclions as it thinks fit. In particular the board may selt the shares
representing the fractions for the best price reasonably obtainable to any person
(including, subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the company) and distribute
the net proceeds of sale in due proportion among those members and the board may
authorise some person to transfer or deliver the shares to, or in accordance with the
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directions of, the purchaser. For the purposes of effecting the sale, the board may
arrange for the shares representing the fractions to be entered in the register as
certificated shares. The person to whom any shares are transferred or delivered shall
not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money nor shall his title to the
shares be affected by any irregularity in, or invalidity of, the proceedings relating to the
sale.

(B) Subject to the Companies Acts, when the board consolidates or sub-divides shares, it
can treat certificated and uncertificated shares which a member holds as separate
shareholdings.

47. Reduction of Capital

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the company may by special resolution reduce
its share capital, any capital redemption reserve, any share premium account or any other
undistributable reserve in any way.

General Meetings
48. General Meetings

Any meeting of the company other than an annual general meeting shall be called a general
meeting.

49. Convening of Annual General Meetings and General Meetings

The board shall convene and the company shall hold general meetings as annual general
meetings in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Acts. The hoard may convene
general meetings whenever it thinks fit.

50. Separate General Meetings

The provisions of these Articles relating to general meetings shall apply, with any necessary
modifications, to any separate general meeting of the holders of shares of a class convened
otherwise than in connection with the variation or abrogation of the rights attached to the shares
of that class. For this purpose, a general meeting at which no holder of a share other than an
ordinary share may, in his capacity as a member, attend or vote shall also constitute a separate
general meeting of the holders of the ordinary shares.

Notice of General Meetings
51. Length of Notice
An annual general meeting shall be convened by not less than 21 clear days’ notice in writing.
All other general meetings shall be convened by not less than 14 clear days' notice in writing.

References in this Article to notice in writing include the use of electronic communications and
publication on a web site in accordance with the Companies Acts.
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52.

53.

Contents of notice
(A) The notice of meeting shall:-

{i) if it is a notice calling an annual general meeting, state that the meeting
is an annual general meeting;

(i) specify the time, the date and the place of the meeting including any
satellite meeting place arranged for the purpose of Article 58, which
shall be identified as such in the notice of meeting;

(i)  specify the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the
meeting;

(iv) if the meeting is convened to consider a special resolution, include the
text of the resolution and specify the intentton to propose the
resolution as a special resolution; and

(v) state, with reasonable prominence, that a member is entitled to appoint
another person as his proxy to exercise all or any of his rights to
attend and to speak and vote at the meeting and to appoint more than
one proxy in relation to the meeting (provided that each proxy is
appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares
held by him), and that a proxy need not also be a member.

(B) The notice of meeting shall be given to the members (other than any who,
under the provisions of these Articles or the terms of allotment or issue of
shares, are not entitled to receive notice), to the directors and to the auditors.

Meeting convened by short notice

A meeting of the company shall, notwithstanding that it is called by shorter notice than specified
above, be deemed to have been duly called with regard to length of notice if it is so agreed:

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

in the case of a meeting called as the annual general meeting, by all the members
entitled to attend and vote thereat; and

in the case of any other meeting, by a majority in number of the members having the
right to attend and vote at the meeting, being a majority together holding not less than
95 per cent. in nominal value of the shares giving that right.

Omission or Non-Receipt of Notice

The accidental omission to give any notice of a meeting or the accidental omission to
send any document relating to any meeting to, or the non-receipt of any such notice or
document by, any person entitled to receive the notice or document shall not invalidate
the proceedings at that meeting.

A member present in person or by proxy at a meeting shall be deemed to have received
proper notice of that meeting and, where applicable, of the purpose of that meeting.
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55. Postponement of General Meetings

If the board, in its absolute discretion, considers that it is impractical or undesirable for any
reason to hold a general meeting on the date or at the time or place specified in the notice
calling the general meeting, it may postpone or move the general meeting to another date, time
and/or place. The board shall take reasonable steps to ensure that notice of the date, time and
place of the rearranged meeting is given to any member trying to attend the meeting at the
original time and place. Notice of the date, time and place of the rearranged meeting shall, if
practicable, also be placed in at least two national newspapers in the United Kingdom. Notice
of the business to be transacted at such rearranged meeting shall not be required. If a meeting
is rearranged in this way, the appointment of a proxy will be valid if it is received as required by
these Articles not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the rearranged
meeting. The board may also postpone or move the rearranged meeting under this Article.

Proceedings at General Meetings
§6. Quorum

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum is present when the
meeting proceeds to business, but the absence of a quorum shall not preclude the choice or
appointment of a chairman of the meeting which shall not be treated as part of the business of
the meeting. Save as otherwise provided by these Articles, two members present in person or
by proxy and entitied to vote shall be a quorum for all purposes.

57. Procedure if Quorum Not Present

If within five minutes {or such longer time not exceeding one hour as the chairman of the
meeting may decide to wait} after the time appointed for the commencement of the meeting a
quorum is not present, the meeting, if convened by or upon the requisition of members, shall be
dissolved. In any other case it shall stand adjourned to such other day {being not less than
three nor more than 28 days later) and at such other time or place as may have been specified
for the purpose in the notice convening the meeting. Where no such arrangements have been
so specified, the meeting shall stand adjourned to such other day (being not less than ten nor
more than 28 days later) and at such other time or place as the chairman of the meeting may
decide and, in this case, the company shall give not iess than seven clear days' notice in writing
of the adjourned meeting. References in this Articte to notice in writing include the use of
electronic communications and publication on a web site in accordance with the Companies
Acts. If at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within five minutes after the time fixed
far the start of the meeting, the meeting is dissolved.

58. Meeting at more than one venue

The directors of the company may from time to time make such arrangements as they shall in
their absolute discretion consider to be appropriate for the purpose of controlling or regulating
altendance at any general meeting, and the entitlement of any member or proxy to attend any
general meeting shall be subject to any such arrangements as aforesaid which may from time to
time have been notified to members. In any case where such arrangements apply or are to
apply, the directors may specify that the meeting shall be held at the place where the chairman
of the meeting will preside (the “Principal Venue™) and may make arrangements for
simultaneous attendance and participation by members and their proxies at another venue or
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venues in such manner as the directors may determine, provided always that all persons
attending at each such venue (including the Principal Venue) shall be able to see and hear and
be seen and be heard by the persons attending at all other such venues. Such arrangements for
simultanecus attendance and participation may include arrangements for controlling or
regulating the level of attendance at any particular venue (whether by selection, the issue of
admission cards or otherwise) provided that they shall operate so that all members and their
proxies wishing to attend the relevant meeting are able to attend at one or cother of such venues.
For the purposes of all other provisions of these Articles, any such meeting shall be treated as
being held and taking place at the Principal Venue.

59, Security Arrangements

The board may direct that persons wishing to attend any general meeting should submit to such
searches or other security arrangements or restrictions as the board shall consider appropriate
in the circumstances and shall be entitled in its absolute discretion to, or to authorise some one
or mere persons who shall include a director or the secretary or the chairman of the meeting to,
refuse entry to, or to eject from, such general meeting any person who fails to submit to such
searches or otherwise to comply with such security arrangements or restrictions.

60. Chairman of General Meeting

The chairman (if any) of the board or, in his absence, the deputy chairman (if any) shall preside
as chairman at every general meeting. If more than one deputy chairman is present they shall
agree amongst themselves who is to take the chair or, if they cannot agree, the deputy
chairman who has been in office as a director longest shall take the chair. If there is no
chairman or deputy chairman, or if at any meeting neither the chairman nor any deputy
chairman is present within five minutes after the time appointed for the commencement of the
meeting, or if neither the chairman nor any deputy chairman is willing to act as chairman, the
directors present shall choose one of their number to act, or if one director only is present he
shall preside as chairman of the meeting if willing to act. If no director is present, or if each of
the directors present declines to take the chair, the persons present and entitled to vote shall
appoint one of their number to be chairman of the meeting. Nothing in these Articles shali
restrict or exclude any of the powers or rights of a chairman of a meeting which are given by
law.

61. Orderly Conduct

The chairman of the meeting shall take such action or give directions far such action to be taken
as he thinks fit to promote the orderly conduct of the business of the meeting as laid down in the
notice of the meeting. The chairman’s decision on points of order, matters of procedure or
arising incidentally from the business of the meeting shall be final as shall be his determination
as to whether any point ar matter is of such a nature.

62. Entitlement to Attend and Speak

Each director shall be entitled to attend and speak at any general meeting of the company. Any
proxy appointed by a member shall also be entitled to speak at any general meeting of the
company. The chairman of the meeting may invite any person to attend and speak at any
general meeting of the company where he considers that this will assist in the deliberations of
the meeting.
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63. Adjournments

The chairman of the meeting may at any time without the consent of the meeting adjourn any
meeting (whether or not it has commenced or a quorum is present) either sine die or to another
time or place where it appears to him that (a) the members entitled to vote and wishing to attend
cannot be conveniently accommodated in the place appointed for the meeting (b) the conduct of
persons present prevents or is likely to prevent the orderly continuation of business or (¢) an
adjournment is otherwise necessary so that the business of the meeting may be properly
conducted. In addition, the chairman of the meeting may at any time with the consent of any
meeting at which a quorum is present (and shall if so directed by the meeting) adjourn the
meeting either sine die or to another time or place. When a meeting is adjourned sine die the
time and place for the adjourned meeting shall be fixed by the board. No business shall be
transacted at any adjourned meeting except business which might properly have been
transacted at the meeting had the adjournment not taken place. Any meeting may be adjourned
more than once.

64, Notice of Adjournment

When a meeting is adjourned for three months or more, or sine die, notice of the adjourned
meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting. Except where these Articles
otherwise require, it shall not be necessary to give any notice of an adjourned meeting or of the
business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

Amendments
65. Amendments to Resolutions

In the case of a resolution duly proposed as a special resolution no amendment thereto (other
than an amendment to correct a patent error) may be considered or voted upon and in the case
of a resolution duly proposed as an ordinary resolution no amendment thereto (other than an
amendment to correct a patent error) may be considered or voted upon unless either at least 48
hours prior to the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which such
ordinary resolution is to be proposed notice in writing of the terms of the amendment and
intention to move the same has been lodged at the office or the chairman of the meeting in his
absolute discretion decides that it may be considered or voted upon. With the consent of the
chairman of the meeting, an amendment may be withdrawn by its proposer before it is put to the
vote.

66. Amendments Ruled Out of Order
If an amendment shall be proposed to any resolution under consideration but shall be ruled out
of order by the chairman of the meeting the proceedings on the substantive resolution shall not
be invalidated by any error in such ruling.

Voting

67. Votes of Members

Subject to any special terms as to voting upon which any shares may be issued or may at the
relevant time be held and to any other provisions of these Articles, on a show of hands every
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member who is present in person at a general meeting of the company shall have one vote and
every proxy appointed by a member and present at a general meeting of the company shall
have one vote, A proxy shall not have more than one vote on a show of hands even if he is also
a member or is a proxy for more than one member. On a poll every member who is present in
person or by proxy shall, subject to any special terms as to voting upon which any shares may
be issued or may at the relevant time be held and to any other provisions of these Articles, have
ane vote for every share of which he is the holder.

68. Method of Voting

(A) At any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a
show of hands unless (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands) a
poll is demanded. Without prejudice to the ather provisions of this Article, the chairman
may, in his absolute discretion, demand a poll on all or some of the resolutions put to
the vote of the meeting before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or
on the withdrawal of any other demand for a poll. Subject to the Companies Acts and
paragraph (C} of this Article, a poll may be demanded by:-

(i) the chairman of the meeting;
(i)  notless than five members having the right to vote on the resolution;

(iiy a member or members representing not less than one-tenth of the total
voting rights of all the members having the right to vote on the resolution
{excluding any voting rights attached to any shares held as treasury
shares); or

(iv) amember or members holding shares conferring a right to vote on the
resolution, being shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up
equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the
shares conferring that right (excluding any shares conferring a right to
vote on the resolution which are held as treasury shares).

(B) Unless a poll is duly demanded (and the demand is not subsequently withdrawn), a
declaration by the chairman that the resolution has been carried, or carried by a
particular majority, or lost or not carried by a particular majority, and an entry to that
effect in the minutes of the meeting, is conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of
the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against the resolution.

(C) A poll is not allowed on a vote to elect a chairman of a meeting. Nor is a polf allowed on
a vote to adjourn a meeting, unless the chairman of the meeting demands a poll.

69, Procedure if Poll Demanded

If a poll is properly demanded it shall be taken in such manner as the chairman of the meeting
shall direct. The result of the poll shall be deemed to be the resalution of the meeting at which
the poll was demanded.
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70. When Poll to be Taken

A poll demanded on any other question shall be taken either forthwith or on such date (being not
later than 30 days after the date of the demand) and at such time and place as the chairman of
the meeting shall direct. It shall not be necessary (unless the chairman of the meeting
otherwise directs) for notice to be given of a poil.

71. Continuance of Other Business after Poll Demand

The demand for a poll (other than on the election of a chairman of the meeting or on a question
of adjournment) shall not prevent the continuance of a meeting for the transaction of any
business other than the question on which the poll was demanded, and it may be withdrawn
with the consent of the chairman of the meeting at any time before the close of the meeting or
the taking of the poll, whichever is the earlier, and in that event shall not invalidate the result of a
show of hands declared before the demand was made.

72 Votes on a Poll

On a poll, a member may appeint more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion and if he
does he shall specify the number of shares in respect of which each proxy is entitled to exercise
the related votes and shall ensure that no proxy is appointed to exercise the votes which any
other proxy has been appointed by that member to exercise. On a poll a member entitled to
more than one vote need not, if he votes, use all his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the
same way.

73. Casting Vote of Chairman

In the case of an equality of votes at a general meeting, whether on a show of hands oron a
poll, the chairman of the meeting shall be entitled to an additional or casting vote.

74. Votes of Joint Holders

In the case of joint holders of a share the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in
person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders and,
for this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
register in respect of the joint holding.

75. Voting on Behalf of Incapable Member

A member in respect of whom an order has been made by any competent court or official on the
ground that he is or may be suffering from mental disorder or is otherwise incapable of
managing his affairs may vote at any general meeting of the company or at any separate
general meeting of the holders of any class of shares in the company and may exercise any
other right conferred by membership in relation to general meetings by or through any person
authorised in such circumstances to do so on his behaif (and that person may vote on a poll by
proxy), provided that evidence to the satisfaction of the board of the authority of the person
claiming to exercise the right to vote or such other right has been received at the office (or at
such other place as may be specified in accordance with these Articles for the receipt of
appointments of a proxy in writing which are not electronic communications) not later than the
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last time at which such an appointment should have been received in order to be valid for use at
that meeting or on the holding of that poll.

76. No Right to Vote where Sums Overdue on Shares

No member shall, unless the board olherwise decides, be entitled in respect of any share held
by him to attend or vote (either personally or by proxy) at any general meeting of the company
or at any separate general meeting of the holders of any class of shares in the company or upon
a poll or to exercise any other right conferred by membership in relation to general meetings or
polls unless all calls or other sums presently payable by him in respect of that share have been
paid.

77. Objections or Errors in Voting
If:-
(i) any objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter, or

(ii) any votes have been counted which ought not to have been counted or which
might have been rejected, or

iii) any votes are not counted which ought to have been counted,

the obiection or error shall not vitiate the decision of the meeting or adjourned meeting or poll on
any resolution unless it is raised or peinted out at the meeting or, as the case may be, the
adjourned meeting or poll at which the vote objected to is given or tendered or at which the error
occurs. Any cbjection or error shall be referred to the chairman of the meeting and shall only
vitiate the decision of the meeting an any resclution if the chairman decides that the same may
have affected the decision of the meeting. The decision of the chairman on such matters shall
be conclusive.

Proxies
78. Appointment of Proxies

(A) The appointment of a proxy shall be in writing signed by the appointor or his duly
authorised attorney or, if the appointor is a corporation, shall either be executed under
its seal or signed by an officer, attorney or other person authorised to sign it. In this
Article references to in writing include the use of electronic communications subject to
such terms and conditions as the board may decide.

(B) A member may appoint more than one proxy in relation to a meeting provided that each
proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by
him. References in the Articles to an appointment of proxy include references to an
appointment of muitiple proxies

(€) Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and the requirements of the Listing
Rules, the board may at the expense of the company send or make available
appointments of proxy or invitations to appoint a proxy to the members by post or by
electronic means or otherwise (with or without provision for their return prepaid) for use
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79.

at any general meeting or at any separate meeting of the holders of any class of shares,
either in blank or nominating in the alternative any one or more of the directors or any
other person. If for the purpose of any meeting appointments of proxy or invitations to
appoint as proxy a person or one of a number of persons specified in the invitation are
issued at the company's expense, they shail be issued to all {and not to some only) of
the members entitled to be sent a notice of the meeting and to vote at it. The accidental
omission or the failure, due to circumstances beyond the company's contral, to send or
make available such an appointment of proxy or give such an invitation to, or the non-
receipt thereof, by any member entitled to attend and vote at a meeting shall not
invalidate the proceedings at that meeting.

Receipt of Proxies

The appointment of a proxy must:-

(i) in the case of an appointment which is not contained in an electronic
communication, be received at the office (or such other place in the United
Kingdom as may be specified in or by way of note to the notice convening the
meeting or in or by way of note to any notice of any adjournment or, in either
case, in any accompanying document) not less than 48 hours {or such shorter
time as the board may determine) before the time appointed for holding the
meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the appointment
proposes to vote together with (if required by the board) any authority under
which it is made or a copy of the authority, certified notarially or in accordance
with the Powers of Attorney Act 1971 or in some other manner approved by the
board;

(i) in the case of an appointment contained in an electronic communication, where
an address has been specified for the purpose of receiving electronic
communications in or by way of note to the notice convening the meeting or in
or by way of note to any notice of any adjournment or, in either case, in any
accompanying decument or in any electronic communication issued by or on
behaif of the company, be received at such address not less than 48 hours (or
such shorter time as the board may determine) before the time appointed for
holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the perscn named in the
appointment proposes to vote. Any authority pursuant to which an appointment
contained in an electronic communication is made or a copy of the authority,
certified notarially or in accordance with the Powers of Attorney Act 1971 or in
some other manner approved by the board, must, if required by the board, be
received at the office (or such other place in the United Kingdom as may be
specified in the notice convening the meeting or in any notice of any
adjournment or, in either case, in any accompanying document) not less than
48 hours {or such shorter time as the board may determine) before the time
appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person
named in the appointment proposes to vote; or

iy in the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after it was demanded, be
received as aforesaid after the poll has been demanded and not less than 24
hours (or such shorter time as the board may determine) before the time
appointed for the taking of the poll; or
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{iv) in the case of a poll not taken immediately but taken not more than 48 hours
after it was demanded, be delivered at the meeting at which the poll was
demanded to the chairman or to the secretary or to any director.

and an appointment of a proxy which is not or in respect of which the authority or copy thereof is
not, received in a manner so permitted shall be invalid. When two or more valid but differing
appointments of a proxy are received in respect of the same share for use at the same meeting
or poll, the one which is last received (regardless of its date or of the date of its signature) shali
be treated as replacing and revoking the others as regards that share; if the company is unable
to determine which was last received, none of them shall be treated as valid in respect of that
share. The appointment of a proxy shall not preciude a member from attending and voting in
person at the meeting or poll concerned. The proceedings at a general meeting shall not be
invalidated where an appointment of a proxy in respect of that meeting is delivered in a manner
permitted by these Articles by electronic communication, but because of a technical prablem it
cannot be read by the recipient.

80. Maximum Validity of Proxy

No appointment of a proxy shall be valid after 12 months have elapsed from the date of its
receipt save that, unless the contrary is stated in i, an appointment of a proxy shall be valid for
use at an adjourned meeting or a poll after a meeting or an adjourned meeting even after 12
months, if it was valid for the original meeting.

81. Form of Proxy

The appointment of a proxy shall be in any usual form or in such other form as the hoard may
approve. The appointment of a proxy shall be deemed to confer authority to demand or join in
demanding a poll and to vote on any amendment of a resolution put to, or any other business
which may properly come before, the meeting for which it is given as the proxy thinks fit. The
appeintment of a proxy shall, unless the contrary is stated in it, be valid as well for any
adjournment of the meeting as for the meeting to which it relates.

82, Cancellation of Proxy’s Authority

A vote cast or poll demanded by a proxy is valid despite the previous termination of the authority
of a person to act as a proxy unless notice of such termination shall have been received by the
company at the office, or at such other place or address at which an appointment of proxy may
be duly received or delivered, not later than the time at which an appointment of proxy should
have been received or delivered in order for it to be valid for use at the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the vote is cast or the poll demanded or (in the case of a poll taken otherwise
than at or on the same day as the meeting or adjourned meeting) for use in relation to the poli at
which the vote is cast.

Appointment, Retirement and Removal of Directors
83. Number of Directors
Unless otherwise determined by eordinary resolution of the company, the directors (disregarding

alternate directors) shall be not less than two nor more than ten in number.
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84. Directors’ Shareholding Qualification
No shareholding qualification for directors shall be required.
85. Power of Company to Elect Directors

Subject to the provisions of these Articles, the company may by ordinary resolution elect any
person who is willing to act to be a director, either to fill a vacancy or as an addition to the
existing board, but so that the total number of directors shall not at any time exceed any
maximum number fixed by or in accordance with these Articles.

86. Power of Board to Appoint Directors

Subject to the provisions of these Articles, the board may appoint any person who is willing to
act to be a director, either to fill a vacancy or as an addition to the existing board, but so that the
total number of directors shall not at any time exceed any maximum number fixed by or in
accordance with these Articles. Any director so appointed shall retire at the next annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for election but shall not be taken into account in determining
the directors or the number of directors who are to retire by rotation at that meeting.

87. Number to Retire by Rotation

At every annual general meeting a minimum of one-third of the directors shall retire from office,
save that if their number is not three or any multiple of three then the minimum number required
to retire shall be the number nearest to and less than one-third. If there are fewer than three
directors they shali all retire.

88. Identity of Directors to Retire

(A) Subject to Article 88(B), at each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors who
are subject to retirement by rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office provided that if
there are fewer than three directors who are subject to retirement by rotation, one shall
retire from office

(B) If any one or more directors:

(i)  were last appointed or reappointed three years or more prior to the
meeting;

(i)  were last appointed or reappointed at the third immediately preceding
annual general meeting; or

(i)  at the time of the meeting will have served more than eight years as a
non-executive director of the company {excluding as the chairman of the

board),

he or they shall retire from office and shall be counted in obtaining the number
required to retire at the meeting, provided that the number of directors required
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to retire under Article 88{A) shall be increased to the extent necessary to
comply with this Article,

(C) Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and these Articles, the directors to
retire by rotation at an annual general meeting include, so far as necessary to obtain the
number required, first, a director who wishes to retire and not offer himself for
reappointment, and, second, those directors who have been longest in office since their
last appointment or reappointment. As between two or more who have been in office an
equal length of time, the director to retire shall, in default of agreement between them,
be determined by lot. The directors to retire on each occasion (both as to number and
identity) shall be determined on the basis of the compaosition of the board at the start of
business on the date of the notice convening the annual general meeting, disregarding
a change in the number or identity of the directors after that time but before the close of
the meeting.

89, Filling Vacancies

Subject to the provisions of these Articles, at the meeting at which a director retires the
company can pass an ordinary resolution to re-elect the director or to elect some other eligible
person in his place.

90. Power of Removal by Special Resolution

In addition to any power of removal conferred by the Companies Acts, the company may by
special resolution remove any director before the expiration of his period of office and may
(subject to these Articles) by ordinary resolution appoint another person who is willing to act to
be a director in his place.

91. Persons Eligible as Directors

No person other than a director retiring at the meeting {whether by rotation or otherwise) shall
be elected or re-elected a director at any general meeting unless:-

(i) he is recommended by the board; or

)] not less than seven nor more than 42 days before the day appeinted for the
meeting, notice in writing by a member qualified to vote at the meeting (not
being the person to be proposed) has been given to the secretary of the
intention to propose that person for election or re-election together with
confirmation in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected or re-
elected.

92. Position of Retiring Directors
A director who retires (whether by rotation or otherwise) at an annual general meeting may, if

willing to continue to act, be elected or re-elected. If he is elected or re-elected he is treated as
continuing in office throughout. If he is not elected or re-elected, he shali retain office until the
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end of the meeting or (if earlier) when a resolution is passed to elect someone in his place or
when a resolution to elect or re-elect the director is put to the meeting and lost.

93. Vacation of Office by Directors

Without prejudice to the provisions for retirement by rotation or otherwise contained in these
Articles, the office of a director shall be vacated if;-

(i) he resigns his office by notice in writing delivered to or received at the office or
tendered at a meeting of the board; or

ii) by notice in writing delivered to or received at the office or tendered at a
meeting of the board he offers to resign and the board resolves to accept such
offer; or

(iii) by notice in writing delivered to or received at the office or tendered at a
meeting of the board, his resignation is requested by all of the other directors
and all of the other directors are not less than three in number; or

{iv) he is or has been suffering from mental ill health or beceomes a patient for the
purpose of any statute relating to mental health and the board resolves that his
office is vacated; or

{v) he is absent without the permission of the board from meetings of the board
{whether or not an alternate director appeinted by him attends) for six
consecutive months and the board resolves that his office is vacated; or

(vi) he becomes bankrupt or compounds with his creditors generally; or
(vii) he is prohibited by law from being a director; or

(vii)  he ceases to be a director by virtue of the Companies Acts or is removed from
office pursuant to these Articles.

If the office of a director is vacated for any reason, he shall cease to be a member of
any committee or sub-committee of the board. In this Article references to in writing
include the use of electronic communications subject to such terms and conditions as
the board may decide.

94, Alternate Directors

(A) Each director may appoint any person to be his alternate and may at his discretion
remove an alternate director so appointed. If the alternate director is not already a
director, the appointment, unless previously approved by the board, shall have effect
only upon and subject to its being so approved. Any appointment or removal of an
alternate director shall be effected by notice in writing signed by the appointor and
delivered to or received at the office or tendered at a meeting of the board, or in any
other manner approved by the board. An alternate director shall be entitled to receive
notice of all meetings of the board or of committees of the board of which his appointor
is a member. It shall not be necessary to give notice of such a meeting to an alternate

LONDOCS\2807019.01 29




director who is absent from the United Kingdom. He shall also be entitled to attend and
vote as a director at any such meeting at which the director appointing him is not
personally present and at such meeting to exercise and discharge all the functions,
powers, rights and duties of his appointor as a director and for the purposes of the
proceedings at such meeting the provisions of these Articles shall apply as if he were a
director.

(B) Every person acting as an alternate director shall (except as regards power to appoint
an alternate and remuneration) be subject in all respects to the provisions of these
Articles relating to directors and shall during his appointment be an officer of the
company. An alternate director shall alone be responsible to the company for his acts
and defaults and shall not be deemed to be the agent of or for the director appointing
him. An alternate director may be paid expenses and shall be entitled to be indemnified
by the company to the same extent as if he were a director. An alternate director shall
not be entitled to receive from the company any fee in his capacity as an alternate
director but the company shall, if so requested in writing by the appointor, pay to the
alternate director any part of the fees or remuneration otherwise due to the appointor.

(©) A director or any other person may act as an alternate director to represent more than
one director. Every person acting as an alternate director shall have cne vote for each
director for whom he acts as alternate, in addition to his own vote if he is also a director
but he shall count as only one for the purposes of determining whether a querum is
present. Signature by an alternate director of any resolution in writing of the board or a
committee of the board shall, unless the notice of his appointment provides to the
contrary, be as effective as signature by his appointor.

(D) An alternate director shall cease to be an alternate director:-

(i) if his appointor ceases for any reason to be a director except that, if at
any meeting any director retires by rofation or otherwise but is
re-elected at the same meeting, any appointment made by him
pursuant to this Article which was in force immediately before his
retirement shall remain in force as though he had not retired; or

(i)  onthe happening of any event which if he were a director would cause
him to vacate his office as director; or

(iiiy  if he resigns his office by notice in writing to the company.

(E) In this Article references to in writing include the use of electronic communications
subject to such terms and conditions as the board may decide.

95. Executive Directors

The board or any committee authorised by the board may from time to time appoint one or more
directors to hold any employment or executive office with the company for such period (subject
to the provisions of the Companies Acts) and upon such other terms as the board or any
committee authorised by the board may in its discretion decide and may revoke or terminate
any appointment so made. Any revocation or termination of the appointment shall be without
prejudice to any claim for damages that the director may have against the company or the
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company may have against the director for any breach of any contract of service between him
and the company which may be involved in the revocation or termination. A director so
appointed shall receive such remuneration (whether by way of salary, commission, participation
in profits or otherwise) as the board or any committee authorised by the board may decide, and
either in addition to or in lieu of his remuneration as a director.

Fees, Remuneration, Expenses and Pensions
96. Directors’ Fees

Each of the directors shall be paid a fee at such rate as may from time to time be determined by
the board provided that the aggregate of all fees so paid to directors {excluding amounts
payable under any other provision of these Articles) shall not exceed £5,000,000 per annum or
such higher amount as may from time to time be decided by ordinary resolution of the company.

97. Additional Remuneration

Any director who performs services which in the opinion of the board or any committee
authorised by the board go beyond the ordinary duties of a director may be paid such extra
remuneration (whether by way of salary, commission, participation in profits or otherwise) as the
board or any committee authorised by the board may in its discretion decide in addition to any
remuneration provided for by or pursuant to any other Article.

98.  Expenses

Each director may be paid his reasonable travelling, hotel and incidental expenses of attending
and returning from meetings of the board or committees of the board or general meetings of the
company or any other meeting which as a director he is entitled to attend and shall be paid all
other costs and expenses properly and reasonably incurred by him in the conduct of the
company’s business or in the discharge of his duties as a director. The company may also fund
a director's expenditure on defending proceedings (including investigations by or action
proposed to be taken by any regulatory authority) or in connection with any application under
the Companies Acts and may do anything to enable a director to avoid incurring such
expenditure all as provided in the Companies Acts.

99, Pensions and Gratuities for Directors

The board or any committee authorised by the board may exercise all the powers of the
company to provide benefits, either by the payment of gratuities or pensions or by insurance or
in any other manner whether similar to the foregoing or not, for any director or former director or
the relations, or dependants of, or persons connected to, any director or former director
provided that no benefits (except such as may be provided for by any other Article) may be
granted to or in respect of a director or former director who has not been employed by, or held
an executive office or place of profit under, the company or any body corporate which is or has
been its subsidiary undertaking or any predecessor in business of the company or any such
body corporate without the approval of an ordinary resolution of the company. No director or
former director shall be accountable to the company or the members for any benefit provided
pursuant to this Article and the receipt of any such benefit shall not disqualify any person from
being or becoming a director of the company.
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Directors’ Interests
Permitted Interests and Voting

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and of paragraph (J) of this Article, no
director or proposed or intending director shall be disqualified by his office from
contracting with the company, either with regard to his tenure of any office or place of
profit or as vendor, purchaser or in any other manner whatever, nor shall any contract in
which any director is in any way interested be liable to be avoided, nor shall any director
who is so interested be liable to account to the company or the members for any
remuneration, profit or other benefit realised by the contract by reason of the director
holding that office or of the fiduciary relationship thereby established.

A director may hold any other office or place of profit with the company {except that of
auditor) in conjunction with his office of director for such period (subject to the
provisions of the Companies Acts) and upon such other terms as the board may decide,
and may be paid such extra remuneration for so doing (whether by way of salary,
commission, participation in profits or otherwise) as the board or any committee
authorised by the board may decide, and either in addition to or in lieu of any
remuneration provided for by or pursuant to any other Article.

A director may be or become a director or other officer of, or otherwise interested in, or
contract with any company promoted by the company or in which the company may be
interested or as regards which it has any power of appointment, and shall not be liable
to account to the company or the members for any remuneration, profit or other benefit
received by him as a director or officer of or from his interest in or contract with the other
company nor shall any such contract be liable to be avoided. Subject to the Companies
Acts and these Articles, the board may also cause any voting power conferred by the
shares in any other company held or owned by the company or any power of
appointment to be exercised in such manner in all respects as it thinks fit, including the
exercise of the voting power aor power of appointment in favour of the appointment of the
directors or any of them as directors or officers of the other company, or in favour of the
payment of remuneration to the directors or officers of the other company. Subject to
the Companies Acts and these Articles, a director may also vote on and be counted in
the quorum in relation to any of such matters.

A director may act by himself or his firm in a professicnal capacity for the company
(otherwise than as auditor) and he or his firm shall be entitled to remuneration for
professional services as if he were not a director.

A director shall not vote on or be counted in the quorum in relation to any resolution of
the board concerning his own appointment, or the settlement or variation of the terms or
the termination of his own appointment, as the holder of any office ar place of profit with
the company or any other company in which the company is interested but, where
proposals are under consideration concerning the appointment, or the settlement or
vartation of the terms or the termination of the appointment, of two or more directors to
offices or places of profit with the company or any other company in which the company
is interested, a separate resolution may be put in relation to each director and in that
case each of the directors concerned shall be entitled to vote and be counted in the
quorum in respect of each resolution unless it concerns his own appointment or the
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settlement or variation of the terms or the termination of his own appointment or the
appointment of another director to an office or place of profit with a company in which
the company is interested and the director seeking to vote or be counted in the quorum
owns one per cent. or more of it.

(F) Save as otherwise provided by these Articles, a director shall not vote on, or be counted
in the quorum in relation to, any resolution of the board in respect of any contract in
which he has an interest which (taken together with any interest of any person
connected with him) is to his knowledge a material interest and, if he shall do so, his
vote shall not be counted, but this prohibition shall not apply to any resolution where
that material interest arises only from one or more of the following matters:-

(i) the giving to him of any guarantee, indemnity or security in respect of
money lent or obligations undertaken by him or by any other person at
the request of or for the benefit of the company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings;

(ii) the giving to a third party of any guarantee, indemnity or security in
respect of a debt or obligation of the company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings for which he himself has assumed responsibility in whole
or in part under a guarantee or indemnity or by the giving of security;

(iii) the giving to him of any other indemnity where all other directors are
being offered indemnities on substantially the same terms;

(iv) the funding by the company of his expenditure on defending
proceedings or the doing by the company of anything to enable him to
avoid incurring such expenditure where all other directors are being
offered substantially the same arrangements;

(v) where the company or any of its subsidiary undertakings is offering
securities in which offer the director is or may be entitled to participate
as a holder of securities or in the underwriting or sub-underwriting of
which the director is to participate;

(vi) any contract in which he is interested by virtue of his interest in shares
or debentures or other securities of the company or by reason of any
other interest in or through the company;

(vii) any contract concerning any other company (not being a company in
which the director owns one per cent. or more) in which he is interested
directly or indirectly whether as an officer, shareholder, creditor or
otherwise howsoever;

{vii)  any contract concerning the adoption, modification or operation of a
pension fund, superannuation or similar scheme or retirement, death or
disability benefits scheme or employees’' share scheme which refates
both to directors and employees of the company or of any of its
subsidiary undertakings and does not provide in respect of any director
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as such any privilege or advantage not accorded to the employees to
which the fund or scheme relates;

(ix) any contract for the benefit of employees of the company or of any of its
subsidiary undertakings under which he benefits in a similar manner to
the employees and which does not accord to any director as such any
privilege or advantage not accorded to the employees to whom the
contract relates; and

(x) any contract for the purchase or maintenance of insurance against any
liability for, or for the benefit of, any director or directors or for, or for the
benefit of, persons who include directors.

A company shall be deemed to be one in which a director owns one per cent. or more if
and so long as {but only if and so long as) he, taken together with any person
connected with him, is to his knowledge {either directly or indirectly) the holder of or
beneficially interested in one per cent. or more of any class of the equity share capital of
that company (calculated exclusive of any shares of that class in that company held as
treasury shares) or of the voting rights available to members of that company. In
relation to an alternate director, an interest of his appointor shall be treated as an
interest of the alternate director without prejudice to any interest which the alternate
director has otherwise.

Where a company in which a director owns one per cent. or more is materially
interested in a contract, he also shall be deemed materially interested in that contract.

If any question shall arise at any meeting of the board as to the materiality of the
interest of a director (other than the chairman of the meeting) or as to the entittement of
any director (other than the chairman of the meeting) to vote or be counted in the
quorum and the question is not resolved by his voluntarily agreeing to abstain from
voting or not to be counted in the quorum, the question shall be referred to the chairman
of the meeting and his ruling in relation to the director concerned shall be conclusive
except in a case where the nature or extent of his interest (so far as it is known to him)
has not been fairly disclosed to the board. If any question shall arise in respect of the
chairman of the meeting, the question shall be decided by a resolution of the board (for
which purpose the chairman of the meeting shall be counted in the quorum but shall not
vote on the matter) and the resolution shall be conclusive except in a case where the
nature or extent of the interest of the chairman of the meeting (so far as it is known to
him) has not been fairly disclosed to the board.

A director who to his knowledge is in any way, whether directly or indirectly, interested in
a contract with the company shall declare the nature of his interest at the meeting of the
board at which the question of entering into the contract is first taken into consideration,
if he knows his interest then exists, or in any other case at the first meeting of the board
after he knows that he is or has become s0 interested. For the purposes of this Article,
a general notice to the board by a director to the effect that (a) he is a member of a
specified company or firm and is to be regarded as interested in any contract which may
after the date of the notice be made with that company or firm or (b) he is to be
regarded as interested in any contract which may after the date of the notice be made
with a specified person who is connected with him, shall be deemed to be a sufficient
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declaration of interest under this Article in relation to any such contract; provided that no
such notice shall be effective unless either it is given at a meeting of the board or the
director takes reasonable steps to secure that it is brought up and read at the next
board meeting after it is given.

(K) References in this Article to a contract include references to any proposed contract and
to any transaction or arrangement whether or not constituting a contract.

(L) Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the company may by ordinary
resolution suspend or relax the provisions of this Article to any extent or ratify any
cantract not properly authorised by reason of a contravention of this Article.

Powers and Duties of the Board
101. General Powers of Company Vested in Board

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the memorandum of assaociation of the
company and these Articles and to any directions given by the company in general meeting by
special resolution, the business of the company shall be managed by the board which may
exercise all the powers of the company whether relating to the management of the business of
the company or not. No alteration of the memorandum of association or these Articles and no
special resolution shall invalidate any prior act of the board which would have been valid if that
alteration had not been made or that resolution had not been passed. The powers given by this
Article shall not be limited by any special power given to the board by any other Article,

102. Borrowing Powers

{A) The board may exercise all the powers of the company to borrow money and to
mortgage or charge all or any part of the undertaking, property and assets (present and
future) and uncalled capital of the company, to issue debentures and other securities
and to give security, whether outright or as collateral security, for any debt, liability or
obligation of the company or of any third party.

(B) The board shall restrict the borrowings of the company and exercise all voting and other
rights or powers of control exercisable by the company in relation to its subsidiary
undertakings (if any) so as to secure (but as regards subsidiary undertakings only in so
far as by the exercise of the rights or powers of control the board can secure) that the
aggregate principal amount from time to time outstanding of all borrowings by the group
(exclusive of borrowings owing by one member of the group to another member of the
group) shall not at any time without the previous sanction of an ordinary resolution of
the company exceed an amount equal to three times the adjusted capital and reserves.

For the purposes of this paragraph of this Article:-

(i) “the adjusted capital and reserves” means the aggregate from time to
time of:-

(a) the amount paid up on the issued share capital of the company
(including any shares held as treasury shares},
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(ii)
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(b) the amount standing to the credit of the reserves of the
company including any share premium account, capital
redemption reserve and credit balance on profit and loss
account or retained earnings,

all as shown by the then latest audited balance sheet but after

{c) deducting from the aggregate any debit balance on profit and
loss account or retained earnings subsisting at the date of that
audited balance sheet except to the extent that a deduction has
already been made on that account,

{d) making such adjustments as may be appropriate to reflect any
variation in the amount of the paid up share capital, share
premium account, capital redemption reserve or other reserve
since the date of the audited balance sheet; and

(e) excluding the effect on the reserves of the company of any
retirement benefits scheme surplus or deficit which would
otherwise be reflected in accordance with any applicable
accounting standards;

“borrowings” include not only borrowings but also the following except in
so far as otherwise taken into account:-

(a) the nominal amount of any issued and paid up share capital
(other than equity share capital) of any subsidiary undertaking
beneficially owned otherwise than by a member of the group,

(b} the nominal amount of any other issued and paid up share
capital and the principal amount of any debentures or borrowed
moneys which is not at the relevant time beneficially owned by
a member of the group, the redemption or repayment of which
is the subject of a guarantee or indemnity by a member of the
group or which any member of the group may be required to
purchase,

(c) the outstanding amount raised by acceptances by any bank or
accepting house under any acceptance credit opened on behalf
of and in favour of any member of the group,

(d) the principal amount of any debenture (whether secured or
unsecured) of a member of the group beneficially owned
otherwise than by a member of the group,

(e) any fixed or minimum premium payable by a member of the

group on final repayment of any borrowing or deemed
borrowing, and
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(iii)
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H the minority proportion of moneys borrowed by a member of the
group and owing to a partly-owned subsidiary undertaking,

but do not include:-

(9) borrowings incurred by any member of the group for the
purpose of repaying within six months of the borrowing the
whole or any part of any borrowings of that or any other
member of the group outstanding at the relevant time, pending
their application for that purpose within that period,

(h) borrowings incurred by any member of the group for the
purpose of financing any contract in respect of which any part of
the price receivable under the contract by that or any other
member of the group is guaranteed or insured by the Export
Credits Guarantee Department or by any other governmental
department or agency fulfilling a similar function, up to an
amount equal to that part of the price receivable under the
contract which is 50 guaranteed or insured,

(i) barrowings of, or amounts secured on assets of, an undertaking
which became a subsidiary undertaking of the company after
the date as at which the latest audited balance sheet was
prepared, to the extent their amount does not exceed their
amount immediately after it became such a subsidiary
undertaking, or

() the minority proportion of moneys borrowed by a partly-owned
subsidiary undertaking and not owing to another member of the

group,

when the aggregate principal amount of borrowings required to be
taken into account on any particular date is being ascertained, any
particular borrowing then outstanding which is denominated or
repayable in a currency other than sterling shall be notionally converted
into sterling at the rate of exchange prevailing in London on the last
business day before that date or, if it would result in a lower figure, at
the rate of exchange prevailing in London on the last business day six
months before that date and so that for these purposes the rate of
exchange shall be taken as the spot rate in London recommended by a
London clearing bank, selected by the board, as being the most
appropriate rate for the purchase by the company of the currency in
guestion for sterling on the day in question;

if the amount of adjusted capital and reserves is being calculated in
connection with a fransaction involving a company becoming or ceasing
to be a member of the group, the amount is to be calculated as if the
transaction had already occurred;
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103.

(A)

(8)

(C)

(v “audited balance sheet” means the audited balance sheet of the
company prepared for the purposes of the Companies Acts for a
financial year unless an audited consolidated balance sheet dealing
with the state of affairs of the company and its subsidiary undertakings
required to be deait with in group accounts has been prepared for those
purposes for the same financial year, in which case it means that
audited consolidated balance sheet, and in that case all references to
reserves shall be deemed to be references to consolidated reserves;

{vi) the company may from time to time change the accounting convention
on which the audited balance sheet is based provided that any new
convention adopted complies with the requirements of the Companies
Acts; if the company should prepare its main audited balance sheet on
the basis of one convention, but a supplementary audited balance
sheet on the basis of another, the main audited balance sheet shall be
taken as the audited balance sheet;

{vii) “the group™ means the company and its subsidiary undertakings (if any);
(vii)  “the minority proportion” means a proportion equal to the proportion of

the issued share capital of a partly-owned subsidiary undertaking which
is not attributable to a member of the group; and

(ix) a certificate or report by the auditors as to the amount of the adjusted
capital and reserves or the amount of any borrowings or to the effect
that the limit imposed by this Article has not been or will not be
exceeded at any particular time or times shall be conclusive evidence of
that amount or of that fact.

Agents

The board can appoint anyone as the company’s attorney by granting a power of
attorney or by authorising them in some other way. Attorneys can either be appointed
directly by the board or the board can give someone else the power to select attorneys.
The board or the persons who are authorised by it to select attorneys can decide on the
purposes, powers, authorities and discretions of attorneys. But they cannot give an
attorney any power, authority or discretion which the board does not have under these
Articles.

The board can decide how long a power of attorney will last for and attach any
conditions to it. The power of attorney can include any provisions which the board
decides on for the protection and convenience of anybody dealing with the attorney.
The power of attorney can allow the attorney to grant any or all of his power, authority or
discretion to any other person.

The board can:-

{i) delegate any of its authority, powers or discretions to any manager or
agent of the company;
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(i)  allow managers or agents to delegate to another person;
(i) remove any people it has appointed in any of these ways; and

(iv) cancel or change anything that it has delegated, althcugh this will not
affect anybody who acts in good faith who has not had any notice of
_any cancellation or change.

Any appointment or delegation by the board which is referred to in this Article
can be on any conditions decided on by the board.

(D) The ability of the board to delegate under this Article applies to alt its powers and is not
limited because certain Articles refer to powers being exercised by the board or by a
committee authorised by the board while other Articles do not.

104. Delegation to Individual Directors

The board may entrust to and confer upon any director any of its powers, authorities and
discretions (with power to sub-delegate) upon such terms and conditions and with such
restrictions as it thinks fit, and either collaterally with, or to the exclusion of, its own powers,
authorities and discretions and may from time to time revoke or vary all or any of them but no
person dealing in good faith and without notice of the revocation or variation shall be affected by
it. The power to delegate contained in this Article shall be effective in relation to the powers,
authorities and discretions of the board generally and shall not be limited by the fact that in
certain Articles, but not in others, express reference is made to particular powers, authorities or
discretions being exercised by the board or by a committee authorised by the board.

105. Official Seals

The company may exercise all the powers conferred by the Companies Acts with regard to
having official seals and those powers shall be vested in the board.

106. Registers

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the company may keep an overseas or local or
other register in any place and the board may make and vary such regulations as it may think fit
respecting the keeping of the register.

107.  Provision for Employees

The board may exercise any power conferred by the Companies Acts to make provision for the
benefit of persons employed or formerly employed by the company or any of its subsidiaries in

connection with the cessation or the transfer to any person of the whole or part of the
undertaking of the company or that subsidiary.
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Proceedings of the Board
108. Board Mestings

The board may meet for the despatch of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate its meetings
as it thinks fit. A director at any time may, and the secretary on the requisition of a director at
any time shall, summon a board meeting.

109. Notice of Board Meetings

Notice of a board meeting shall be deemed to be properly given to a director if it is given to him
personally or by word of mouth or sent in writing to him at his last known address or any other
address given by him to the company for this purpose. A director absent or intending to be
absent from the United Kingdom may request the board that notices of board meetings shall
during his absence be sent in writing to him at an address given by him to the company for this
purpose, but such notices need not be given any earlier than notices given to directors not so
absent and if no request is made to the board it shall not be necessary to give notice of a board
meeting to any director who is absent from the United Kingdom at the relevant time. A director
may waive notice of any meeting either prospectively or retrospectively. In this Article references
to in writing include the use of electronic communications subject to such terms and conditions
as the board may decide.

110. Quorum

The quorum necessary for the transaction of the business of the board may be fixed by the
board and, unless so fixed at any other number, shall be two. Subject to the provisions of these
Articles, any director who ceases to be a director at a board meeting may continue to be present
and to act as a director and be counted in the quorum until the termination of the board meeting
if no other director objects and if otherwise a quorum of directors would not be present.

111.  Directors below Minimum through Vacancies

The continuing directors or a sole continuing director may act notwithstanding any vacancy in
their number but, if and so long as the number of directors is reduced below the minimum
number fixed by or in accordance with these Articles or is below the number fixed by or in
accordance with these Articles as the quorum or there is only one continuing director, the
continuing directors or director may act for the purpose of filling vacancies or of summeoning
general meetings of the company but not for any other purpose. If there are no directors or
director able or willing to act, then any two members (excluding any member holding shares as
treasury shares) may summon a general meeting for the purpose of appeinting directors.

112, Appointment of Chairman

The board may appoint a director to be the chairman or a deputy chairman of the board, and
may at any time remove him from that office. The chairman of the board or failing him a deputy
chairman shall act as chairman at every meeting of the board. If more than one deputy
chairman is present they shall agree amongst themselves who is to take the chair or, if they
cannot agree, the deputy chairman who has been in office as a director longest shall take the
chair. Butif no chairman of the board ar deputy chairman is appointed, or if at any meeting
neither the chairman nor any deputy chairman is present within five minutes after the time
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appointed for holding the meeting, the directors present may choose one of their number to be
chairman of the meeting. References in these Articles to a deputy chairman include, if no one
has been appointed to that title, a person appointed to a position with another title which the
board designates as equivalent to the position of deputy chairman.

113. Competence of Meetings

A meeting of the board at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all the
powers, authorities and discretions vested in or exercisable by the board.

114. Voting

Questions arising at any meeting shall be determined by a majority of votes. In the case of an
equality of votes the chairman of the meeting shall have a second or casting vote.

115. Delegation to Committees

(A) The board may delegate any of its powers, authorities and discretions (with power to
sub-delegate) to any committee, consisting of such person or persons (whether a
member or members of its body or not) as it thinks fit, provided that the majority of
persons on any committee or sub-committee must be directors. References in these
Articles to committees include sub-committees permitted under this Article.

{B) Any committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers, authorities and
discretions so delegated, conform to any regulations which may be imposed on it by the
board. The meetings and proceedings of any committee consisting of two or more
members shall be governed by the provisions contained in these Articles for regulating
the meetings and proceedings of the board so far as the same are applicable and are
not superseded by any regulations imposed by the board.

{C) The power to delegate contained in this Article shall be effective in relation to the
powers, authorities and discretions of the board generally and shall not be limited by the
fact that in certain Articles, but not in others, express reference is made to particular
powers, authorities or discretions being exercised by the board or by a committee
authorised by the board.

116.  Participation in Meetings by Telephone

All or any of the members of the board may participate in a meeting of the board by means of a
conference telephone or any communication equipment which allows all persons participating in
the meeting to speak to and hear each other. A person so participating shall be deemed to be
present in person at the meeting and shall be entitled to vote or be counted in a quorum
accordingly. Such a meeting shall be deemed to take place where the largest group of those
participating is assembled or, if there is no such group, where the chairman of the meeting then
is.

117. Resolution in Writing

A resolution in writing signed by all the directors who are at the relevant time entitled to receive
notice of a meeting of the board and who would be entitled to vote on the resolution at a
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meeting of the board (if that number is sufficient to constitute a quorum) shall be as valid and
effectual as a resolution passed at a meeting of the board properly called and constituted. The
resolution may be contained in one document or in several documents in like form each signed
by one or more of the directors concerned. In this Article references to in writing include the use
of electronic communications subject to such terms and conditions as the board may decide.

118. Validity of Acts of Board or Committee

All acts done by the board or by any committee or by any person acting as a director or member
of a committee shall, notwithstanding that it is afterwards discovered that there was some defect
in the appointment of any member of the board or committee or person so acting or that they or
any of them were disqualified from holding office or had vacated office or were not entitled to
vote, be as valid as if each such member or person had been properly appointed and was
qualified and had continued to be a director or member of the committee and had been entitled
to vote,

Secretary
119. Appointment and Removal of the Secretary

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the secretary shall be appointed by the board
for such term and upon such conditions as the board may think fit; and any secretary so
appointed may be removed by the board.

Seals
120. Use of Seals

The board shall provide for the custody of every seal of the company. A seal shall only be used
by the authority of the board or of a committee of the board autharised by the board in that
behalf. Subject as otherwise provided in these Articles, and to any resolution of the board or
committee of the board dispensing with the requirement for counter-signature on any occasion,
any instrument to which the common seal is applied shall be signed by at least one director and
the secretary, or by at least two directors or by such other person or persons as the board may
approve. Any instrument to which an official seal is applied need not, unless the board
otherwise decides or the law otherwise requires, be signed by any person.

Dividends and Other Payments
121. Declaration of Dividends by Company
The company may by ordinary resolution from time to time declare dividends in accordance with
the respective rights of the members, but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended
by the board.
122. Payment of Interim and Fixed Dividends by Board
Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the board may pay such interim dividends as

appear to the board to be justified by the financial position of the company and may also pay
any dividend payable at a fixed rate at intervals settled by the board whenever the financial
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position of the company, in the opinion of the board, justifies its payment. If the board acts in
goad faith, it shall not incur any liability to the holders of any shares for any loss they may suffer
in consequence of the payment of an interim or fixed dividend on any other class of shares
ranking pari passu with or after those shares.

123.  Calculation and Currency of Dividends
Except in so far as the rights attaching to, or the terms of issue of, any share otherwise provide;-

(i) all dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid up on
the share in respect of which the dividend is paid, but no amount paid up on a
share in advance of calls shall be treated for the purposes of this Article as paid
up on the share;

(i) all dividends shall be apportioned and paid pro rata according to the amounts
paid up on the share during any portion or portions of the period in respect of
which the dividend is paid; and

i dividends may be declared or paid in any currency.

The board may decide the basis of conversion for any currency conversions that may be
required and how any costs involved are to be met.

124. Amounts Due on Shares may be Deducted from Dividends

The board may deduct from any dividend or other moneys payable to a member by the
company on or in respect of any shares all sums of money (if any) presently payable by him to
the company on account of calls or otherwise in respect of shares of the company. Sums so
deducted can be used to pay amounts owing to the company in respect of the shares.

125. No Interest on Dividends

Subject to the rights attaching to, or the terms of issue of, any shares, no dividend or other
moneys payable by the company on or in respect of any share shall bear interest against the
company.

126. Payment Procedure

Any dividend or other sum payable in cash by the company in respect of a share may be paid
by cheque, warrant or similar financial instrument sent by post addressed to the holder at his
registered address or, in the case of joint holders, addressed to the holder whose name stands
first in the register in respect of the shares at his address as appearing in the register or
addressed to such person and at such address as the holder or joint holders may in writing
direct. Every cheque, warrant or similar financial instrument shall, unless the holder or joint
holders otherwise direct, be made payable to the holder or, in the case of joint holders, to the
holder whose name stands first on the register in respect of the shares, and shall be sent at his
or their risk and payment of the cheque, warrant or similar financial instrument by the financial
institution on which it is drawn shall constitute a good discharge to the company. In addition,
any such dividend or other sum may be paid by any bank or other funds transfer system or such
other means including, in respect of uncertificated shares, by means of the facilities and
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requirements of a relevant system and to or through such perscn as the holder or joint holders
may in writing direct and the company may agree, and the making of such payment shall be a
good discharge to the company and the company shall have no responsibility for any sums lost
or delayed in the course of payment by any such system or other means or where it has acted
on any such directions and accordingly, payment by any such system or other means shall
constitute a good discharge te the company. Any one of two or more joint holders may give
effectual receipts for any dividends or other moneys payable or property distributable on ar in
respect of the shares held by them. Where a person is entitled by transmission to a share, any
dividend or other sum payable by the company in respect of the share may be paid as if he
were a holder of the share and his address noted in the register were his registered address
and where two or more persons are so entitled, any one of them may give effectual receipts for
any dividends or other moneys payable or property distributable on or in respect of the shares.

127. Uncashed Dividends

The company may cease to send any cheque, warrant or similar financial instrument through
the post or to employ any other means of payment, including payment by means of a relevant
system, for any dividend payable on any shares in the company which is normally paid in that
manner on those shares if in respect of at least two consecutive dividends payable on those
shares the cheques, warrants or similar financial instruments have been returned undelivered or
remain uncashed during or at the end of the period for which the same are valid or that means
of payment has failed. In addition, the company may cease to send any cheque, warrant or
similar financial instrument through the post or may cease to employ any other means of
payment if, in respect of one dividend payable on those shares, the cheque, warrant or similar
financial instrument has been returned undelivered or remains uncashed during or at the end of
the period for which the same is valid or that means of payment has failed and reasonable
enquiries have failed to establish any new address or account of the holder. Subject to the
provisions of these Articles, the company must recommence sending cheques, warrants or
similar financial instruments or employing such other means in respect of dividends payable on
those shares if the holder or person entitled by transmission requests such recommencement in
writing.

128. Forfeiture of Unclaimed Dividends

All dividends or other sums payabie on or in respect of any shares which remain unclaimed may
be invested or otherwise made use of by the board for the benefit of the company until claimed.
Any dividend or other sum unclaimed after a period of 12 years from the date when it was
deciared or became due for payment shall be forfeited and shall revert to the company unless
the board decides otherwise and the payment by the board of any unclaimed dividend or other
sum payable on or in respect of a share into a separate account shall not constitute the
company a trustee in respect of it.

129. Dividends Not in Cash

Any general meeting declaring a dividend may, upon the recommendation of the board, by
ordinary resolution direct that it shall be satisfied wholly or partly by the distribution of assets,
and in particular of paid up shares or debentures of any other company, and where any difficulty
arises in regard to the distribution the board may settle it as it thinks expedient, and in particular
may authorise any person to sell and transfer any fractions or may ignore fractions altogether,
and may fix the value for distribution purposes of any assets or any part thereof to be distributed
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and may determine that cash shall be paid to any members upon the footing of the value so
fixed in order to secure equality of distribution and may vest any assets to be distributed in
trustees as may seem expedient to the board.

130.

Scrip Dividends

The board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution of the company, offer any holders of
ordinary shares (excluding any member holding shares as treasury shares) the right to elect to
receive ordinary shares, credited as fully paid, instead of cash in respect of the whaole (or some
part, to be determined by the board) of any dividend specified by the ordinary resolution. The
foltowing provisions shall apply:

)

(ii)

(i)

(v)

An ordinary resolution may specify some or all of a particular dividend (whether or not
already declared) or may specify some or all of any dividends declared or paid within a
specified period, but such period may not end later than the fifth anniversary of the date
of the meeting at which the ordinary resolution is passed,

The entitlement of each holder of ordinary shares to new ordinary shares shall be such
that the relevant value of the entitlement shall be as nearly as possible equal to (but not
greater than) the cash amount (disregarding any tax credit) of the dividend that such
holder elects to forgo. For this purpose “relevant value” shall be calculated by reference
to the average of the middle market quotations for the company's ordinary shares on
the London Stock Exchange as derived from the Daily Official List (or any other
publication of a recognised investment exchange showing quotations for the company’s
ordinary shares) on such five consecutive dealing days as the board shall determine
provided that the first of such days shall be on or after the day on which the ordinary
shares are first quoted “ex” the relevant dividend or in such other manner as may be
determined by or in accordance with the ordinary resolution. A certificate or report by
the auditors as to the amount of the relevant value in respect of any dividend shall be
conclusive evidence of that amount and in giving such a certificate or report the auditors
may rely on advice or information from brokers or other sources of information as they
think fit;

No fraction of any ordinary share shall be allotted. The board may make such
provisions as they think fit for any fractional entitiements including provisions whereby,
in whole or in part, the benefit thereof accrues to the company and/or under which
fractional entittements are accrued and/or retained and in each case accumulated on
behalf of any member and such accruals or retentions are applied to the allotment by
way of bonus to or cash subscription on behalf of such member of fully paid ordinary
shares and/or provisions whereby cash payments may be made to members in respect
of their fractional entitlements;

The board, if it intends to offer an election in respect of any dividend, shall give notice to
the holders of ordinary shares of the right of election offered to them, and specify the
procedure to be followed which, for the avoidance of doubt, may include an election by
means of a relevant system and the place at which, and the latest time by which,
elections must be lodged in order for elections to he effective; no such notice need be
given to holders of ordinary shares who have previously given election mandates in
accordance with this Article and whose mandates have not been revoked: the
accidental omission to give notice of any right of election to, or the non receipt of any
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v

(vi)

(vii)

(wiii)

(ix)

()

(i)

such notice by, any holder of ordinary shares entitled to the same shall neither
invalidate any offer of an election nor give rise to any claim, suit or action;

The board shall not proceed with any election unless the company has sufficient
unissued shares authorised for issue and sufficient reserves or funds that may be
capitalised to give effect to it after the basis of allotment is determined;

The board may exclude from any offer or make other arrangement in relation to any
holders of ordinary shares where the board believes that such exclusion or arrangement
is necessary or expedient in refation to legal or practical problems under the laws of, or
the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any
territary, or the board believes that for any other reason the offer should not be made to
them;

The dividend (or that part of the dividend in respect of which a right of election has been
offered) shall not be payable on ordinary shares in respect of which an election has
been made (for the purposes of this Article “the elected ordinary shares”) and instead
additional ordinary shares shall be allotted to the holders of the elected ordinary shares
on the basis of allotment calculated as stated. For such purpose the board shall
capitalise, out of any amount standing to the credit of any reserve or fund (including the
profit and loss account or retained earnings) at the relevant time whether or not the
same is available for distribution as the board may determine, a sum equal to the
aggregate nominal amount of the additional ordinary shares to be allotted on that basis
and apply it in paying up in full the appropriate number of unissued ordinary shares for
allotment and distribution to the holders of the elected ordinary shares on that basis.
The board may do all acts and things considered necessary or expedient to give effect
to any such capitalisation;

The additional ordinary shares when allotted shall rank pari passu in all respects with
the fully-paid ordinary shares then in issue except that they will not be entitled to
participation in the relevant dividend,

Unless the board otherwise determines, or unless the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations and/or the rules of the relevant system concerned otherwise require, the
new ordinary share or shares which a member has elected to receive instead of cash in
respect of the whole (ar some part) of the specified dividend declared or paid in respect
of his elected ordinary shares shall be in uncertificated form (in respect of the member’s
elected ordinary shares which were in uncertificated form on the date of the member's
election) and in certificated form (in respect of the member's elected ordinary shares
which were in certificated form on the date of the member's election};

The board may also from time to time establish or vary a procedure for election
mandates, which, for the avoidance of doubt, may include an election by means of a
relevant systemn, under which a holder of ordinary shares may elect in respect of future
rights of election offered to that hotder under this Article until the election mandate is
revoked or deemed to be revoked in accordance with the procedure;

The board may decide how any costs relating to making new shares available in place
of a cash dividend will be met, including deciding to deduct an amount from the
entitlement of a shareholder under this Article; and
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(xii) At any time before new ordinary shares are allotted instead of cash in respect of any
part of a dividend, the board may determine that such new ordinary shares will not be
allotted. Any such determination may be made before or after any election has been
made by members in respect of the relevant dividend.

Capitalisation of Reserves
131. Power to Capitalise Reserves and Funds

The company may, upon the recommendation of the board, at any time and from time to time
pass an ordinary resolution to the effect that it is desirable to capitalise afl or any part of any
amount standing to the credit of any reserve or fund (including the profit and loss account or
retained earnings) at the refevant time whether or not the same is available for distribution and
accordingly that the amount to be capitalised be set free for distribution among the members or
any class of members who would be entitled to it if it were distributed by way of dividend and in
the same proportions, on the footing that it is applied either in or towards paying up the amounts
unpaid at the relevant time on any shares in the company held by those members respectively
or in paying up in full unissued shares, debentures or other obligations of the company to be
allotted and distributed credited as fully paid up among those members, or partly in one way and
partly in the other, but so that, for the purposes of this Article; (i) a share premium accountand a
capital redemption reserve, and any reserve or fund representing unrealised profits, may be
applied only in paying up in full unissued shares of the company; and (ii) where the amount
capitalised is applied in paying up in full unissued shares, the company will also be entitled to
participate in the relevant distribution in refation to any shares of the relevant class held by it as
treasury shares and the proportionate entitlement of the relevant class of members to the
distribution will be calculated accordingly. The board may authorise any person to enter into an
agreement with the company on behalf of the persons entitled to participate in the distribution
and the agreement shall be binding on those persons.

132. Settlement of Difficulties in Distribution

Where any difficulty arises in regard to any distribution of any capitalised reserve or fund the
board may settle the matter as it thinks expedient and in particular may authorise any person to
sell and transfer any fractions or may resolve that the distribution should be as nearly as may be
practicable in the correct proportion but not exactly so or may ignore fractions altogether, and
may determine that cash payments shall be made to any members in order to adjust the rights
of all parties, as may seem expedient to the board.

Record Dates
133. Power to Choose Any Record Date
Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the company or the board may fix any
date as the record date for any dividend, distribution, allotment or issue and such record date
may be on or at any time before or after any date on which the dividend, distribution, allotment

or issue is declared, paid or made. The power to fix any such record date shall include the
power to fix a time on the chosen date.
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Accounting Records and Summary Financial Statements
134, Records to be Kept

The board shall cause to be kept accounting records sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions, and such as to disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the company at that time, and which accord with the Companies Acts.

135. Inspection of Records

No member (other than a director or other officer) has the right to inspect an accounting record
or other document except if that right is conferred by the Companies Acts or he is authorised by
the board or by an ordinary resolution of the company.

136. Accounts to be sent to Members

(A) In respect of each financial year, a copy of the company's annual accounts, the
directors' remuneration report, the directors' report and the auditors' report on those
accounts, on the auditable part of the directors’ remuneration report and on the
directors' report shall be sent to:

(iy every member (whether or not entitled to receive notices of general
meetings},

{iy every holder of debentures (whether or not entitled to receive notices of
general meetings); and

(i)  every other person who is entitled to receive notices of general
meetings not less than 21 clear days before the date of the meeting at
which copies of those documents are to be laid in accordance with the
Companies Acts.

(B) This Article does not require copies of the documents to which it applies to be sent to:
(i) a person for whom the company does not have a current address; or
(i) more than one of the joint holders of shares or debentures.

(C) The board may determine that persons entitled to receive a copy of the company's
annual accounts, the directors' remuneration report, the directors' report and the
auditors' report on those accounts, on the auditable part of the directors’' remuneration
report and on the directors' report are those persons entered on the register at the close
of business on a day determined by the board, provided that, if the company is a
participating issuer, the day determined by the board may not be more than 21 days
hefore the day that the relevant copies are being sent.

(D) Where permitted by the Companies Acts, a summary financial statement derived from

the company's annual accounts, the directors’ remuneration report and the directors’
report in the form and containing the information prescribed by the Companies Acts may
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be sent to a person so electing in place of the documents required to be sent by

Article136(A).

Service of Notices and Documents

137. Service of notices, documents and information on members

(A) A notice to be given to or by any person pursuant to the Articles (other than a notice
convening a meeting of the board or of a committee of the board) shall be in writing.

(B) Any notice, document or information may be given, sent or supplied by the company to

any member:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

personally;

by sending it by post in a pre-paid envelope addressed to the member
at his registered address or address given pursuant to Article 137(E), or
by leaving it at that address;

by sending it in electronic form to the electronic address specified for the
purpose by the member (generally or specifically}, provided that the
member has agreed (generally or specifically) that the notice, document
or information may be sent or supplied in that form (and has not revoked
that agreement); or

subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, by making it available
on a website, provided that the requirements in Article 137(C) are
satisfied.

(C) The requirements referred to in Article 137(B)(iv) are that;

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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the member has agreed {generally or specifically} that the notice,
document or information may be sent or supplied to him by being made
available on a website {and has not revoked that agreement), or the
member has been asked by the company to agree that the company
may send or supply notices, documents and information generally, or
the notice, document or information in question, to him by making it
available on a website and the company has not received a response
within the period of 28 days beginning with the date on which the
company's request was sent and the member is therefore taken to have
so agreed (and has not revoked that agreement);

the member is sent a notification of the presence of the notice,
document or information on a website, the address of that website, the
place on that website where it may be accessed, and how it may be
accessed ("notification of availability");

in the case of a notice of meeting, the notification of availability states
that it concerns a notice of a company meeting, specifies the place, date
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(D)

(E)

(G)

(H)

and time of the meeting, and states whether it will be an annual general
meeting; and

(iv)  the notice, document or information continues to be published on that
website, in the case of a notice of meeting, throughout the period
beginning with the date of the notification of availability and ending with
the conclusion of the meeting and, in all other cases, throughout the
period specified by any applicable provision of the Companies Acts or, if
no such period is specified, throughout the period of 28 days beginning
with the date on which the notification of availability is sent to the
member, save that if the notice, document or information is made
available for part only of that period, then failure to make it available
throughout that pericd shall be disregarded where such failure is wholly
attributable to circumstances which it would not be reasonable to have
expected the company to prevent or avoid.

In the case of joint holders of shares:

(i) it shall be sufficient for all notices, documents and other information to
be given, sent or supplied to the joint holder whose name stands first in
the register in respect of the joint holding (the "first named holder")
only; and

(i)  anything to be agreed or specified in relation to any notice, document or
information to be sent or supplied to them may be agreed or specified
by the first named holder and any such agreement or specification shall
be binding on all the joint holders.

A member whose registered address is not within the United Kingdom who gives to the
company an address within the United Kingdom at which notices, documents or
information may be given, sent or supplied to him shall be entitled to have notices,
documents or information given, sent or supplied to him at that address (provided that,
in the case of a notice, document or information sent by electronic means, including
without limitation any notification required by the Companies Acts that the notice,
document or information is available on a website, the company so agrees, which
agreement the company shall be entitled to withhold in its absolute discretion), but
otherwise no such member shall be entitled to receive any notice, document or
information from the company.

For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of this Article 137 are subject to Article 54.

The company may, at any time and at its sole discretion, choose to give, send or supply
notices, documents and information only in hard copy form to some or all members.

If on three consecutive occasions a notice to a member has been returned undelivered,
such member shall not thereafter be entitled to receive notices from the company until
he shall have communicated with the company and supplied to the company (or its
agent) a new registered address, or a postal address within the United Kingdom for the
service of notices, or shall have informed the company, in such manner as may be
specified by the company, of an address for the service of notices by electronic
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communications. For these purposes, a notice sent by post shall be treated as returned
undelivered if the notice is sent back to the company (or its agents), and a notice sent
by electronic communications shall be treated as returned undelivered if the company
{or its agents) receives notification that the notice was not delivered to the address to
which it was sent.

138. Record Date for Service

Any notice or document may be served, sent or delivered by the company by reference to the
register as it stands at any time not more than 15 days before the date of service, sending or
delivery. No change in the register after that time shall invalidate that service, sending or
delivery. Where any notice or document is served on or sent or delivered to any person in
respect of a share in accordance with these Articles, no person deriving any title or interest in
that share shall be entitled to any further service, sending or delivery of that notice or document.

139. Validation of Documents in Electronic Form

139.1 Where a document is required under the Articles to be signed by a member or any other
person, if the document is in electronic form, then in order to be valid the document
must either:

(A} incorporate the electronic signature, or personal identification details (which
may be details previously allocated by the company), of that member or other
person, in such form as the board may approve; or

(B) be accompanied by such other evidence as the board may require in order to
be satisfied that the document is genuine.

139.2 The company may designate mechanisms for validating any document in electronic
form and a document not validated by the use of any such mechanisms shall be
deemed as having not been received by the company. In the case of any document or
information relating to a meeting, an instrument of proxy or invitation to appoint a proxy,
any validation requirements shall be specified in the relevant notice of meeting.

140.  Service of Notice on Person Entitled by Transmission

A person who is entitled by transmission to a share, upon supplying the company with a postal
address within the United Kingdom for the service of notices shall be entitled to have served
upon or delivered to him at such address any notice or document to which he would have been
entitled if he were the holder of that share. A person who is entitled by transmission to a share,
upon supplying the company with an address for the purposes of electronic communications for
the service of notices may, at the absolute discretion of the board, have sent to him at such
address any notice or document to which he would have been entitled if he were the holder of
that share. In either case, such service, sending or delivery shali for all purposes be deemed a
sufficient service, sending or delivery of such notice or document on all persons interested
{whether jointly with or as claimants through or under him} in the share. Otherwise, any notice
or other document served on or sent or delivered to any member pursuant to these Articles
shall, notwithstanding that the member is then dead or bankrupt or that any other event giving
rise to the transmission of the share by operation of aw has occurred and whather or not the
company has notice of the death, bankruptcy or other event, be deemed to have been properly
served, sent or delivered in respect of any share registered in the name of that member as sole
or joint holder.

LONDOCS\2807019.01 51




141. When Notice Deemed Served

Any notice or document, if sent by the company by post, shall be deemed to have been served
or delivered on the day following that on which it was put in the post if first class post was used
or 72 hours after it was posted if first class post was not used and, in proving service or delivery,
it shall be sufficient to prove that the notice or document was properly addressed, prepaid and
put in the post. Any notice or document not sent by post but left by the company at a registered
address or at an address (other than an address for the purposes of electronic communications)
notified to the company in accordance with these Articles by a person who is entitled by
transmission to a share shall be deemed to have been served or delivered on the day it was so
left. Any notice or document served or delivered by the company by means of a relevant
systerm shall be deemed to have been served or delivered when the company or any sponsoring
system-participant acting on its behalf sends the issuer-instruction relating to the notice or
document. Any notice or document sent by the company using electronic communications shall
be deemed to have been received on the day following that on which it was sent. A notice or
document placed on the company's website or websites shall be deemed to have been received
on the day following that on which a notice of availability was sent. Proof that a notice or
document contained in an electronic communication was given or sent in accordance with
current guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators shall be
conclusive evidence that the notice or document was given or sent. Any notice or document
served, sent or delivered by the company by any other means authorised in writing by the
member concerned shall be deemed to have been served, received or delivered when the
company has carried out the action it has been authorised to take for that purpose.

142. Notice When Post Not Available

If at any time by reason of the suspension or curtailment of postal services within the United
Kingdom or some part of the United Kingdom or of the relevant electronic communication
system the company is unable effectively to convene a general meeting by notice sent through
the post or by electronic communications, notice of the general meeting may be given to
members affected by the suspension or curtailment by a notice advertised in at least one
newspaper with a national circulation. Notice published in this way shall be deemed to have
been properly served on all affected members who are entitled to have notice of the meeting
served upon them, on the day when the advertisement has appeared in at least one such paper.
If at least six clear days prior to the meeting the sending of notices by post or by electronic
communications has again become generally possible, the company shall send confirmatory
copies of the notice by post or by electronic communications to the persons entitled to receive
them.

Destruction of Documents
143. Presumptions Where Documents Destroyed
If the company destroys or deletes:-

(i any share certificate which has been cancelled at any time after a period of one
year has elapsed from the date of cancellation, or

(ii) any instruction concerning the payment of dividends or other moneys in respect
of any share or any notification of change of name or address at any time after
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a period of two years has elapsed from the date the instruction or notification
was recorded by the company, or

i) any instrument of transfer of shares or Operator-instruction for the transfer of
shares which has been registered by the company at any time after a period of
six years has elapsed from the date of registration, or

(iv) any other document on the basis of which any entry is made in the register at
any time after a period of six years has elapsed from the date the entry was first
made in the register in respect of it

and the company destroys or deletes the document or instruction in good faith and without
express notice that its preservation was relevant to a claim, it shall be presumed irrebuttably in
favour of the company that every share certificate so destroyed was a valid certificate and was
properly cancelled, that every instrument of transfer or Operator-instruction so destroyed or
deleted was a valid and effective instrument of transfer or instruction and was properly
registered and that every other document so destroyed was a valid and effective document and
that any particulars of it which are recorded in the books or records of the company were
correctly recorded. If the documents relate to uncertificated shares, the company must comply
with any requirements of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations which limit its ability to
destroy these documents. Nothing contained in this Article shall be construed as imposing upon
the company any liability which, but for this Article, would not exist or by reason only of the
destruction of any document of the kind mentioned above before the relevant period mentioned
in this Article has elapsed ar of the fact that any other condition precedent to its destruction
mentioned above has not been fulfilled. References in this Article to the destruction of any
document include references to its disposa! in any manner.

Winding Up
144. Distribution of Assets Otherwise Than in Cash

If the company commences liquidation, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special
resolution of the company and any other sanction required by the Companies Acts:-

(i) divide among the members {excluding any member holding shares as treasury
shares) in kind the whole or any part of the assets of the company (whether
they shall consist of property of the same kind or not) and, for that purpose, set
such values as he deems fair upon any property to be divided and determine
how the division shall be carried out as between the members or different
classes of members, or

i) vest the whole or any part of the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the
benefit of the contributories as the liquidator, with the like sanction, shall think fit

but no member shall be compelled to accept any shares or other assets upon which there is any
liability.
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Indemnity

145. Indemnity of Directors

{A) Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the company may:

(i)

(ii)

indemnify to any extent any person who is or was a director, or a
director of any associated company, directly or indirectly {including by
funding any expenditure incurred or to be incurred by him) against any
loss or liability, whether in connection with any negligence, default,
breach of duty or breach of trust by him or otherwise, in relation to the
company or any associated company;

indemnify to any extent any person who is or was a director of an
associated company that is a trustee of an occupational pension
schemae, directly or indirectly {including by funding any expenditure
incurred or to be incurred by him) against any liability incurred by him
in connection with such company's activities as trustee of an
occupational pension scheme.

{B) Where a person is indemnified against any liability in accordance with Article 145(A),
such indemnity may extend to all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
incurred by him in relation thereto.

146.  Arbitration

Dispute Resolution

{(A) Unless Article 147 applies:

All disputes:

(i)

(il)
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between a shareholder in that shareholder's capacity as such and the
company and/or its directors arising out of or in connection with these
Articles or otherwise; andfor

to the fullest extent permitted by law, between the company and any of
its directors in their capacities as such or as employees of the company,
including all claims made by or on behalf of the company against its
directors; and/or

between a shareholder in that shareholder's capacity as such and the
company's professional service providers; and/or

between the company and the company's professional service

providers arising in connection with any claim within the scope of Article
146(A)iii),
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(B)

(€)

(D)
(E)

(F)

(G)

147.

(A)

(8)

(C)

shall be exclusively and finally resolved under the Rules of Arbitration of the
International Chamber of Commerce (“ICC") {the “ICC Rules"), as amended
from time to time.

The tribunal shall consist of three arbitrators to be appointed in accordance with the ICC
Rules.

The chairman of the tribunal must have at least 20 years' experience as a lawyer
qualified to practise in a common law jurisdiction within the Commonwealth {as
constituted on 1 September 2006) and each other arbitrator must have at least 20
years’ experience as a qualified lawyer.

The place of arbitration shall be London, England.
The language of the arbitration shall be English.

These Articles constitute a contract between the company and its shareholders and
between the company's sharehalders inter se. This Article 146 (as supplemented from
time to time by any agreement to a similar effect between the company and its directors
or professional service providers) also contains or evidences an express submission to
arbitration by each shareholder, the company, its directors and professional service
providers and such submissions shall be treated as a written arbitration agreement
under the Arbitration Act 1996 of England and Wales and Article Il of the United Nations
Convention on the Recognition and Enforcement of Foreign Arbitral Awards (1958).

Each person to whom Article 146 applies hereby waives, to the fullest extent permitted
by taw: (i) any right under the laws of any jurisdiction to apply to any court of law or
other judicial authority to determine any preliminary paint of law, and/or (i) any right he
or she may otherwise have under the laws of any jurisdiction to appeal or otherwise
challenge the award, ruling or decision of the tribunal.

Exclusive Jurisdiction

Article 147 shall apply to a dispute {(which would otherwise be subject to Article 146) in
any jurisdiction if a court in that jurisdiction determines that Article 146 is invalid or
unenforceable in relation to that dispute in that jurisdiction.

For the purposes of Article 147(A), “court” shall mean any court of competent jurisdiction
or other competent authority including for the avoidance of doubt, a court or authority in
any jurisdiction which is not a signatory to the New York Convention.

Any proceeding, suit or action:
(i) between a shareholder in that shareholder’'s capacity as such and the
company and/or its directors arising out of or in connection with these

Articles or otherwise; and/or

(ii) to the fullest extent permitted by law, between the company and any of
its directors in their capacities as such or as employees of the company,
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148.

(A)

(B)

©

(D)

including all claims made by or on behalf of the company against its
directors; and/or

(iii) between a shareholder in that shareholder's capacity as such and the
company's professional service providers and/or

(iv) between the company and the company's professional service
providers arising in connection with any claim within the scope of Article
147 (C)(in),

may only be brought in the courts of England and Wales.

Damages alone may not be an adequate remedy for any breach of Article 147, so that
in the event of a breach or anticipated breach, the remedies of injunction and/or an
order for specific performance would in appropriate circumstances be available.

General Dispute Resolution Provisions

For the purposes of Articles 146 and 147, a “dispute” shall mean any dispute,
controversy or claim, other than any dispute, controversy or claim relating to any failure
or alleged failure by the company to pay all or part of a dividend which has been
declared and which has fallen due for payment.

The governing law of these Articles, including the submissions to arbitration and written
arbitration agreement contained in or evidenced by Article 1486, is the substantive law of
England.

The company shall be entitled to enforce Articles 146 and 147 for its own benefit, and
that of its directors, subsidiary undertakings and professional service providers.

References in Articles 146 and 147 to:

(i) “‘company” shall be read so as to include each and any of the
company's subsidiary undertakings from time to time; and

(i) “director” shall be read so as to include each and any director of the
company from time to time in his or her capacity as such or as
employee of the company and shall include any former director of the
company; and

(iii} “professional service providers” shall be read so as to include the
company's auditors, legal counsel, bankers, ADR depositaries and any
other similar professional service providers in their capacity as such
from time to time but only if and to the extent such person has agreed
with the company in writing to be bound by Article 146 and/or 147 (or
has otherwise agreed to submit disputes to arbitration and/or exclusive
jurisdiction in a materially similar way).
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